
 

 
Cambridge City Council 

 
 

 
 

 
i 

EQUALITIES PANEL 
 
To:   Attendees:  

 
Chair: Antoinette Jackson 
 
Public Members: Graham Lewis, Nicky Wrigley, Norah Al-Ani and Bintou 
Niangane 
 
Staff Members: Jackie Hanson, Ari Henry, Karen Hobbs and Joe Godwin 
 
Elected Members: Councillor Abbott, Councillor Bick, Councillor Brown and 
Councillor Bird 
 
Officers: Liz Bisset, Ian Ross, Jonathan James, Deborah Simpson, Paul 
Williams and Chris Williams 
 

Despatched: Friday, 8 June 2012 
  
Date: Monday, 18 June 2012 
Time: 4.00 pm 
Venue: Brown's Field 31a Green End Road, Cambridge CB4 1RU. 
Contact:  Toni Birkin Direct Dial:  01223 457086 
 

AGENDA 
 

1    WELCOME, INTRODUCTIONS AND APOLOGIES   
 

 Attendance and apologies 
 

2   DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 
 

3    MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING AND MATTERS ARISING  
 (Pages 1 - 6) 
 

 To agree the minutes of the meeting held on 21 November 2011.   

Public Document Pack



 
ii 

4    REVIEW OF TERMS OF REFERENCE  (Pages 7 - 8) 
 

 To note terms of reference.   
 

5    CUSTOMER ACCESS STRATEGY (Pages 9 - 28) 
 

 To consider and comment on the equalities implications of the draft 
strategy.  
 

6    POLICY UPDATE:  
THE PUBLIC SECTOR EQUALITY DUTY ONE YEAR ON   
 

 To update the Panel on the direction of Government equalities policy and 
the implementation of the Equality Duty.   
 

7    EQUALITY IMPACT ASSESSMENTS: OLYMPIC TORCH RELAY AND 
LEISURE MANAGEMENT CONTRACT  (Pages 29 - 56) 
 

 To provide quality assurance of the City Council’s Equality Impact 
Assessments by asking the Panel to assess two examples. 
 

8    EQUALITY IN EMPLOYMENT – END OF YEAR UPDATE WORKFORCE 
REPORT, APRIL 2011 - MARCH 2012  (Pages 57 - 84) 
 

 To update the Panel on the City Council’s workforce profile and to consider 
the steps being taken to ensure that the workforce is representative of the 
local population.  
 

9    FUTURE WORK PROGRAMME OF EQUALITIES PANEL   
 

 � High Contact Families (tbc)  
� Census results (tbc)  
� Mental Health / Learning Disabilities / LGBT (tbc) 

 
 
 
 
 



 
iii 

Information for the public 
 
Public attendance 
You are welcome to attend this meeting as an observer, although it will be 
necessary to ask you to leave the room during the discussion of matters which are 
described as confidential. 
 
Public Speaking 
You can ask questions on an issue included on either agenda above, or on an issue 
which is within this committee’s powers. Questions can only be asked during the slot 
on the agenda for this at the beginning of the meeting, not later on when an issue is 
under discussion by the committee.  
 
If you wish to ask a question related to an agenda item contact the committee officer 
(listed above under ‘contact’) before the meeting starts.  If you wish to ask a 
question on a matter not included on this agenda, please contact the committee 
officer by 10.00am the working day before the meeting.  Further details concerning 
the right to speak at committee can be obtained from the committee section. 
 
Filming, recording and photography at council meetings is allowed subject to certain 
restrictions and prior agreement from the chair of the meeting. 
 
Requests to film, record or photograph, whether from a media organisation or a 
member of the public, must be made to the democratic services manager at least 
three working days before the meeting. 
 
Fire Alarm 
In the event of the fire alarm sounding  (which is a continuous ringing sound), you 
should pick up your possessions and leave the building by the route you came in. 
Once clear of the building, you should assemble on the pavement opposite the main 
entrance to the Guildhall and await further instructions. If your escape route or the 
assembly area is unsafe, you will be directed to safe areas by a member of 
Cambridge City Council staff. 
 
 



This page is intentionally left blank



Equalities Panel EP/1 Monday, 21 November 2011 
 

 
 
 

1 

EQUALITIES PANEL 21 November 2011 
 4.00  - 6.00 pm 
Present:  
 
Councillors – Gerri Bird, Sarah Brown, and Salah Al Bander 
Also present: Councillor Reid 
 
Public Members – Norah Al-Ani, Bintou Niangane Graham Lewis and Nicky 
Wrigley. 
 
Staff Member – Jackie Hanson (Operations and Resources Manager), 
 
Officers – John Frost (Head of Revenue and Benefits), Alison Cole (Benefits 
Manager), Deborah Simpson (Head of Human Resources), Vicki Davidson 
(Organisational Development Manager), Paul Williams (Diversity Advisor), 
Chris Williams (Strategy Officer) and Toni Birkin (Committee Manager). 
 
 
FOR THE INFORMATION OF THE COUNCIL 
 

11/31/EP Welcome, Introductions and Apologies 
 
Apologies were received from Antoinette Jackson, Councillor Marchant-
Daisley, Bridget Keady and Nacer Dali. 
 

11/32/EP Declarations of Interest 
 
 No interests were declared. 
 

11/33/EP Minutes of Previous Meeting and Matters Arising 
 
 The minute of the meeting of the 20th June 2011 were agreed as a correct 
record subject to the addition of Councillor Reid to the attendance list. 
 

11/34/EP Welfare Reforms 
 

Public Document Pack Agenda Item 3

Page 1



Equalities Panel EP/2 Monday, 21 November 2011 
 

 
 
 

2 

The panel received presentations from the Head of Revenues and Benefits 
and the Benefits Manager regarding Welfare Reforms. He suggested that the 
fundamental changes to the welfare system would have a big impact on 
Cambridge. The Benefits Manager outlined the local position regarding 
Housing Benefit and Local Housing Allowance.  Copies of the presentations 
would be circulated to the panel and are available on request. 
 
Members of the panel were concerned that the changes would have a 
disproportionate impact on the working population.  Panel members asked 
how  vulnerable groups would be identified and assisted. The Benefits 
Manager outlined  that the existing definitions of vulnerable groups would not 
change. 
 
Cambridge City Council would be working closely with neighbouring authorities 
and Registered Social Landlords to deliver the changes. The timetable of the 
reforms is very tight and would have a an impact on Local Authorities..  
 
An EQIA of Universal Credits had demonstrated an impact on disabled 
claimants..  
 
The Head of Revenues and Benefits outlined other changes that would be 
taking place regarding Council Tax benefits and discounts. Decisions on this 
would be taken at a local level and would include a consultation period. 
 
Panel Members asked the following questions: 
 
1) How much information has been circulated to claimants? 
Initial information had been circulated and would be followed up as further 
changes are rolled out. 
2) If residents cannot afford the under occupancy shortfall, will they be 
offered assistance to move? 
This is currently unclear. The existing compensations scheme for those freeing 
up larger properties may need to be reviewed. 
3) Will there be sufficient smaller properties for those needing to 
downsize? 
Joint working with other social landlords and the private sectors is seen as the 
best way to address this issue. 
4) When will the first impact of the changes be felt by claimants? 
Once the transitional arrangements begin to be phased out (January 2012) 
claimants will feel the first impacts of the changes. 
5) Is there a support plan in place for front line staff? 

Page 2



Equalities Panel EP/3 Monday, 21 November 2011 
 

 
 
 

3 

Training of such staff is on-going. Communication with claimants is seen as 
key. 
6) The move to Universal Credit would transfer the responsibility for 
paying rent direct to claimants. This would make the work of agencies 
working with those in debt or with other issues much more difficult. It 
could also lead to an increase in homelessness. 
Communication would again be key. External agencies are being informed of 
the changes and can request training. 
7) What impact can the consultations process have? 
This would be limited to the decisions that are being taken locally. 
 
Councillor Reid commented on the impact of the broad market rent area policy 
decision and the impact on City residents. The City Council has raised this 
decision with Central Government.  
 

11/35/EP Equality in Employment 
 
The panel received a report from the Diversity Advisor regarding Equality in 
Employment. 
 
Panel members questioned the low percentage figure of staff declaring their 
sexual orientation to be lesbian, gay or bisexual and suggested this might be 
linked to the relatively high proportion of staff who prefer not to answer this 
questions. Members were pleased to see an increase in the numbers of BAME 
(Black, Asian and Minority Ethnic) applicants and asked if there were any 
positive links to local groups to encourage this.  
 
An error in 5.4 of the report breaking down redundancies by gender and full 
time, part time posts was noted.  
 
The following points were raised: 
 
� Members asked if information on exit interviews could be included in a 

future report 
� It would be helpful to have a breakdown of BAME applications cross 

referenced to grade of job applied for. 
� The concentration of BAME staff in band 3 needs further investigation. 

 
The panel concluded that they would find if helpful to know more about the pay 
bands and the jobs types they encompass. Use of terms such as JNC, needed 
further explanation.  

Page 3



Equalities Panel EP/4 Monday, 21 November 2011 
 

 
 
 

4 

 

11/36/EP Diversity Peer Review 
 
 
The panel received a tabled report from the Strategy Officer regarding the 
Diversity Peer Challenge. Cambridge City Council is an ‘achieving’ authority. 
The report highlights current good practice and makes a number of 
recommendations for future improvements. Much of what is recommended 
was already happening.  
 
The panel questioned the staff take up of Equality and Diversity training. A 
corporate programme was in place and all staff were encouraged to attend. 
 
Panel members asked for detail on how the findings of the review would be 
used. The officer responded that ‘achieving’ is the middle grade and the report 
highlighted opportunities for improvements.  
 
Councillor Reid concluded the discussion by confirming that the report would 
be cross-referenced to the Single Equality Scheme 2012 - 2015, which is 
currently under consultation, and would inform future developments.  
 

11/37/EP Membership of the Equalities Panel 
 
Staff and public panel members whose terms of office is at an end were 
thanked for their work on the Panel over the years and invited to reapply if they 
so choose. Councillor Reid asked for feedback on experiences while part of 
the panel. It was agreed that the panel had improved over the years.   Moving 
meetings out of the Guildhall had been helpful. There was general agreement 
that the panel was now fulfilling its role. 
   
An audit of panel skills and training needs was suggested. This would highlight 
gaps which could be addressed by future recruitment. There is currently no 
training available to public members. Deborah Simpson would investigate this 
and would look at the possibility of them to attend member training sessions.  
 
The panel vacancies would be advertised widely and the staff groups would be 
approached to promote them to their members. The staff vacancy person 
specifications would be updated. 
 

Page 4



Equalities Panel EP/5 Monday, 21 November 2011 
 

 
 
 

5 

11/38/EP Future Work Programme of Equalities Panel 
 
The panel members agreed that the briefing on the recent marches in the City 
had been very useful. More events of this type, with invited external agencies 
and staff in attendance would be welcomed.  
 
 

11/39/EP Date of next meeting 
 
The next meeting would be held on 18th June 2012. 
 
 
 
 

The meeting ended at 6.00 pm 
 
 
 
 

CHAIR 
 

Page 5



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 6



Equalities Panel 
 
Terms Of Reference 
 
• To monitor the Council’s progress against the 

implementation of the Council’s Race Equality Scheme 
• To monitor relevant national and local performance 

indicators and the Council’s progress against the Equality 
Standard for Local Government 

• To monitor the Council’s progress against the 
implementation of present and future equalities legislation 

• To evaluate the equalities implications for the Council of the 
results of Council consultation 

• To evaluate the work the Council is undertaking to help 
communities directly affected by equalities issues become 
more fully engaged in the work of the Council 

 
Principles and Objectives 
The Panel will support Council-led initiatives that: 
 
• Play a leading role in 

the promotion of 
equalities and 
diversity. 

• Celebrate the diversity 
of lifestyles, faiths and 
cultures of the local 
population. 

• Respect and value 
differences. 

• Challenge and aim to 
eradicate 
discrimination. 

• Encourage the 
identification and 
sharing of good 
practice. 

• Establish networks 
and joint/partnership 
working internally and 
externally. 

• Develop and 

 Focus on the equality target 
groups: 
• Black and Minority Ethnic 

communities, including 
Gypsies/Travellers, 
refugees and asylum 
seekers. 

• Women and 
transgendered people. 

• Disabled people. 
• Lesbian, gay and 

bisexual people. 
• Older people. 
• Children and young 

people. 
• Faith or belief groups. 

Agenda Item 4

Page 7



implement positive 
action to achieve 
cultural change. 

• Improve workforce 
representation in 
recruitment, training 
and promotion. 

• Promote positive 
relations and tolerance 
in the workplace and 
community. 

 
Relationship to the Council  
The Panel is an independent body that supports the Council’s 
decision-making process. The role of the Panel is to have 
balanced discussion around the Council’s equalities progress and 
assist with forward planning.  While not a ‘committee’ as such the 
Panel reports annually to the Strategy & Resources Committee. 
 

Page 8



Cambridge City Council 

Customer Access Strategy
2012 - 2015 

Putting Our Customers First 

Agenda Item 5

Page 9



Contents

1.0 Introduction ............................................................................................................3

2.0 What difference will the strategy make to customers?  .................................4 

3.0 Key themes .............................................................................................................5 

 ! 3.1 Customer Channel Management         

 ! 3.2 Customer choice and control 

 ! 3.3 Engaging with our customers 

 ! 3.4 Marketing Products and Services 

 ! 3.5 Leadership 

4.0 Customer Charter  and Service Standards........................................................9 

5.0 How will the strategy be delivered ...................................................................11 

6.0 Improvement plan ..............................................................................................13 

7.0 Document Control Page ....................................................................................16

 1. Document Identification

 2. History

Document:  Customer Management Strategy  Page 2 of 20 
Author: Jonathan James 
Date: June 2012 Page 10



1.0 Introduction

The implementation of the first Customer Access Strategy (CAS) in 2008 has seen the 
continued development of the Customer Service Centre (CSC) to provide more 
joined-up services. Since its inception the CSC has brought together an increased 
range of services to customers through the contact centre, on-line services, face to 
face and payments (formerly cashiers) in one location and over extended hours of 
operation. This has been completed with minimal disruption to both service provision 
and adverse effects to overall performance. 

Now that the first CAS strategy has been completed there is a need for more 
fundamental change to reflect the changing needs of customers and the changes 
in society as a whole. The change will need to be driven by innovation at all levels 
and in all ways – people, processes, and technology. We need to develop multiple 
ways for customers to access our services. These channels will harness technology to 
improve the speed and flexibility of service provision. Services that are provided in 
partnership should also be developed to allow greater flexibility and ease of access.  

We need to undertake further work collaboratively with internal and external 
partners e.g. Cambridge Citizen Advice Bureau, to explore front line customer 
service improvements. We also need to consider the options for shared services with 
other partners including the County Council and South Cambridgeshire District 
Council. 

Document:  Customer Management Strategy  Page 3 of 20 
Author: Jonathan James 
Date: June 2012 Page 11



Document:  Customer Management Strategy  Page 4 of 20 
Author: Jonathan James 
Date: June 2012

1.1 Customer Access Strategy 2011 -2014

This new strategy outlines the Council’s vision for customer service over the next three 
years. The strategy has been designed to be a “high level” document setting out the 
overarching framework for customer service in Cambridge City. It builds on the 
implementation of the first Customer Access Strategy (CAS) and the continued 
development of services in the Customer Service Centre (CSC) over the last three 
years to provide more joined-up services.  

The strategy aims to put the customer first – at the heart of everything the Council 
does. It recognises the importance of the customers’ needs in the City, which is 
diverse and tolerant, values activities, which bring people together and where 
everyone feels they have a stake in the community. The strategy builds on the 
Councils vision for the city, where people matter, is a good place to live, learn and 
work and we care for the planet. It also includes our revised customer service 
standards for the Council. 

A key consideration in the development of and the implementation of our strategy is 
that the structure and organisation of the Council are not important to customers 
trying to access Council services - rather the ease of accessibility, quality and speed 
of response is what counts. In essence, this strategy and its associated projects and 
initiatives aim to continue the improvement in the quality of customer experience, 
initiated in the first CAS.  

In continuing to improve how we work we will review our services to ensure that they 
are designed with our customers’ wishes and needs in mind and also offer value for 
money. The Council has an ambitious programme of service reviews and other 
service changes to ensure our services are focussed on understanding and meeting 
customer needs, delivering high quality services in the context of policy and 
legislative changes, and rising or changing demands from residents.  All of which 
must be done within the (shrinking) resources available.    The strategy impacts on 
everyone from the park rangers, planners and refuse crews to those working in the 
Corn Exchange, customer contact centre staff and public protection officers. 

This strategic document sets out: 

 ! One Council Approach: Whichever route a customer chooses to contact the 
council, they will receive a consistent level of customer care.  

 ! The improvement in service delivery and choice of communication channels that 
customers can expect to experience over the next 3 years. 

 ! The priority areas for us to focus on to be able to deliver this change.  

 ! How we will manage the change. 

 ! An action plan for implementing change required within each priority area. 

The main principle will be to maintain and implement a service design and delivery 
strategy, which improves the quality of council services, creates significant take-up 

Page 12



Document:  Customer Management Strategy  Page 5 of 20 
Author: Jonathan James 
Date: June 2012

by electronic channels and results in cost savings. The principle is predicated on the 
idea that a high quality service will meet customer need and be efficient to run.

2.0 What difference will the strategy make to customers? 

Our aim is for all customers to experience: 

 ! Confidence in the Council’s ability to deliver to what it promises. 

 ! Transparency of what services the Council provides. 

 ! Being able to track where they are in a process and the resolution delivery 
time. 

 ! Courteous and friendly attitude from all Council representatives. 

 ! A sense of one Council working for them, not them working through 
several Council departments. 

 ! Increased opportunities to choose the way they would like to contact, 
transact and communicate with the Council. 

 ! Multiple ways of engaging with the services of both the council and the 
rest of the public and voluntary sector. 

 ! Increasing value for money in service provision. 

 ! Greater influence on how services are delivered. 

The strategies overall objectives are:  

1. Value our customers  

2. Improve customer satisfaction 

3. Through consultation and feedback listen to our customers and respond 

4. Deliver better access - more convenient, easier and quicker  

5. Customers serve themselves where possible 

Page 13



3.0 What are the key themes of this strategy?

This strategy will focus on the five key themes: 

1. Customer channel management 
2. Customer choice and control 
3. Engaging with our customers 
4. Marketing products and services 
5. Leadership 

Below is a summary of each theme and why it is a priority for delivering excellent 
customer service. 

3.1 Customer Channel management

We recognise through the Citizen Survey that customers and residents will continue 
to want to contact us by phone and in person at the customer contact centre.  

These key channels will continue to be invested in but we plan to develop multiple 
ways for customers to access our services so people have greater choice. These 
channels will harness what technology we can offer to improve the speed and 
flexibility of service provision. Services that are provided in partnership will also be 
developed to allow greater flexibility and ease of access. Priority areas will have to 
deliver: 

 ! New electronic channel options – e.g. (SMS) text messaging and social 
networking. 

 ! Incentives to self-service where it is appropriate e.g. Council Tax online and 
automated cashiering machines 

 ! Integrated channels with partners where joint services are provided e.g. 
Cambridge Citizen Advice Bureau. 

Customer Service Centre 

We will use the Customer Service Centre as the primary driver for change, improving 
the quality, consistency and accessibility of services we provide to customers. As the 
Council continues to focus on service improvements, further economies and 
efficiencies will follow as more services are taken on board accordingly. 

Equality and diversity 

The Council adopts a design for all approach where all customer needs are met 
irrespective of age, gender, disability, ethnic origin, race, religion or geographical 
location. We provide multiple access channels, together with the provision of multi 

Document:  Customer Management Strategy  Page 6 of 20 
Author: Jonathan James 
Date: June 2012 Page 14



Document:  Customer Management Strategy  Page 7 of 20 
Author: Jonathan James 
Date: June 2012

agency, joined up services working closely with other councils, agencies and 
charities.  In this way, we hope to make it as simple as we can for a customer to 
request and receive a service.  

Cambridge City Council believes in the dignity of all people and their right to 
respect and equality of opportunity.  We value the strength that comes with 
difference and the positive contribution that diversity brings to our city. 

Managing diversity in service delivery is about providing appropriate services, 
according to need, for everyone in the City. We aim to offer high quality services by 
recognising the diversity of our customers and acting to ensure that individual needs 
are met. All our reception facilities are fully accessible to people with disabilities, 
customers who use languages other than English, and those who might otherwise 
find it difficult to access services.  

As a service provider, we will ensure that: 

- service users receive fair, sensitive and equal treatment  

- services are relevant and responsive to the changing and diverse needs of our 
local population 

- services, buildings and information are fully accessible, particularly to those 
groups or individuals who face disadvantage or discrimination 

3.2 Customer choice and control

Customers will be able to experience greater choice and control in the services they 
receive. To improve the delivery and responsiveness of council services to our 
customers we need to: 

1. Design and deliver services around customers’ choices and needs. Customer 
requirements must be at the heart of the design process - usability and 
accessibility through multiple devices should be central to the design of 
services. 

2. Develop and maintain a set of measurable, one-council performance 
standards for customer service, including complaints handling. 

3. Widen the choice of access channels for customers, and improve 
performance but still focus on telephone contact as the most popular 
contact method as identified by the citizen survey.  

4. Promote customer self-service and cheaper channels through effective 
communication and by making them easier to use, to deliver significant 
efficiency and quality improvements. 

The council will need to manage a migration plan, which progressively moves 
customers to cheaper channels and a lower cost per transaction as shown in the 
diagram below. This will need to be undertaken whilst maintaining or improving the 
quality of the service. 

Page 15



The council has a unique opportunity to harness this shift in how people 
communicate to its advantage, as encouraging people to shift to different channels 
can bring substantial savings. The table below shows the industry standard costs per 
transaction incurred by local authorities for different contact channels. 

Channel     Average cost per transaction 

Face to face      £14 
Telephone (through call centre)   £4 
Self service       20p 
Web       17p 

Note: Average costs based on data gathered by SOCITM. 

As demonstrated there are substantial differences between the costs associated 
with different channels. The average face-to-face transactions cost £14 for the 
council to handle, while the average website transaction (providing the system is 
fully integrated and automated) costs on average just 17p. 

Trying to change people’s behaviour so that they use cheaper channels when 
interacting with the council is a key challenge.  Some behaviours are easy to 
influence, and change can potentially come about naturally, without the need for 
the completely redesigning of services and processes. We also have the opportunity 
to influence behaviour through creating an ideal customer journey, which we 
believe will suit the needs of our customers.  Along with other tools Lean business 
transformation is being used to this end. Lean provides a key resource in creating 
more efficient ways of delivering services and ensuring that they are configured 
around improving value for the customer. They focus on identifying and eliminating 
waste processes, so that improved value and service can be achieved. 

Document:  Customer Management Strategy  Page 8 of 20 
Author: Jonathan James 
Date: June 2012

It is however unrealistic to assume that we will be able to change the behaviour of 
all of our customers, for every different service we offer. For some, certain behaviours 

Page 16



may be deeply ingrained, and therefore, any attempts we make to change this will 
be of limited use unless we understand what the customer need is. In theory, if we 
are able to save costs by changing the behaviour of those who we know we can 
change, these costs could then be allocated to services and customers who most 
need them.

“No-one is ever going to move to a channel or service that is harder to use or less beneficial” 

Colum Joyce, Global Electronic Business Strategy Manager, DHL  

New channels produce greater choice for customers. Understanding the needs and 
preferences of customers is vital if these channels are to be successfully exploited by 
the Council. Customer preferences vary considerably by age, socio-demographic 
group, and location. Universal preferences cannot be assumed and therefore, to 
ensure accessibility, and inclination to use a channel, the Council will need to find 
out the preferences of our customers in relation to the services and the types of 
transactions required. Demanding customers seek services that are accessible and 
easy to use, and the Council is committed to meeting this expectation efficiently.  

3.3 Engaging with our customer 

The city council engages with its customers in a variety of ways and seeks advice, 
information and opinions about strategies, policies and services. These are used to 
inform the Councils decision making and help design good services.  

On going engagement and feedback is important to identify needs and to develop 
services. Different methods are used to engage with our customer. The ChYpPS 
service for example builds 1-2-1 relationships  and trust with its customers by working 
closely with them on a informal and common level, while City Homes has residents 
forums and mystery shopping exercises to identify how it is performing. Customer 
feedback and satisfaction data will be crucial in shaping services to the needs of our 
customers. The CSC for example will introduce feedback mechanisms at every point 
of customer interaction using the Gov-metric feedback system. 

Feedback from our customers is important in shaping our services to meet customers 
needs and can help us to continually improve the services we offer. The Council 
wants to be open and honest, that it cares about providing good services, and that 
it genuinely values feedback on its services. 

Our aim is to: 

 ! Capitalise on best practice in handling positive and negative customer 
feedback in all service areas 

 ! Develop integrated complaints and representations handling processes 
across Directorates using the customer services CRM, 

 ! Embed a pro-active, problem-solving culture across the Council through 
organisational learning and workforce development 

 ! Enable more consistent and effective complaints and representations 
monitoring across all Directorates, linking across to the corporate 
performance management framework 

Document:  Customer Management Strategy  Page 9 of 20 
Author: Jonathan James 
Date: June 2012 Page 17



Document:  Customer Management Strategy  Page 10 of 20 
Author: Jonathan James 
Date: June 2012

 ! Consider compliments, comments and complaints as part of a broader 
commitment to the development of the Council’s customer care agenda 

We must have access to timely information about our customers, their needs and 
preferences. Having a regular dialogue with our customers will help us shape the 
services that they want, in a way that they require it. This priority area will deliver: 

1. A programme of diverse consultation methods. 
2. Feedback mechanisms at every point of customer access at the CSC using 

Govmetric. 
3. A ‘customer insight’ programme making use of consumer and demographic 

data sources to target specific services to customers e.g. council tax direct 
debit. 

Relationships with our customers and enforcement 

The Council provides many and varied services and carries out a range of functions 
which involve aspects of enforcement.  This is one of the principle functions of any 
government service, to serve and protect by the application of laws [in addition to 
other advisory roles].   

Maintaining good customer relationships is important but some times we have to 
take action against our customers due to non-compliance or breaches of council 
permissions, policies, statutory laws and byelaws e.g. benefit fraud, planning and 
building control, environmental health, etc.  

The council have powers to enforce some current legislation which can mean that 
the council can issue warnings, statutory notices, fixed penalty notices, and even 
court proceedings against alleged offenders. All of our enforcement actions are 
undertaken in accordance with the Enforcement Concordat and the council’s 
Enforcement Policy.  

The law sometimes requires the Council or its staff to do certain things in certain 
ways, which can appear confusing to others. Where anybody is uncertain what they 
are being asked to do or why, there should always be an opportunity to have it 
explained in clear and simple language by a member of staff. 

Where better enforcement is possible through working with others, such as other 
Councils, enforcing agencies, or the business community, these links will be formed 
and developed. Where there is a right of appeal against an enforcement activity, 
this will be clearly explained with the opportunity for informal appeal to a senior 
officer. The Council also has a corporate complaints procedure if residents and 
businesses are unhappy with how they have been treated.  

As a caring Council we will listen to the views of its residents, businesses and others in 
promoting fair and appropriate enforcement to encourage economic growth and 
prosperity and the enjoyment of personal freedoms without unacceptable risk of 
harm, whilst protecting those in need. 

3.4 Marketing products and services

All customers should be aware of the products and services that the Council can 
offer. Information can be gathered at the Guildhall, Tourist information, Mandela 
House and area Housing offices, community centres as well as online information on 

Page 18



Document:  Customer Management Strategy  Page 11 of 20 
Author: Jonathan James 
Date: June 2012

the website, twitter face book etc. Information is also published in newspapers and 
direct to the resident’s houses in newsletters and with council tax information.  

Effective marketing can help to explain and promote what the City Council is doing 
across the city. It can also be helpful in changing behaviours and attitudes and 
helping to increase public confidence. Good marketing is also needed to make sure 
that residents can clearly identify the services that are available to support them. 

Simply making services available through new channels does not necessarily mean 
that customers will use them. Behaviour can be influenced by making people aware 
of the value added to their service experience when using new channels and thus 
making take-up more likely. The key to influencing behaviour positively is to market 
the advantages of changing – or indeed the disadvantages of not changing - to the 
customer. Positive drivers need to be identified and used since inertia is often the 
most powerful shackle preventing behavioural change. 

Information about these services and products should be transparent and easily 
accessible. This priority area will deliver: 

1. Marketing that demonstrates a one council approach for all. 
2. Developed information feeds across the whole council to advertise and 

promote services harnessing existing technology, e.g. Website, Twitter, 
Facebook, Youtube and Flickr. 

3. Promotion to customers of the benefits of self service and online services. 

3.5 Leadership:

The council is committed to putting the customer at the heart of everything it does 
and developing a culture that demonstrates positive behaviours during every 
contact with our customers.  

We will prioritise customer focus at all levels throughout our organisation by 
embedding this focus within our Organisational Development Strategy and induction 
process and we will evaluate individual and team commitment using our 
performance management system.  

We will empower, train and encourage all of our staff to actively promote what we 
do and feel able to deliver the customer focused culture that we want to provide 
within the council. Embedding best practice throughout the council will begin with 
customer awareness workshops for all staff to ensure consistent values are shared 
and understood.  

Finally we need strong leadership to pursue good customer service and to embed 
the ‘One Council’ approach for customers. This priority area will: 

1. Continue with the corporate leadership programme that focuses on 
improving corporate capability when dealing with customers and develops 
the ethos of a one Council approach. 

2. Identify and develop ‘Customer First’ champions to provide continued 
challenge and stimulus throughout the Council. 

Page 19



Document:  Customer Management Strategy  Page 12 of 20 
Author: Jonathan James 
Date: June 2012

3. Regular staff promotional and service events to activity keep the ‘customer 
experience’ at the forefront of everything we do. 

The Councils Change programme

The Council’s vision is focussed on people, place and planet in all we do, and 
everyone should be able to see how they support those goals. To deliver this 
ambitious vision for Cambridge, the Council will have to keep changing, to ensure its 
services are equipped to deliver the vision with fewer resources.  

To help our services meet this challenge, we need to change the way we do things 
in the Council.  We cannot afford to do all the things we’ve done previously, in the 
way we’ve always done them.  The Council has changed a lot already in recent 
years, for instance introducing the customer service centre, and implementing the 
corporate restructure, by removing the client contractor split in City Services. 

Over the coming years the council will be implementing its key change programme 
which includes four strands: 

Culture change - recognising that we need to keep changing, and building a more 
flexible, customer-focussed approach to how we do things, working as “one 
council”. 

Bureaucracy busting - recognising that some aspects of some of our policies and 
procedures slow down the pace at which we can make decisions or changes, and 
that some of this may be unnecessary

Managing service change - ensuring our services are focussed on understanding 
and meeting customer needs, delivering high quality services in the context of policy 
and legislative changes, and rising or changing demands from residents.  

Modern Business Environment - making sure that the council’s infrastructure, its 
buildings, systems and processes, are modern and flexible and focussed on 
efficiency, effectiveness and sustainability. 

Page 20



Document:  Customer Management Strategy  Page 13 of 20 
Author: Jonathan James 
Date: June 2012

4.0 Customer Charter 

The customer service charter will be adopted for use across the Council. It is explicit 
about the standards our customers can expect to experience when contacting us. 
The charter will be regularly reviewed to reflect the changing needs of our customers 
and the opportunities that we will have in the future to improve delivery due to the 
improved use of technology.

At the charter’s heart is our commitment to improving the quality of life of local 
people. We strive to get it right, first time, every time. We believe that customers have 
the right to know what level of service they can expect from us all the time - even 
when we fall short of the very high standards we have set ourselves. 

We will: 

 ! Improve our speed of response in handling enquiries from customers by ensuring 
our information is in a format that can be easily accessed and understood. 

 ! Maintain a single point of contact, open at times that, reflect customer need and 
at a cost, which is suitable and acceptable to our customers. 

 ! Provide responsive, reliable, satisfying services that meet the expectations of the 
residents and customers. 

 ! Provide a consistent, co-ordinated and proactive service. Customer Service 
employees will be able to identify if the customer needs extra help or advice, will 
help resolve problems and take personal responsibility for them. 

 ! Make it more convenient, easier and quicker for the residents of Cambridge City 
to deal with us.

 ! Make sure that the customer experience is consistent – whether in a local area 
housing office, interaction with a Park Ranger or at the Guildhall reception. 

 ! Enable customers to serve themselves if they choose to and encourage more to 
choose to by making this an easy and efficient option. 

 ! Treat our customers with respect, courtesy and friendliness, being receptive to 
customer feedback.  

 ! Enable our customers to provide feedback easily, through customer surveys, 
focus groups, feedback, consultation and improved complaint handling. 

 ! Ensure our employees are skilled and able to provide high quality customer care. 

 ! Partner with other Council departments and organisations to achieve a joined up 
programme of work, including sharing of learning and best practice to ensure a 
seamless Customer Service approach. 

Page 21



Document:  Customer Management Strategy  Page 14 of 20 
Author: Jonathan James 
Date: June 2012

Quality of Service

We already set measurable standards for the timeliness of response for complaints 
and freedom of information requests. This strategy now brings all standards under 
one document to include all forms of customer contact including phone calls, e-
communications and personal callers.  Our customer service standards are as 
follows: 

Contacting us in person 

 ! We aim to see customers in the Customer Service Centre, Housing Area offices 
or Guildhall reception within 10 minutes from arriving. 

 ! Waiting areas will be comfortable and tidy and facilities for children will be 
provided in the Customer Service Centre at Mandela House. 

 ! All customer facing staff will wear identification badges. 

 ! Opening hours will be clearly displayed. 

 ! Information will be kept up-to-date and will be well presented. 

 ! Facilities for people with a disability will be available at public receptions. 

 ! Private interview facilities will be provided when necessary. 
 ! Customer comment cards or feedback screens will be available for you to let 

us know what you thought of the service you received. 

Contacting us on the telephone 

 ! We will aim to answer all telephone calls within 12 seconds of the first ring. 

 ! When answering the telephone, staff will clearly state their name and section. 

 ! The staff member who answers your call will aim to answer your enquiry there 
and then. If we cannot answer your enquiry or transfer you to the right person 
straight away, we will take your details and make sure someone contacts you. 

 ! When returning your calls, staff will clearly state their name, their section and 
their reason for calling. 

Contacting us by letter or fax 

 ! If you contact us by letter or fax we will endeavour to respond fully within 7 
working days unless, for example, your query is complex or involves several 
service units. In this case we will acknowledge your letter within 5 working days 
of receipt and let you know who is looking after your query, what action we 
are taking and when a reply can be expected. 

 ! The response you receive will clearly address your enquiry, but we will include 
contact details if this is not the case or you have any further enquiries. 

Contacting us by email 

 ! We aim to respond to all emails received by our Customer Service Centre 
within 4 working hours. 

Page 22



Document:  Customer Management Strategy  Page 15 of 20 
Author: Jonathan James 
Date: June 2012

 ! The response you receive will clearly address your enquiry, but we will include 
contact details if this is not the case or you have any further enquiries. 

 ! All other council services will respond fully to your email within 7 working days, 
unless you receive an ‘out of office’ notification to your email advising that 
the staff member is unavailable. The notification will include contact details 
for urgent enquiries and a date when the staff member will be available to 
reply.   

Freedom of Information requests 

 ! We will supply the information under FOI within 20 working days, except in 
exceptional circumstances. In such circumstances we will contact you to let 
you know why it is going to take longer than 20 days to collate the information 
requested, or if there are reasons why it is not appropriate to release all the 
information requested. We will explain why we are not releasing the 
information, if that is the case, and explain the appeal process. 

Complaints 

 ! We aim to reply to all complaints within 7 working days. If we need longer, we 
will tell you why. We will also let you know who is dealing with your complaint 
and when we will reply.  

 ! If you are not happy with the response you can ask for the complaint to be 
referred to the independent complaints investigator, who will investigate the 
complaint for you. 

Facebook and Twitter

 ! We aim to respond to posts within 1 working day. 

Translation and interpretation 

 ! If English is not your first language and you need some help in understanding  
any of the services the Council delivers, we offer telephone or Face-to-Face 
language interpretation services. 

Other defined service standards exist for specific services across the Council 
including the Housing Support service, Housing Options and Advice service and Sport 
and Fitness services. 

Page 23



Document:  Customer Management Strategy  Page 16 of 20 
Author: Jonathan James 
Date: June 2012

5.0 How will the strategy be delivered?

The success of this strategy will be determined not only by consultation and 
feedback we receive from customers and the increased measures of performance 
but by the effectiveness of its dissemination and understanding throughout the 
Council. 

The key actions required to be undertaken to deliver this strategy include: 

 ! Customer Service Champions will be created across the organisation and will 
have authority to be sufficiently influential to encourage both senior 
management and staff at all levels to make sure that their working practices 
support both the resident and corporate needs, ahead of their departmental 
needs.  

 ! Customer awareness workshops and a customer care training and development 
programme will be introduced. The customer awareness workshop will be rolled-
out to all staff. New employees will receive customer awareness training as part 
of their Corporate Induction to the Council.  

 ! All employees will be provided with a summary of the strategy and they will be 
expected to demonstrate that they are contributing towards the Council’s vision 
for customer service.  

 ! In order to make sure that services are delivered in-line with best practice, we will 
publish our comprehensive range of service standards. The Customer Charter 
and service standards detailed in section 4.0 have provide the benchmark 
against which all council staff need to deliver services.  

 ! Performance targets within the CSC have been developed with the aim to 
continuously improve customer service.  We will monitor customer satisfaction 
with a goal of increasing this year on year. 

 ! Design customer interactions from a customer perspective using business process 
reviews e.g. Lean Thinking*. 

*Lean is a method that focuses on service provision in the most efficient manner by improving flow and eliminating 
waste from processes. By undertaking process reviews across targeted service areas the customer interface and the 
supporting back office processes can be streamlined. Each process needs to be assessed for its added value to the 
customer, if it is found to have more non added value than added value, then this is classed as “waste” within the 
process and we will look to eliminate this to provide a more efficient and customer focussed service. A programme of 
reviews will be arranged to deliver these improvements.

Page 24



6.
0 

Im
p

ro
ve

m
e

n
t P

la
n

 

Pr
io

rit
y 

A
re

a
 

O
u

tc
o

m
e

A
c

tio
n

s
W

h
e

n
Le

a
d

Le
a

d
e

rs
h

ip
Le

a
d

e
rs

 w
ill

 p
ro

m
o

te
 a

 o
n

e
 

c
o

u
n

c
il 

a
p

p
ro

a
c

h
 fo

r c
u

st
o

m
e

rs
. 

C
u

st
o

m
e

r e
th

o
s 

is 
e

m
b

e
d

d
e

d
 

a
c

ro
ss

 C
o

u
n

c
il 

Ef
fic

ie
n

t 
a

n
d

 c
u

st
o

m
e

r f
o

c
u

ss
e

d
 

se
rv

ic
e

s

C
re

a
te

 a
n

d
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 a

 t
e

a
m

 
o

f c
u

st
o

m
e

r c
h

a
m

p
io

n
s 

to
 

p
ra

c
tic

e
 a

n
d

 d
e

ve
lo

p
 

c
o

n
sis

te
n

tly
 h

ig
h

 q
u

a
lit

y 
c

u
st

o
m

e
r s

e
rv

ic
e

 w
ith

in
 t

h
e

ir 
se

rv
ic

e
 a

re
a

s.
 

U
n

d
e

rt
a

ke
 a

 c
o

n
tin

u
o

u
s 

c
u

st
o

m
e

r s
e

rv
ic

e
 p

ro
m

o
tio

n
 

c
a

m
p

a
ig

n
 fo

r s
ta

ff
 u

sin
g

 
p

o
st

e
rs

, n
e

w
sle

tt
e

rs
, e

ve
n

ts
 

e
tc

. 

D
e

ve
lo

p
 a

n
d

 im
p

le
m

e
n

t 
a

 
st

a
ff

 c
u

st
o

m
e

r s
e

rv
ic

e
 

a
w

a
re

n
e

ss
 p

ro
g

ra
m

m
e

, 
w

h
ic

h
 e

n
h

a
n

c
e

s 
o

u
r 

c
a

p
a

c
ity

 t
o

 d
e

liv
e

r s
u

st
a

in
e

d
 

h
ig

h
 q

u
a

lit
y 

c
u

st
o

m
e

r 
se

rv
ic

e
. D

e
sig

n
e

d
 a

n
d

 ru
n

 b
y 

C
u

st
o

m
e

r C
h

a
m

p
io

n
’s

 a
c

ro
ss

 
th

e
 C

o
u

n
c

il.
 

Im
p

le
m

e
n

ta
tio

n
 o

f c
u

st
o

m
e

r 
Le

a
n

 p
ro

c
e

ss
 re

vi
e

w
s 

a
c

ro
ss

 
six

 s
e

rv
ic

e
 a

re
a

s.
 

O
c

to
b

e
r 2

01
2 

St
a

rt
 A

u
g

u
st

 2
01

2 

N
o

ve
m

b
e

r 2
10

2 

Ju
ly

  2
01

3 

Se
n

io
r

m
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

te
a

m
 

Se
n

io
r

m
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t 

te
a

m
 a

n
d

 H
e

a
d

 o
f 

C
u

st
o

m
e

r S
e

rv
ic

e
s 

C
u

st
o

m
e

r 
c

h
a

m
p

io
n

s 
a

n
d

 
H

e
a

d
 o

f C
u

st
o

m
e

r 
Se

rv
ic

e
s 

H
e

a
d

s 
o

f S
e

rv
ic

e
 

Page 25



D
o

c
u

m
e

n
t: 

 
C

u
st

o
m

e
r 

M
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t S

tr
a

te
g

y 
v8

  
Pa

g
e

 1
8 

o
f 2

0 
A

u
th

o
r:

 
Jo

n
a

th
a

n
 J

a
m

e
s 

D
a

te
:

M
A

RC
H

 2
01

2

En
g

a
g

in
g

 w
ith

 O
u

r 
C

u
st

o
m

e
rs

W
e

 h
a

ve
 a

c
c

e
ss

 t
o

 t
im

e
ly

 
in

fo
rm

a
tio

n
 a

b
o

u
t 

o
u

r c
u

st
o

m
e

rs
, 

th
e

ir 
n

e
e

d
s 

a
n

d
 p

re
fe

re
n

c
e

s.
  

W
e

 h
a

ve
 a

 re
g

u
la

r d
ia

lo
g

u
e

 w
ith

 
c

u
st

o
m

e
rs

, w
h

ic
h

 g
iv

e
s 

u
s 

a
n

 
in

sig
h

t 
th

a
t 

h
e

lp
s 

u
s 

sh
a

p
e

 a
n

d
 

im
p

ro
ve

 t
h

e
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s 
w

e
 p

ro
vi

d
e

 
to

 c
u

st
o

m
e

rs
. 

C
SC

 -
In

tr
o

d
u

c
e

 fe
e

d
b

a
c

k 
m

e
c

h
a

n
ism

s 
a

t 
e

ve
ry

 p
o

in
t 

o
f 

c
u

st
o

m
e

r i
n

te
ra

c
tio

n
 u

sin
g

 G
o

v-
m

e
tr

ic
. 

Y
e

a
r o

n
 y

e
a

r r
ise

 in
 c

u
st

o
m

e
r 

sa
tis

fa
c

tio
n

. 

Fa
c

e
 t

o
 fa

c
e

 a
lre

a
d

y 
in

tr
o

d
u

c
e

d
 

Ph
o

n
e

s 
b

y 
Ju

ly
 2

01
2 

W
e

b
 b

y 
A

u
g

u
st

 2
01

2 

Em
a

ils
 b

y 
Se

p
te

m
b

e
r 

20
12

M
a

rc
h

  2
01

3 

H
e

a
d

 o
f C

u
st

o
m

e
r 

Se
rv

ic
e

s 

Se
rv

ic
e

 M
a

n
a

g
e

rs
  

C
u

st
o

m
e

r 
C

h
a

n
n

e
l 

m
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t a

n
d

 
C

h
o

ic
e

 a
n

d
 C

o
n

tr
o

l 

W
e

 h
a

ve
 m

u
lti

p
le

 w
a

ys
 fo

r 
c

u
st

o
m

e
rs

 t
o

 a
c

c
e

ss
 o

u
r s

e
rv

ic
e

s.
 

Th
e

se
 c

h
a

n
n

e
ls,

 w
ith

 t
h

e
 s

u
p

p
o

rt
 

o
f t

e
c

h
n

o
lo

g
y,

 p
ro

vi
d

e
 fa

st
 a

n
d

 
fle

xi
b

le
 s

e
rv

ic
e

 p
ro

vi
sio

n
. 

W
h

e
re

 a
p

p
ro

p
ria

te
 p

ro
vi

d
e

 
se

rv
ic

e
s 

in
 p

a
rt

n
e

rs
h

ip
 t

o
 a

llo
w

 
g

re
a

te
r f

le
xi

b
ili

ty
 a

n
d

 e
a

se
 o

f 
a

c
c

e
ss

. 

D
e

ve
lo

p
 S

M
S 

a
n

d
 s

o
c

ia
l m

e
d

ia
 

se
rv

ic
e

 p
ro

vi
sio

n
 a

s 
a

p
p

ro
p

ria
te

. 

10
%

 in
c

re
a

se
d

 t
a

ke
 u

p
 o

f e
m

a
ils

, 
fa

c
e

-b
o

o
k 

tw
itt

e
r ,

 w
e

b
 h

its
 o

ve
r 

th
e

 y
e

a
r. 

 

In
tr

o
d

u
c

e
 s

e
lf 

se
rv

ic
e

 p
a

ym
e

n
t 

m
a

c
h

in
e

 a
t 

M
a

n
d

e
la

 H
o

u
se

. 

In
tr

o
d

u
c

e
 s

e
lf 

h
e

lp
 in

fo
rm

a
tio

n
  

ki
o

sk
s 

a
t 

A
re

a
 H

o
u

sin
g

 o
ff

ic
e

s.
 

A
lre

a
d

y 
st

a
rt

e
d

 

A
p

ril
 2

01
3 

Se
p

te
m

b
e

r 2
01

2 

Ja
n

u
a

ry
 2

01
3 

H
e

a
d

 o
f C

u
st

o
m

e
r  

Se
rv

ic
e

s 

H
e

a
d

 o
f C

u
st

o
m

e
r  

Se
rv

ic
e

s 

H
e

a
d

 o
f C

u
st

o
m

e
r  

Se
rv

ic
e

s 

H
e

a
d

 o
f C

u
st

o
m

e
r  

Se
rv

ic
e

s 

Page 26



D
o

c
u

m
e

n
t: 

 
C

u
st

o
m

e
r 

M
a

n
a

g
e

m
e

n
t S

tr
a

te
g

y 
v8

  
Pa

g
e

 1
9 

o
f 2

0 
A

u
th

o
r:

 
Jo

n
a

th
a

n
 J

a
m

e
s 

D
a

te
:

M
A

RC
H

 2
01

2

G
re

a
te

r w
o

rk
in

g
 w

ith
 C

C
A

B 
in

c
lu

d
in

g
 d

e
b

t 
a

d
vi

se
rs

 b
a

se
d

 a
t 

M
a

n
d

e
la

 H
o

u
se

In
c

re
a

se
 w

e
b

 t
ra

ff
ic

 b
y 

10
%

 
fo

llo
w

in
g

 in
tr

o
d

u
c

tio
n

 o
f t

h
e

 n
e

w
 

w
e

b
 s

ite
 

N
o

ve
m

b
e

r 2
01

2 

N
o

ve
m

b
e

r 2
01

3 

H
e

a
d

 o
f C

u
st

o
m

e
r  

Se
rv

ic
e

s 

H
e

a
d

 o
f c

o
rp

o
ra

te
 

st
ra

te
g

y 

M
a

rk
e

tin
g

 a
n

d
 s

e
rv

ic
e

s 
O

u
r c

u
st

o
m

e
rs

 a
re

 a
w

a
re

 o
f t

h
e

 
p

ro
d

u
c

ts
 a

n
d

 s
e

rv
ic

e
s 

th
a

t 
th

e
 

C
o

u
n

c
il 

c
a

n
 o

ff
e

r a
n

d
 t

h
e

 
st

a
n

d
a

rd
s 

th
e

y 
w

ill
 re

c
e

iv
e

.  

In
fo

rm
a

tio
n

 a
b

o
u

t 
th

e
se

 s
e

rv
ic

e
s 

a
n

d
 p

ro
d

u
c

ts
 a

re
 t

ra
n

sp
a

re
n

t 
a

n
d

 e
a

sil
y 

a
c

c
e

ss
ib

le
.  

Se
rv

ic
e

 s
ta

n
d

a
rd

s 
p

u
b

lis
h

e
d

 a
n

d
 

p
e

rio
d

ic
a

lly
 re

vi
e

w
e

d
 

D
e

ve
lo

p
 t

h
e

 c
a

p
a

b
ili

ty
 fo

r 
m

a
n

a
g

e
rs

 t
o

 a
n

a
ly

se
 c

u
st

o
m

e
r 

a
n

d
 d

e
m

o
g

ra
p

h
ic

 d
a

ta
 u

sin
g

 
ES

D
 t

o
o

lk
it.

Pu
b

lis
h

e
d

 b
y 

A
u

g
u

st
 

20
12

M
a

n
a

g
e

rs
 c

o
u

rs
e

s 
ru

n
 

a
n

d
 im

p
le

m
e

n
te

d
 b

y 
A

p
ril

 2
01

3 

H
e

a
d

 o
f c

u
st

o
m

e
r 

se
rv

ic
e

s 

Se
rv

ic
e

 M
a

n
a

g
e

rs
 

Page 27



6.0 Document Control Page 

Document Identification

Title : Customer Access Strategy 

Document Ref. : CMS v8 Committee Version 

CI Ref. :  

Version : 8

Date : 25/05/12

History

Version Date Author Description

V1 12/01/11 JJ First draft for discussion 

V3 16/05/11 JJ Version 3 

V4 23/09/11 JJ Version 4 

V6 22/01/12 JJ Version 6 Final draft 

V7 4/02/12 JJ Version 7 Final draft 

V8 1/03/12 JJ Version 8 SLT draft 

V8 25/05/12 JJ Committee Version 

Any comments, queries or change control requests about this document 

Should be addressed to: Jonathan James  

Page 28



1

   
   

   
   

   
F

IN
A

L
 

C
am

b
ri

d
g

e 
C

it
y 

C
o

u
n

ci
l

E
q

u
al

it
y 

Im
p

ac
t 

A
ss

es
sm

en
t 

– 
A

ct
io

n
 p

la
n

 

W
h

at
 is

 t
h

is
 t

em
p

la
te

 f
o

r?
 

C
om

pl
et

in
g 

th
is

 te
m

pl
at

e 
w

ill
 h

el
p 

yo
u 

to
 th

in
k 

ab
ou

t w
ha

t t
he

 im
pa

ct
 o

f e
xi

st
in

g 
or

 n
ew

 s
tr

at
eg

ie
s,

 p
ol

ic
ie

s,
 p

la
ns

, p
ro

je
ct

s,
co

nt
ra

ct
s,

 m
aj

or
 c

ha
ng

es
 in

 s
er

vi
ce

s 
or

 d
ec

is
io

ns
 m

ay
 b

e 
on

 s
er

vi
ce

 u
se

rs
, r

es
id

en
ts

 a
nd

 s
ta

ff.
  I

t w
ill

 h
el

p 
yo

u 
to

 d
el

iv
er

 b
et

te
r

se
rv

ic
es

 b
y 

m
ak

in
g 

su
re

 th
at

, a
s 

fa
r 

as
 p

os
si

bl
e,

 th
ey

 r
ef

le
ct

 th
e 

ne
ed

s 
of

 a
ll 

ou
r 

ci
tiz

en
s,

 a
nd

 o
f o

ur
 s

ta
ff.

W
h

en
 d

o
 I 

n
ee

d
 t

o
 d

o
 a

n
 E

q
u

al
it

y 
Im

p
ac

t 
A

ss
es

sm
en

t?
 

Y
ou

 o
nl

y 
ne

ed
 to

 d
o 

an
 E

qu
al

ity
 Im

pa
ct

 A
ss

es
sm

en
t i

f y
ou

r 
st

ra
te

gy
, p

ol
ic

y,
 p

la
n,

 p
ro

je
ct

, c
on

tr
ac

t, 
m

aj
or

 c
ha

ng
e 

in
 s

er
vi

ce
 o

r
de

ci
si

on
 is

 r
el

ev
an

t 
to

 e
qu

al
ity

.  
T

he
 ‘r

el
ev

an
ce

 te
st

’ i
n 

th
e 

G
en

er
al

 G
ui

da
nc

e 
no

te
s 

w
ill

 h
el

p 
yo

u 
to

 d
ec

id
e 

w
he

th
er

 y
ou

r 
ac

tiv
ity

 
is

 r
el

ev
an

t t
o 

eq
ua

lit
y.

 T
he

 a
ss

es
sm

en
t i

s 
no

w
 a

 s
in

gl
e 

st
ag

e 
ra

th
er

 th
an

 a
 th

re
e 

st
ag

e 
pr

oc
es

s 
as

 p
re

vi
ou

sl
y.

 

H
o

w
 d

o
 I 

u
se

 t
h

e 
te

m
p

la
te

?
 

T
he

 te
m

pl
at

e 
is

 e
as

y 
to

 u
se

. Y
ou

 d
o 

no
t n

ee
d 

to
 h

av
e 

sp
ec

ia
lis

t ‘
eq

ua
lit

ie
s’

 k
no

w
le

dg
e 

to
 c

om
pl

et
e 

it.
  I

t a
sk

s 
yo

u 
to

 m
ak

e 
ju

dg
em

en
ts

 b
as

ed
 o

n 
ev

id
en

ce
 a

nd
 e

xp
er

ie
nc

e.
 T

he
re

 a
re

 g
ui

da
nc

e 
no

te
s 

to
 h

el
p 

yo
u 

co
m

pl
et

e 
th

is
 te

m
pl

at
e,

 w
hi

ch
 y

ou
 c

an
 

re
fe

r 
to

. Y
ou

 c
an

 a
ls

o 
ge

t a
dv

ic
e 

fr
om

 A
nd

re
w

 L
im

b,
 H

ea
d 

of
 C

or
po

ra
te

 S
tr

at
eg

y 
on

 0
12

23
 4

57
00

4 
or

 e
m

ai
l 

A
nd

re
w

.li
m

b@
ca

m
br

id
ge

.g
ov

.u
k 

or
 fr

om
 y

ou
r 

de
pa

rt
m

en
ta

l E
qu

al
iti

es
 L

in
k 

O
ffi

ce
r.

 

Agenda Item 7

Page 29



2

E
q

u
al

it
y 

Im
p

ac
t 

A
ss

es
sm

en
t 

G
en

er
al

 In
fo

rm
at

io
n

 
1.

 
T

itl
e 

of
 s

tr
at

eg
y,

 p
ol

ic
y,

 p
la

n,
 p

ro
je

ct
, 

co
nt

ra
ct

, m
aj

or
 c

ha
ng

e 
in

 s
er

vi
ce

 o
r 

de
ci

si
on

:
C

am
br

id
ge

 O
ly

m
pi

c 
T

or
ch

 R
el

ay
 

2.
 

W
ha

t i
s 

th
e 

ob
je

ct
iv

e 
or

 p
ur

po
se

 o
f 

th
e 

st
ra

te
gy

, p
ol

ic
y,

 p
la

n,
 p

ro
je

ct
, 

co
nt

ra
ct

, m
aj

or
 c

ha
ng

e 
in

 s
er

vi
ce

 o
r 

de
ci

si
on

?

T
hi

s 
is

 a
n 

op
po

rt
un

ity
 to

 s
ho

w
ca

se
 C

am
br

id
ge

sh
ire

; t
hi

s 
is

 a
 fr

ee
 c

om
m

un
ity

 e
ve

nt
 b

rin
gi

ng
 a

ll 
co

m
m

un
iti

es
 to

ge
th

er
, s

ha
rin

g 
cu

ltu
ra

l e
le

m
en

ts
 w

ith
in

 C
am

br
id

ge
 C

ity
 C

ou
nc

il’
s 

A
rt

s 
S

tr
at

eg
y.

 A
 

lif
et

im
e 

op
po

rt
un

ity
 to

 b
e 

pa
rt

 o
f a

 r
ec

or
de

d 
pi

ec
e 

of
 w

or
ld

 h
is

to
ry

. 

3.
  

W
ho

 w
ill

 b
e 

af
fe

ct
ed

 b
y 

th
is

 s
tr

at
eg

y,
 

po
lic

y,
 p

la
n,

 p
ro

je
ct

, c
on

tr
ac

t, 
m

aj
or

 
ch

an
ge

s 
in

 s
er

vi
ce

s 
or

 d
ec

is
io

n?
 

(P
le

as
e 

tic
k 

th
os

e 
th

at
 a

pp
ly

)

 
  R

es
id

en
ts

 

 
 V

is
ito

rs

 
  S

ta
ff

A
 s

pe
ci

fic
 c

lie
nt

 g
ro

up
 o

r 
gr

ou
ps

 (
pl

ea
se

 
st

at
e)

:
 B

ro
ad

 r
an

ge
 o

f g
ro

up
s 

 W
id

e 
re

ac
hi

ng
 

4.
  

W
ha

t t
yp

e 
of

 s
tr

at
eg

y,
 p

ol
ic

y,
 p

la
n,

 
pr

oj
ec

t, 
co

nt
ra

ct
, m

aj
or

 c
ha

ng
e 

in
 

se
rv

ic
e 

or
 d

ec
is

io
n 

is
 th

is
? 

(P
le

as
e 

tic
k)

 

 
 N

ew

   
 R

ev
is

ed

   
 E

xi
st

in
g 

  

5.
 

R
es

po
ns

ib
le

 d
ep

ar
tm

en
t, 

se
ct

io
n,

 
se

rv
ic

e 
m

an
ag

er
 a

nd
 H

ea
d 

of
 

S
er

vi
ce

.

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t: 

C
om

m
un

ity
 S

er
vi

ce
s 

S
ec

tio
n:

 A
rt

s 
&

 R
ec

re
at

io
n 

S
er

vi
ce

 M
an

ag
er

: E
la

in
e 

M
id

gl
ey

 

H
ea

d 
of

 S
er

vi
ce

: D
eb

bi
e 

K
ay

e 

Page 30



3

6.
 

A
re

 o
th

er
 d

ep
ar

tm
en

ts
 o

r 
pa

rt
ne

rs
 

in
vo

lv
ed

 in
 d

el
iv

er
in

g 
th

is
 s

tr
at

eg
y,

 
po

lic
y,

 p
la

n,
 p

ro
je

ct
, c

on
tr

ac
t, 

m
aj

or
 

ch
an

ge
 in

 s
er

vi
ce

 o
r 

de
ci

si
on

? 

  N
o 

 
  Y

es
 (

pl
ea

se
 g

iv
e 

de
ta

ils
):

C
om

m
un

ity
 D

ev
el

op
m

en
t 

R
ef

us
e 

&
 E

nv
iro

nm
en

t 
S

tr
ee

ts
 &

 O
pe

n 
S

pa
ce

s 
F

in
an

ce
 / 

Le
ga

l /
 P

ro
cu

re
m

en
t 

T
ou

ris
m

 &
 C

ity
 C

en
tr

e 
M

an
ag

em
en

t 

P
ol

ic
e 

&
 e

m
er

ge
nc

y 
se

rv
ic

es
  

LO
C

O
G

C
am

br
id

ge
sh

ire
 C

ou
nt

y 
C

ou
nc

il 
H

ea
lth

 C
ar

e 
P

ro
vi

de
rs

 
C

am
br

id
ge

 &
 D

is
tr

ic
t V

ol
un

te
er

s 
C

en
tr

e
Lo

ca
l T

er
rit

or
ia

l A
rm

y 
(v

ol
un

te
er

s)

Page 31



4

G
at

h
er

in
g

 P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 D
at

a 
7.

 
H

ow
 d

o 
yo

u 
(o

r 
ho

w
 w

ill
 y

ou
) 

m
on

ito
r 

th
e 

im
pa

ct
 o

f t
he

 s
tr

at
eg

y,
 

po
lic

y,
 p

la
n,

 p
ro

je
ct

, c
on

tr
ac

t, 
m

aj
or

 
ch

an
ge

 in
 s

er
vi

ce
 o

r 
de

ci
si

on
? 

(P
le

as
e 

tic
k 

an
y 

th
at

 a
pp

ly
 a

nd
 g

iv
e 

ex
am

pl
es

 e
.g

. b
en

ch
 m

ar
ki

ng
 w

ith
 

th
e 

H
ou

si
ng

 Q
ua

lit
y 

N
et

w
or

k)
 

  P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 in
di

ca
to

rs
/ta

rg
et

s 

 
  B

en
ch

m
ar

ki
ng

 w
ith

 o
th

er
 o

rg
an

is
at

io
ns

 (
lo

ca
l a

ut
ho

rit
y 

co
nt

ac
ts

 a
cr

os
s 

re
gi

on
, D

ai
ly

 N
R

E
 

re
po

rt
s 

of
 o

th
er

 r
el

ay
 e

ve
nt

s,
 v

is
it 

to
 C

he
lte

nh
am

 e
ve

nt
 &

 U
pp

in
gh

am
 d

re
ss

 r
eh

ea
rs

al
)

  U
se

r 
sa

tis
fa

ct
io

n 
su

rv
ey

 r
es

ul
ts

 (
B

ig
 W

ee
ke

nd
 s

ur
ve

y 
m

on
ke

y 
su

rv
ey

)

  C
on

su
lta

tio
n 

re
su

lts
 

 
  C

om
pl

ai
nt

s 
in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
 

  F
re

ed
om

 o
f I

nf
or

m
at

io
n 

re
qu

es
ts

 

 
  S

er
vi

ce
 u

pt
ak

e 
da

ta
 

 
  E

xt
er

na
l v

er
ifi

ca
tio

n 
e.

g.
 in

sp
ec

tio
n 

re
su

lts
, v

ie
w

s 
of

 o
rg

an
is

at
io

ns
 r

ep
re

se
nt

in
g 

eq
ua

lit
ie

s 
gr

ou
ps

  S
ta

ff 
su

rv
ey

 r
es

ul
ts

 

  W
or

kf
or

ce
 m

on
ito

rin
g 

da
ta

 

  P
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

 c
on

su
lta

tio
n 

(s
ur

ve
y 

di
st

rib
ut

ed
 to

 o
th

er
 a

ge
nc

ie
s 

&
 g

ro
up

s)
 

  O
th

er
 (

pl
ea

se
 s

ta
te

:)
 D

eb
rie

f m
ee

tin
gs

 w
ith

 s
ta

ke
ho

ld
er

s,
 p

ar
tn

er
s 

&
 d

el
iv

er
y 

gr
ou

ps
 e

.g
. 

C
om

m
un

ity
 T

as
k 

F
or

ce
, V

ol
un

te
er

s 
C

en
tr

e

  N
on

e 

Page 32



5

8.
  

W
hi

ch
 o

f t
he

 e
qu

al
iti

es
 g

ro
up

s 
do

es
 

th
is

 m
on

ito
rin

g 
da

ta
 r

el
at

e 
to

? 
(P

le
as

e 
tic

k 
an

y 
th

at
 a

re
 r

el
ev

an
t)

 
  A

ge

 
 D

is
ab

ili
ty

 

 
  G

en
de

r/
tr

an
sg

en
de

r
(in

c 
ge

nd
er

 r
e-

as
si

gn
m

en
t, 

pr
eg

na
nc

y 
an

d 
m

at
er

ni
ty

) 

  M
ar

ria
ge

 a
nd

 C
iv

il 
P

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
 

 
  R

ac
e 

 
  R

el
ig

io
n/

be
lie

f  
   

  S
ex

ua
l o

rie
nt

at
io

n 

  N
on

e 

O
th

er
 fa

ct
or

s 
th

at
 m

ay
 le

ad
 to

 in
eq

ua
lit

y 
e.

g.
 s

oc
ia

l 
cl

as
s,

 in
co

m
e 

or
 fi

na
nc

ia
l e

xc
lu

si
on

, c
hi

ld
re

n 
in

 
ca

re
, e

x-
of

fe
nd

er
s 

(p
le

as
e 

st
at

e)
:

If 
yo

u 
co

lle
ct

 d
iff

er
en

t m
on

ito
rin

g 
da

ta
 fo

r 
di

ffe
re

nt
 

gr
ou

ps
 fo

r 
di

ffe
re

nt
 a

sp
ec

ts
 o

f y
ou

r 
se

rv
ic

e 
pl

ea
se

 
gi

ve
 d

et
ai

ls
 h

er
e:

 

A
s 

th
is

 is
 a

n 
ar

ea
 n

ot
 s

ee
n 

be
fo

re
 th

e 
us

e 
of

 
m

on
ito

rin
g 

w
ill

 b
e 

re
qu

ire
d 

fo
r 

fu
tu

re
 in

de
pe

nd
en

t 
ev

en
ts

.

A
n

al
ys

in
g

 P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 D
at

a 

S
am

e
im

pa
ct

N
ot

 s
am

e 
im

pa
ct

P
os

iti
ve

(P
)/

 / 
N

eg
at

iv
e(

N
)

In
su

ffi
ci

en
t

ev
id

en
ce

 
9.

  
U

si
ng

 th
e 

m
on

ito
rin

g 
in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
th

at
 y

ou
 h

av
e 

or
 w

ill
 b

e 
co

lle
ct

in
g,

 
pl

ea
se

 in
di

ca
te

 if
 th

e 
im

pa
ct

 o
f t

he
 

st
ra

te
gy

, p
ol

ic
y,

 p
la

n,
 p

ro
je

ct
, 

co
nt

ra
ct

, m
aj

or
 c

ha
ng

e 
in

 s
er

vi
ce

 o
r 

de
ci

si
on

 is
/is

 li
ke

ly
 to

 b
e 

th
e 

sa
m

e 
fo

r 
th

e 
eq

ua
lit

ie
s 

gr
ou

ps
 a

s 
it 

is
 fo

r 
th

e 
po

pu
la

tio
n 

or
 th

e 
w

or
kf

or
ce

 a
s 

a 

A
ge

D
is

ab
ili

ty
   

   
   

   

G
en

de
r 

(I
nc

 p
re

gn
an

cy
 a

nd
 m

at
er

ni
ty

) 

T
ra

ns
ge

nd
er

(in
c 

ge
nd

er
 r

e-
as

si
gn

m
en

t )
 

   

 
 (

N
) 

 
 (

N
) 

 
 (

N
) 

Page 33



6

w
ho

le
. 

M
ar

ria
ge

 a
nd

 C
iv

il 
P

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
 

R
ac

e

R
el

ig
io

n/
be

lie
f

S
ex

ua
l o

rie
nt

at
io

n 

O
th

er
 fa

ct
or

s 
th

at
 m

ay
 le

ad
 to

 in
eq

ua
lit

y 
(p

le
as

e 
st

at
e)

: 

1.
  

  
  

 

2.
  

  
  

 

3.
  

  
  

 

N
on

e

   

 
 

 (
N

) 

Page 34



7

E
qu

al
iti

es
 G

ro
up

 A
ffe

ct
ed

 
W

ha
t t

he
 p

ot
en

tia
l 

ne
ga

tiv
e 

im
pa

ct
 is

 

E
vi

de
nc

e 
of

 p
ot

en
tia

l 
ne

ga
tiv

e 
im

pa
ct

 if
 th

er
e 

is
 

an
y.

10
.  

Li
st

 a
nd

 e
xp

la
in

 a
ny

 n
eg

at
iv

e 
im

pa
ct

s 
id

en
tif

ie
d 

in
 Q

u 
9.

 S
ta

te
 

w
hi

ch
 e

qu
al

iti
es

 g
ro

up
 is

/m
ay

 b
e 

af
fe

ct
ed

, w
ha

t t
he

 n
eg

at
iv

e 
im

pa
ct

 
is

/m
ay

 b
e 

an
d 

gi
ve

 d
et

ai
ls

 o
f a

ny
 

ev
id

en
ce

 o
f t

hi
s 

im
pa

ct
/p

ot
en

tia
l 

im
pa

ct
 e

.g
. d

oc
um

en
t t

itl
es

, w
eb

 
lin

ks
.

If 
yo

u 
ha

ve
 n

o 
ev

id
en

ce
 o

f t
he

 
ne

ga
tiv

e 
im

pa
ct

 b
ut

 b
el

ie
ve

 it
 m

ay
 

ex
is

t, 
pl

ea
se

 s
ay

 s
o.

 

A
ge

D
is

ab
ili

ty
  

P
re

gn
an

cy
R

el
ig

io
n/

be
lie

f  

S
en

io
r 

C
iti

ze
ns

, 
di

sa
bl

ed
 r

es
id

en
ts

, 
pr

eg
na

nt
 w

om
en

 a
nd

 
ch

ild
re

n 
co

ul
d 

ha
ve

 
lim

ite
d 

ac
ce

ss
 d

ue
 to

 
m

ob
ili

ty
 / 

fa
ci

lit
ie

s 
ac

ce
ss

.

P
ub

lic
ity

 m
ig

ht
 n

ot
 

re
ac

h 
di

sa
bi

lit
y 

gr
ou

ps
 

i.e
.: 

 v
is

ua
l /

 h
ea

rin
g 

im
pa

irm
en

ts
.  

T
ho

se
 

w
ith

 n
o 

ac
ce

ss
 to

 w
eb

. 

R
ou

te
 m

ay
 c

au
se

 
po

te
nt

ia
l d

is
ru

pt
io

n 
to

 
pl

an
ne

d 
re

lig
io

us
 

se
rv

ic
es

.

A
cc

es
s 

to
 p

ro
pe

rt
ie

s 
m

ay
 b

e 
re

st
ric

te
d 

on
 

ro
ut

e 
du

rin
g 

ev
en

t

N
o 

su
ita

bl
e 

vi
ew

in
g 

ar
ea

s 
fo

r 
th

es
e 

gr
ou

ps
. 

P
ar

ki
ng

 r
es

tr
ic

tio
ns

 li
m

it 
ac

ce
ss

.

La
ck

 o
f t

oi
le

ts
 o

n 
ro

ut
e.

M
aj

or
ity

 o
f i

nf
or

m
at

io
n 

if 
w

eb
 b

as
ed

.  
G

ro
up

s 
ar

e 
no

t a
bl

e 
to

 a
cc

es
s 

ro
ut

e 
or

 
ro

ad
 c

lo
su

re
 in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
or

 
la

st
 m

in
ut

e 
ch

an
ge

s 
if 

no
 

w
eb

 a
cc

es
s.

R
ou

te
 w

ill
 ta

ke
 p

la
ce

 la
st

 
af

te
rn

oo
n 

S
at

 &
 e

ar
ly

 S
un

 
A

M
.

Page 35



8

11
.  

A
re

 o
r 

w
ill

 p
eo

pl
e 

fr
om

 e
qu

al
iti

es
 

gr
ou

ps
 ta

ke
 u

p 
se

rv
ic

es
 a

ss
oc

ia
te

d 
w

ith
 th

e 
st

ra
te

gy
, p

ol
ic

y,
 p

la
n,

 
pr

oj
ec

t, 
se

rv
ic

e,
 c

on
tr

ac
t, 

m
aj

or
 

ch
an

ge
 in

 s
er

vi
ce

 o
r 

de
ci

si
on

 a
t t

he
 

sa
m

e 
ra

te
 a

s 
th

e 
po

pu
la

tio
n 

or
 th

e 
w

or
kf

or
ce

 a
s 

a 
w

ho
le

? 

(P
le

as
e 

tic
k)

 

  Y
es

 
 N

o

  I
ns

uf
fic

ie
nt

 e
vi

de
nc

e 

If
n

o
, p

le
as

e 
pr

ov
id

e 
de

ta
ils

…
. 

G
ro

up
s 

m
ay

 b
e 

un
ab

le
 to

 a
cc

es
s 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

ab
ou

t 
th

e 
ev

en
ts

 a
nd

 m
ay

 n
ot

 b
e 

ab
le

 to
 v

ie
w

 d
ue

 to
 

ac
ce

ss
 r

es
tr

ic
tio

ns
. P

le
as

e 
se

e 
ab

ov
e.

Page 36



9

12
.  

Is
 y

ou
r 

st
ra

te
gy

, p
ol

ic
y,

 p
la

n,
 p

ro
je

ct
, 

se
rv

ic
e,

 c
on

tr
ac

t, 
m

aj
or

 c
ha

ng
e 

in
 

se
rv

ic
e 

or
 d

ec
is

io
n 

lik
el

y 
to

 e
xc

lu
de

 
or

 d
is

ad
va

nt
ag

e 
eq

ua
lit

ie
s 

gr
ou

ps
 in

 
th

e 
lo

ng
er

 te
rm

? 

(P
le

as
e 

tic
k)

 

  Y
es

 
  N

o

  I
ns

uf
fic

ie
nt

 e
vi

de
nc

e 

If
ye

s,
 p

le
as

e 
in

di
ca

te
 w

hi
ch

 g
ro

up
s 

w
ill

 b
e 

af
fe

ct
ed

 
an

d 
w

ha
t t

he
 im

pa
ct

 w
ill

 b
e…

 

Page 37



1
0

C
h

ec
ki

n
g

 D
el

iv
er

y 
A

rr
an

g
em

en
ts

 Y
es

 
N

o 
In

su
ffi

ci
en

t 
 e

vi
de

nc
e 

R
ea

so
n

13
.  

P
le

as
e 

ch
ec

k 
th

e 
de

liv
er

y 
ar

ra
ng

em
en

ts
 fo

r 
th

e 
st

ra
te

gy
, 

po
lic

y,
 p

la
n,

 p
ro

je
ct

, s
er

vi
ce

, 
co

nt
ra

ct
, m

aj
or

 c
ha

ng
e 

in
 s

er
vi

ce
 o

r 
de

ci
si

on
 a

ga
in

st
 th

es
e 

cr
ite

ria
: 

If 
yo

u 
an

sw
er

ed
 n

o
 to

 a
ny

 o
f t

he
 

cr
ite

ria
, p

le
as

e 
ex

pl
ai

n 
w

hy
, g

iv
in

g 
de

ta
ils

 o
f a

ny
 le

ga
l j

us
tif

ic
at

io
n 

if 
th

er
e 

is
 o

ne
…

.. 

A
re

 a
ny

 p
re

m
is

es
 in

vo
lv

ed
 a

cc
es

si
bl

e 
to

 
al

l?

Is
 a

ny
 IC

T
 s

of
tw

ar
e 

an
d 

eq
ui

pm
en

t 
ac

ce
ss

ib
le

 to
 a

ll?
 

Is
 c

on
su

lta
tio

n 
an

d 
pa

rt
ic

ip
at

io
n 

in
cl

us
iv

e 
of

 
al

l?

A
re

 p
ub

lic
 e

ve
nt

s 
an

d 
m

ee
tin

gs
 a

cc
es

si
bl

e 
to

 a
ll?

 

D
o 

pu
bl

ic
 m

ee
tin

gs
 a

nd
 e

ve
nt

s 
av

oi
d 

co
nf

lic
t w

ith
 r

el
ig

io
us

 e
ve

nt
s?

 

Is
 e

le
ct

ro
ni

c,
 w

eb
 b

as
ed

 a
nd

 p
ap

er
 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

ac
ce

ss
ib

le
 fo

r 
al

l?
 

A
re

 im
ag

es
 a

nd
 te

xt
 in

 d
oc

um
en

ts
 a

nd
 

pu
bl

ic
ity

 c
am

pa
ig

ns
 r

ep
re

se
nt

at
iv

e 
of

 a
ll?

 

N
A     

  

A
re

as
 o

f t
he

 r
ou

te
 n

ot
 

ne
ar

 w
el

fa
re

 fa
ci

lit
ie

s 
&

 
on

 s
tr

ee
t m

ay
 b

e 
no

n-
ac

ce
ss

ib
le

 to
 th

os
e 

w
ith

 
m

ob
ili

ty
 r

es
tr

ic
tio

ns
.

T
he

 e
ve

nt
 it

se
lf 

m
ay

 
co

nf
lic

t w
ith

 s
er

vi
ce

s 
du

e 
to

 ti
m

in
gs

.

Page 38



1
1

C
o

n
cl

u
si

o
n

s 
an

d
 N

ex
t 

S
te

p
s

a)
 

T
he

 e
vi

de
nc

e 
ha

s 
no

t i
de

nt
ifi

ed
 

an
y 

di
sa

dv
an

ta
ge

s 
or

 n
eg

at
iv

e 
im

pa
ct

s.

N
o 

fu
rt

he
r 

ac
tio

n 
re

qu
ire

d.
 S

ig
n 

of
f t

hi
s 

fo
rm

 a
nd

 s
en

d 
to

 A
nd

re
w

 L
im

b,
 H

ea
d 

of
 C

or
po

ra
te

 
S

tr
at

eg
y,

A
nd

re
w

.li
m

b@
ca

m
br

id
ge

/g
ov

.u
k 

w
ho

 w
ill

 a
rr

an
ge

 fo
r 

it 
to

 b
e 

pu
bl

is
he

d 
on

 th
e 

In
te

rn
et

 
an

d 
In

tr
an

et
. 

b)
 

T
he

 e
vi

de
nc

e 
in

di
ca

te
s 

th
at

 th
er

e 
ar

e 
no

 d
is

ad
va

nt
ag

es
 o

r 
ne

ga
tiv

e 
im

pa
ct

s 
th

at
 c

an
no

t b
e 

ea
si

ly
 

ad
dr

es
se

d.
 

C
om

pl
et

e 
th

e 
A

ct
io

n 
P

la
n 

 :

c)
 

It 
ha

s 
no

t b
ee

n 
po

ss
ib

le
 to

 s
ay

 
w

he
th

er
 o

r 
no

t t
he

re
 is

 a
 

di
sa

dv
an

ta
ge

 o
r 

ne
ga

tiv
e 

im
pa

ct
 

e.
g.

 th
er

e 
is

 in
su

ffi
ci

en
t e

vi
de

nc
e.

G
o 

to
 Q

ue
st

io
n 

15
 

14
.

d)
 

T
he

 e
vi

de
nc

e 
in

di
ca

te
s 

po
te

nt
ia

l 
di

sa
dv

an
ta

ge
s 

or
 n

eg
at

iv
e 

im
pa

ct
s 

th
at

 c
an

no
t b

e 
ea

si
ly

 
ad

dr
es

se
d.

 

C
om

pl
et

e 
A

ct
io

n 
P

la
n 

Page 39



1
2

G
at

h
er

in
g

 a
d

d
it

io
n

al
 in

fo
rm

at
io

n
 

15
. 

W
ha

t a
dd

iti
on

al
 e

vi
de

nc
e 

ar
e 

yo
u 

go
in

g 
to

 g
at

he
r?

 (
P

le
as

e 
tic

k 
an

y 
th

at
 a

pp
ly

)

 
  A

dv
ic

e 
fr

om
 e

xp
er

ts
 

  D
em

og
ra

ph
ic

 p
ro

fil
e 

e.
g.

 C
en

su
s 

  E
xi

st
in

g 
co

ns
ul

ta
tio

n 
re

su
lts

  

  E
xi

st
in

g 
us

er
 d

at
a 

  E
xt

er
na

l v
er

ifi
ca

tio
n 

e.
g.

 e
xp

er
t v

ie
w

s 
of

 p
eo

pl
e/

or
ga

ni
sa

tio
ns

 r
ep

re
se

nt
in

g 
eq

ua
lit

y 
gr

ou
p(

s)
 

  L
oc

al
 n

ee
ds

 a
na

ly
si

s 
e.

g.
 J

oi
nt

 
S

tr
at

eg
ic

 N
ee

ds
 A

ss
es

sm
en

ts
 

  N
at

io
na

l b
es

t p
ra

ct
ic

e 
in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
e.

g.
A

ud
it 

C
om

m
is

si
on

 r
ep

or
ts

 

 
  N

ew
 c

on
su

lta
tio

n 
w

ith
 a

 s
pe

ci
fic

 e
qu

al
ity

 
gr

ou
p(

s)

  R
es

ea
rc

h 
re

po
rt

s

  R
el

ev
an

t s
ta

ff 
gr

ou
p 

ex
pe

rt
is

e 

O
th

er
(p

le
as

e 
st

at
e)

:

C
on

su
lte

d 
w

ith
: 

C
am

br
id

ge
 E

th
ni

c 
C

om
m

un
ity

 F
or

um
 

R
el

ev
an

t C
ity

 a
nd

 C
ou

nt
y 

C
ou

nc
il 

st
af

f e
.g

. T
ul

at
 

R
aj

a 
an

d 
M

ar
k 

T
ay

lo
r 

Page 40



1
3

16
. 

If 
yo

u 
ha

ve
 a

ny
 a

dd
iti

on
al

 c
om

m
en

ts
 

pl
ea

se
 a

dd
 th

em
 h

er
e.

 

C
o

m
p

le
ti

o
n

N
am

e 
an

d 
jo

b 
tit

le
 o

f a
ss

es
sm

en
t 

le
ad

 o
ffi

ce
r:

 
E

la
in

e 
M

id
gl

ey
 –

 A
rt

s 
&

 E
ve

nt
s 

M
an

ag
er

D
at

e 
of

 c
om

pl
et

io
n:

 
23

rd
 N

ov
em

be
r 

20
11

.  
U

pd
at

ed
 2

8th
 M

ay
 2

01
2.

N
am

es
 o

f o
th

er
 a

ss
es

sm
en

t t
ea

m
 

m
em

be
rs

 a
nd

 p
eo

pl
e 

co
ns

ul
te

d:
 

N
ei

l J
on

es
 –

 M
ar

ke
tin

g 
M

an
ag

er
 

A
bi

ga
il 

C
he

ve
rs

t –
 E

ve
nt

 c
oo

rd
in

at
or

 
T

re
vo

r 
W

oo
lla

m
s 

– 
H

ea
d 

of
 c

om
m

un
ity

 D
ev

el
op

m
en

t
A

ria
dn

e 
H

en
ry

 –
 C

D
O

 (
re

vi
ew

) 

17
.

D
at

e 
of

 n
ex

t r
ev

ie
w

 o
f t

he
 E

qI
A

 
T

hi
s 

sh
ou

ld
 b

e 
w

ith
in

 th
re

e 
ye

ar
s 

of
 

th
e 

da
te

 o
f c

om
pl

et
io

n 
of

 th
e 

or
ig

in
al

 
E

qI
A

.

N
/A

N
ot

e:
 w

he
n 

co
m

pl
et

ed
 a

 c
op

y 
of

 th
is

 fo
rm

 s
ho

ul
d 

be
 s

av
ed

 w
ith

 th
e 

re
le

va
nt

 s
tr

at
eg

y,
 p

la
n,

 p
ol

ic
y,

 p
ro

je
ct

, c
on

tr
ac

t, 
m

aj
or

 c
ha

ng
e 

in
 

se
rv

ic
e 

or
 d

ec
is

io
n 

an
d 

an
 e

le
ct

ro
ni

c 
co

py
 s

en
t t

o 
A

nd
re

w
 L

im
b,

 H
ea

d 
of

 C
or

po
ra

te
 S

tr
at

eg
y,

 A
nd

re
w

.li
m

b@
ca

m
br

id
ge

/g
ov

.u
k

w
ho

 w
ill

 
ar

ra
ng

e 
fo

r 
pu

bl
ic

at
io

n 
on

 th
e 

C
ou

nc
il’

s 
w

eb
 p

ag
es

 a
nd

 th
e 

In
tr

an
et

.

N
:\S

tr
at

eg
y 

&
 P

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
s\

E
qu

al
iti

es
\E

.I.
A

\E
qI

A
 G

ui
da

nc
e 

an
d 

T
em

pl
at

e 
R

ev
ie

w
 O

ct
 0

9\
E

qI
A

 T
em

pl
at

e 
A

ug
us

t 2
01

0 
F

IN
A

L.
do

c

Page 41



1
4

A
C

T
IO

N
 P

L
A

N
 

E
qu

al
ity

 Im
pa

ct
 A

ss
es

sm
en

t T
itl

e:
 O

ly
m

pi
c 

T
or

ch
 R

el
ay

   
   

   
   

   
   

   
D

at
e:

 2
/0

1/
11

U
pd

at
ed

 2
8.

5.
12

…
…

…
…

…
…

…
…

…
…

 

E
q

u
al

it
y 

G
ro

u
p

 
D

et
ai

ls
 o

f 
p

o
ss

ib
le

 d
is

ad
va

n
ta

g
e 

o
r 

n
eg

at
iv

e 
im

p
ac

t 
A

ct
io

n
 t

o
 b

e 
ta

ke
n

 t
o

 a
d

d
re

ss
 t

h
e 

d
is

ad
va

n
ta

g
e 

o
r 

n
eg

at
iv

e 
im

p
ac

t 
O

ff
ic

er
 

re
sp

o
n

si
b

le
 f

o
r 

p
ro

g
re

ss
in

g
 t

h
e 

ac
ti

o
n

D
at

e 
ac

ti
o

n
 

to
 b

e 
co

m
p

le
te

d
b

y 
A

g
e

U
na

bl
e 

to
 v

ie
w

 O
T

R
 

U
na

bl
e 

to
 a

cc
es

s 
m

ar
ke

tin
g 

fo
r 

O
T

R

La
st

 m
in

ut
e 

m
ar

ke
tin

g 
to

 e
ns

ur
e 

ac
ce

ss
 to

 th
os

e 
w

ith
ou

t I
nt

er
ne

t
D

is
ab

le
d 

/ e
ld

er
ly

 v
ie

w
in

g 
po

in
ts

 to
 b

e 
en

su
re

d

A
C

 / 
N

J 
Ju

ne
 2

01
2 

.
P

re
ss

 &
 

m
ar

ke
tin

g
te

am
 b

rie
fe

d 
to

 d
is

tr
ib

ut
e 

in
fo

.
D

is
ab

le
d 

vi
ew

in
g

po
in

ts
ad

vi
se

d 
on

 
w

eb
si

te
D

is
ab

ili
ty

 
U

na
bl

e 
to

 v
ie

w
 O

T
R

 
U

na
bl

e 
to

 a
cc

es
s 

m
ar

ke
tin

g 
fo

r 
O

T
R

D
is

ab
le

d 
/ e

ld
er

ly
 v

ie
w

in
g 

po
in

ts
 to

 b
e 

en
su

re
d

S
uf

fic
ie

nt
 to

ile
ts

 to
 b

e 
pr

ov
id

ed
 o

n 
th

e 
ro

ut
e

M
ar

ke
tin

g 
to

 b
e 

m
ad

e 
av

ai
la

bl
e 

in
 

al
te

rn
at

iv
e 

fo
rm

at
s 

if 
re

qu
ire

d 
D

is
ab

le
d 

pa
rk

in
g 

to
 b

e 
en

su
re

d 
C

on
su

lt 
w

ith
 d

is
ab

ili
ty

 a
nd

 e
th

ni
c 

co
m

m
un

ity
 fo

ru
m

s 
an

d 
re

le
va

nt
 

C
ou

nc
il 

st
af

f t
o 

di
sc

us
s 

co
nc

er
ns

 a
nd

 
w

ay
s 

of
 r

ed
uc

in
g 

im
pa

ct
s 

A
C

 / 
N

J 
Ju

ne
 2

01
2.

 
A

s 
ab

ov
e.

A
dd

iti
on

al
fr

ee
 d

is
ab

le
d 

pa
rk

in
g 

 w
ill

 
be

 p
ro

vi
de

d 
at

 D
ep

t o
f 

C
he

m
is

tr
y

(L
en

sf
ie

ld
R

d)
 o

n 
S

at
 

7th
 a

nd
 S

hi
re

 
H

al
l o

n 
S

un
 

Page 42



1
5

8th
.

G
en

d
er

/T
ra

n
sg

en
d

er
 

In
c 

ge
nd

er
 r

ea
ss

ig
nm

en
t 

an
d 

P
re

gn
an

cy
 a

nd
 

M
at

er
ni

ty

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

M
ar

ri
ag

e 
an

d
 C

iv
il 

P
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

R
ac

e/
et

h
n

ic
it

y 
M

ay
 n

ot
 e

ng
ag

e 
w

ith
 e

ve
nt

  
C

on
su

lt 
w

ith
 d

is
ab

ili
ty

 a
nd

 e
th

ni
c 

co
m

m
un

ity
 fo

ru
m

s 
an

d 
re

le
va

nt
 

C
ou

nc
il 

st
af

f t
o 

di
sc

us
s 

co
nc

er
ns

 a
nd

 
w

ay
s 

of
 r

ed
uc

in
g 

im
pa

ct
s 

A
C

 
M

ay
 2

01
2.

  
A

C
 v

is
ite

d 
C

E
C

F
 &

 m
et

 
w

ith
 T

ul
at

 
R

aj
a

re
gu

la
rly

th
ro

ug
h

M
el

a
pl

an
ni

ng
pr

oc
es

s.
R

el
ig

io
n

 o
r 

b
el

ie
f 

R
ou

te
 ti

m
es

 m
ay

 c
on

fli
ct

 w
ith

 
pl

an
ne

d 
re

lig
io

us
 s

er
vi

ce
s.

In
fo

rm
 r

el
ig

io
us

 g
ro

up
s.

/b
ui

ld
in

gs
 o

n 
ro

ut
e

A
C

/T
W

 
C

om
m

un
ity

 
de

ve
lo

pm
en

t
sp

ok
en

 to
 

M
ill

 R
d 

bu
si

ne
ss

es
 

on
 r

ou
te

.
M

ill
 R

d 
B

rid
ge

s
N

ew
sl

et
te

r 
us

ed
.  

A
ll 

pr
em

is
es

gi
ve

n 
le

af
le

t 
w

ar
ni

ng
 o

f 
de

ta
ils

.  
N

o 
is

su
es

 o
f 

Page 43



1
6

co
nc

er
n

ra
is

ed
 to

 
da

te
.

S
ex

u
al

 o
ri

en
ta

ti
o

n
 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

O
th

er
 f

ac
to

rs
 t

h
at

 
m

ay
 le

ad
 t

o
 

in
eq

u
al

it
y 

G
en

er
al

 e
qu

al
ity

 m
on

ito
rin

g 
ac

tio
ns

 
A

sk
 L

O
C

O
G

 r
ec

om
m

en
da

tio
ns

 fo
r 

m
on

ito
rin

g 
di

ve
rs

ity
 o

f a
tte

nd
an

ce
, p

ro
 

fo
rm

as
 e

tc
. A

ny
on

e 
/ a

ny
th

in
g 

w
e 

ca
n 

be
nc

hm
ar

k 
w

ith
? 

A
na

ly
ze

 c
om

pl
ai

nt
s 

an
d 

co
m

pl
im

en
ts

 
af

te
r 

ev
en

t 
M

ar
ke

tin
g 

to
 c

ar
ry

 o
ut

 m
on

ito
rin

g 
su

rv
ey

P
ol

ic
e 

to
 e

st
im

at
e 

nu
m

be
rs

 
S

ta
ff 

to
 v

is
ua

lly
 e

st
im

at
e 

di
ve

rs
ity

 o
f 

au
di

en
ce

A
C

 / 
N

J 
Ju

ly
 2

01
2 

 

N
am

e 
an

d 
Jo

b 
T

itl
e 

of
 O

ffi
ce

r 
co

m
pl

et
in

g 
th

e 
A

ct
io

n 
P

la
n:

 A
bi

ga
il 

C
he

ve
rs

t E
ve

nt
s 

C
oo

rd
in

at
or

 / 
E

la
in

e 
M

id
gl

ey
, A

rt
s 

&
 E

ve
nt

s 
M

an
ag

er

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t/S

er
vi

ce
: A

rt
s 

an
d 

R
ec

re
at

io
n 

 
 

 
T

hi
s 

pl
an

 w
ill

 n
ex

t b
e 

up
da

te
d 

(P
le

as
e 

gi
ve

 d
at

e)
: 2

8th
 M

ay
 2

01
1 

/ N
/A

Page 44



1

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

D
R

A
F

T
 

C
am

b
ri

d
g

e 
C

it
y 

C
o

u
n

ci
l

E
q

u
al

it
y 

Im
p

ac
t 

A
ss

es
sm

en
t 

L
ei

su
re

 M
an

ag
em

en
t 

C
o

n
tr

ac
t 

R
e-

te
n

d
er

 (
20

13
 o

n
w

ar
d

s)

Page 45



2

E
q

u
al

it
y 

Im
p

ac
t 

A
ss

es
sm

en
t 

G
en

er
al

 In
fo

rm
at

io
n

 
1.

 
T

itl
e 

of
 s

tr
at

eg
y,

 p
ol

ic
y,

 p
la

n,
 p

ro
je

ct
, 

co
nt

ra
ct

, m
aj

or
 c

ha
ng

e 
in

 s
er

vi
ce

 o
r 

de
ci

si
on

:
L

ei
su

re
 M

an
ag

em
en

t 
C

o
n

tr
ac

t 
R

e-
te

n
d

er
 (

20
13

 o
n

w
ar

d
s)

 

2.
 

W
ha

t i
s 

th
e 

ob
je

ct
iv

e 
or

 p
ur

po
se

 o
f 

th
e 

st
ra

te
gy

, p
ol

ic
y,

 p
la

n,
 p

ro
je

ct
, 

co
nt

ra
ct

, m
aj

or
 c

ha
ng

e 
in

 s
er

vi
ce

 o
r 

de
ci

si
on

?

T
he

 o
rg

an
is

at
io

n 
th

at
 is

 a
w

ar
de

d 
th

e 
co

nt
ra

ct
 w

ill
 d

el
iv

er
 th

e 
C

ity
 C

ou
nc

il’
s 

Le
is

ur
e 

M
an

ag
em

en
t 

po
rt

fo
lio

 fr
om

 O
ct

ob
er

 2
01

3 
on

w
ar

ds
.

K
ey

 o
bj

ec
tiv

es
 o

f t
he

 c
on

tr
ac

t w
ill

 b
e 

to
 e

ns
ur

e 
th

at
 th

e 
au

th
or

ity
 is

 s
ec

ur
in

g 
va

lu
e 

fo
r 

m
on

ey
, 

im
pr

ov
in

g 
th

e 
ac

ce
ss

ib
ili

ty
 a

nd
 a

ffo
rd

ab
ili

ty
 o

f t
he

 s
er

vi
ce

s 
on

 o
ffe

r,
 a

s 
w

el
l a

s 
re

du
ci

ng
 th

e 
ca

rb
on

 e
m

is
si

on
s 

of
 th

e 
se

rv
ic

es
.

T
he

 p
ur

po
se

 o
f t

hi
s 

E
qI

A
 is

 to
 c

on
si

de
r 

w
ha

t e
qu

al
iti

es
 is

su
es

 n
ee

d 
to

 b
e 

co
ns

id
er

ed
 in

 th
e 

te
nd

er
in

g 
an

d 
aw

ar
d 

pr
oc

es
s 

in
 o

rd
er

 to
 im

pr
ov

e 
ac

ce
ss

ib
ili

ty
 to

 th
e 

C
ity

 C
ou

nc
il’

s 
le

is
ur

e 
se

rv
ic

es
 &

 fa
ci

lit
ie

s.
 

3.
  

W
ho

 w
ill

 b
e 

af
fe

ct
ed

 b
y 

th
is

 s
tr

at
eg

y,
 

po
lic

y,
 p

la
n,

 p
ro

je
ct

, c
on

tr
ac

t, 
m

aj
or

 
ch

an
ge

s 
in

 s
er

vi
ce

s 
or

 d
ec

is
io

n?
 

(P
le

as
e 

tic
k 

th
os

e 
th

at
 a

pp
ly

)

  R
es

id
en

ts
 

  V
is

ito
rs

  S
ta

ff

A
 s

pe
ci

fic
 c

lie
nt

 g
ro

up
 o

r 
gr

ou
ps

 (
pl

ea
se

 
st

at
e)

:

E
xi

st
in

g 
sw

im
m

in
g 

an
d 

di
vi

ng
 C

lu
bs

, 
gr

ou
ps

 a
nd

 s
ch

oo
ls

 th
at

 u
se

 th
e 

fa
ci

lit
ie

s.

4.
  

W
ha

t t
yp

e 
of

 s
tr

at
eg

y,
 p

ol
ic

y,
 p

la
n,

 
pr

oj
ec

t, 
co

nt
ra

ct
, m

aj
or

 c
ha

ng
e 

in
 

se
rv

ic
e 

or
 d

ec
is

io
n 

is
 th

is
? 

(P
le

as
e 

tic
k)

 

  N
ew

  R
ev

is
ed

 –
 th

is
 is

 a
 r

e-
te

nd
er

in
g 

ex
er

ci
se

 o
f a

n 
ex

is
tin

g 
co

nt
ra

ct
.  

  E
xi

st
in

g 
  

Page 46



3

5.
 

R
es

po
ns

ib
le

 d
ep

ar
tm

en
t, 

se
ct

io
n,

 
se

rv
ic

e 
m

an
ag

er
 a

nd
 H

ea
d 

of
 

S
er

vi
ce

.

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t: 

C
us

to
m

er
 &

 C
om

m
un

ity
 S

er
vi

ce
s 

S
ec

tio
n:

 C
lie

nt
 te

am
 in

 A
rt

s 
an

d 
R

ec
re

at
io

n 

S
er

vi
ce

 M
an

ag
er

: I
an

 R
os

s 

H
ea

d 
of

 S
er

vi
ce

: D
eb

bi
e 

K
ay

e 

6.
 

A
re

 o
th

er
 d

ep
ar

tm
en

ts
 o

r 
pa

rt
ne

rs
 

in
vo

lv
ed

 in
 d

el
iv

er
in

g 
th

is
 s

tr
at

eg
y,

 
po

lic
y,

 p
la

n,
 p

ro
je

ct
, c

on
tr

ac
t, 

m
aj

or
 

ch
an

ge
 in

 s
er

vi
ce

 o
r 

de
ci

si
on

? 

  N
o 

  Y
es

 (
pl

ea
se

 g
iv

e 
de

ta
ils

):

P
ro

cu
re

m
en

t, 
Le

ga
l, 

F
in

an
ce

, S
tr

at
eg

y 
an

d 
P

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
s,

 E
nv

iro
nm

en
ta

l H
ea

lth
, C

hy
pp

s,
 

C
or

po
ra

te
 H

ea
lth

 &
 S

af
et

y,
 H

um
an

 r
es

ou
rc

es
, P

ro
pe

rt
y,

 IC
T

, a
nd

 S
tr

ee
ts

 &
 O

pe
n 

S
pa

ce
s 

ar
e 

al
l 

in
vo

lv
ed

 in
 h

el
pi

ng
 s

ha
pe

 th
e 

fu
tu

re
 le

is
ur

e 
m

an
ag

em
en

t c
on

tr
ac

t. 

Page 47



4

G
at

h
er

in
g

 P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 D
at

a 
7.

 
H

ow
 d

o 
yo

u 
(o

r 
ho

w
 w

ill
 y

ou
) 

m
on

ito
r 

th
e 

im
pa

ct
 o

f t
he

 s
tr

at
eg

y,
 

po
lic

y,
 p

la
n,

 p
ro

je
ct

, c
on

tr
ac

t, 
m

aj
or

 
ch

an
ge

 in
 s

er
vi

ce
 o

r 
de

ci
si

on
? 

(P
le

as
e 

tic
k 

an
y 

th
at

 a
pp

ly
 a

nd
 g

iv
e 

ex
am

pl
es

 e
.g

. b
en

ch
 m

ar
ki

ng
 w

ith
 

th
e 

H
ou

si
ng

 Q
ua

lit
y 

N
et

w
or

k)
 

  P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 in
di

ca
to

rs
/ta

rg
et

s 

  B
en

ch
m

ar
ki

ng
 w

ith
 o

th
er

 o
rg

an
is

at
io

ns
 

  U
se

r 
sa

tis
fa

ct
io

n 
su

rv
ey

 r
es

ul
ts

 

  C
on

su
lta

tio
n 

re
su

lts
 

  C
om

pl
ai

nt
s 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

  F
re

ed
om

 o
f I

nf
or

m
at

io
n 

re
qu

es
ts

 

  S
er

vi
ce

 u
pt

ak
e 

da
ta

 

  E
xt

er
na

l v
er

ifi
ca

tio
n 

e.
g.

 in
sp

ec
tio

n 
re

su
lts

, v
ie

w
s 

of
 o

rg
an

is
at

io
ns

 r
ep

re
se

nt
in

g 
eq

ua
lit

ie
s 

gr
ou

ps

  S
ta

ff 
su

rv
ey

 r
es

ul
ts

 

  W
or

kf
or

ce
 m

on
ito

rin
g 

da
ta

 

  P
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

 c
on

su
lta

tio
n 

  O
th

er
 (

pl
ea

se
 s

ta
te

:)
 N

B
S

 –
 N

at
io

na
l B

en
ch

m
ar

ki
ng

 S
er

vi
ce

s 
&

 Q
ue

st
 Q

ua
lit

y 
A

ss
ur

an
ce

 

  N
on

e 

Page 48



5

8.
  

W
hi

ch
 o

f t
he

 e
qu

al
iti

es
 g

ro
up

s 
do

es
 

th
is

 m
on

ito
rin

g 
da

ta
 r

el
at

e 
to

? 
(P

le
as

e 
tic

k 
an

y 
th

at
 a

re
 r

el
ev

an
t)

  A
ge

  D
is

ab
ili

ty
 

  G
en

de
r/

tr
an

sg
en

de
r

(in
c 

ge
nd

er
 r

e-
as

si
gn

m
en

t, 
pr

eg
na

nc
y 

an
d 

m
at

er
ni

ty
) 

  M
ar

ria
ge

 a
nd

 C
iv

il 
P

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
 

  R
ac

e 

  R
el

ig
io

n/
be

lie
f  

   

  S
ex

ua
l o

rie
nt

at
io

n 

  N
on

e 

O
th

er
 fa

ct
or

s 
th

at
 m

ay
 le

ad
 to

 in
eq

ua
lit

y 
e.

g.
 s

oc
ia

l 
cl

as
s,

 in
co

m
e 

or
 fi

na
nc

ia
l e

xc
lu

si
on

, c
hi

ld
re

n 
in

 
ca

re
, e

x-
of

fe
nd

er
s 

(p
le

as
e 

st
at

e)
:

In
co

m
e

A
va

ila
bi

lit
y 

of
 p

ub
lic

 tr
an

sp
or

t n
et

w
or

k 

If 
yo

u 
co

lle
ct

 d
iff

er
en

t m
on

ito
rin

g 
da

ta
 fo

r 
di

ffe
re

nt
 

gr
ou

ps
 fo

r 
di

ffe
re

nt
 a

sp
ec

ts
 o

f y
ou

r 
se

rv
ic

e 
pl

ea
se

 
gi

ve
 d

et
ai

ls
 h

er
e:

 

A
n

al
ys

in
g

 P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 D
at

a 

S
am

e
im

pa
ct

N
ot

 s
am

e 
im

pa
ct

P
os

iti
ve

(P
)/

 / 
N

eg
at

iv
e(

N
)

In
su

ffi
ci

en
t

ev
id

en
ce

 

9.
  

U
si

ng
 th

e 
m

on
ito

rin
g 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

th
at

 y
ou

 h
av

e 
or

 w
ill

 b
e 

co
lle

ct
in

g,
 

pl
ea

se
 in

di
ca

te
 if

 th
e 

im
pa

ct
 o

f t
he

 
st

ra
te

gy
, p

ol
ic

y,
 p

la
n,

 p
ro

je
ct

, 
co

nt
ra

ct
, m

aj
or

 c
ha

ng
e 

in
 s

er
vi

ce
 o

r 
de

ci
si

on
 is

/is
 li

ke
ly

 to
 b

e 
th

e 
sa

m
e 

fo
r 

th
e 

eq
ua

lit
ie

s 
gr

ou
ps

 a
s 

it 
is

 fo
r 

th
e 

po
pu

la
tio

n 
or

 th
e 

w
or

kf
or

ce
 a

s 
a 

w
ho

le
.

A
ge

D
is

ab
ili

ty
   

   
   

   

G
en

de
r 

(I
nc

 p
re

gn
an

cy
 a

nd
 m

at
er

ni
ty

) 

T
ra

ns
ge

nd
er

(in
c 

ge
nd

er
 r

e-
as

si
gn

m
en

t )
 

M
ar

ria
ge

 a
nd

 C
iv

il 
P

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
 

R
ac

e

Page 49



6

R
el

ig
io

n/
be

lie
f

S
ex

ua
l o

rie
nt

at
io

n 

O
th

er
 fa

ct
or

s 
th

at
 m

ay
 le

ad
 to

 in
eq

ua
lit

y 
(p

le
as

e 
st

at
e)

: 

1.
 In

co
m

e 

2.
 P

hy
si

ca
l a

cc
es

si
bi

lit
y 

3.
 T

ra
ns

po
rt

 

4.
 A

bi
lit

y 

P P P

Page 50



7

 
E

qu
al

iti
es

 G
ro

up
 

A
ffe

ct
ed

 
W

ha
t t

he
 p

ot
en

tia
l n

eg
at

iv
e 

im
pa

ct
 is

 
E

vi
de

nc
e 

of
 p

ot
en

tia
l n

eg
at

iv
e 

im
pa

ct
 if

 th
er

e 
is

 a
ny

. 
10

.  
Li

st
 a

nd
 e

xp
la

in
 a

ny
 

ne
ga

tiv
e 

im
pa

ct
s 

id
en

tif
ie

d 
in

 Q
u 

9.
S

ta
te

 w
hi

ch
 e

qu
al

iti
es

 g
ro

up
 

is
/m

ay
 b

e 
af

fe
ct

ed
,

w
ha

t t
he

 n
eg

at
iv

e 
im

pa
ct

 
is

/m
ay

 b
e 

an
d 

gi
ve

 d
et

ai
ls

 
of

 a
ny

 e
vi

de
nc

e 
of

 th
is

 
im

pa
ct

/p
ot

en
tia

l i
m

pa
ct

 e
.g

. 
do

cu
m

en
t t

itl
es

, w
eb

 li
nk

s.
 

If 
yo

u 
ha

ve
 n

o 
ev

id
en

ce
 o

f 
th

e 
ne

ga
tiv

e 
im

pa
ct

 b
ut

 
be

lie
ve

 it
 m

ay
 e

xi
st

, p
le

as
e 

sa
y 

so
. 

P
eo

pl
e 

on
 lo

w
 

in
co

m
es

D
is

ab
le

d 
pe

op
le

W
om

en
 a

nd
 p

eo
pl

e 
fr

om
 d

iff
er

en
t 

re
lig

io
ns

 a
nd

 c
ul

tu
re

s 

O
ld

er
 p

eo
pl

e 
 

Y
ou

ng
er

 p
eo

pl
e

T
ra

ns
ge

nd
er

C
os

t i
s 

a 
ke

y 
ba

rr
ie

r 
th

at
 p

re
ve

nt
s 

pe
op

le
 fr

om
 

pa
rt

ic
ip

at
in

g 
in

 le
is

ur
e 

se
rv

ic
es

 a
ct

iv
iti

es
 to

 
im

pr
ov

e 
th

ei
r 

he
al

th
 a

nd
 w

el
l b

ei
ng

. T
he

 c
on

tr
ac

t 
w

ill
 n

ee
d 

to
 c

on
si

de
r 

ho
w

 a
 r

an
ge

 o
f a

ct
iv

iti
es

 
an

d 
pa

rt
ic

ip
at

io
n 

ev
en

ts
 c

an
 b

e 
m

or
e 

af
fo

rd
ab

le
.

A
 r

an
ge

 o
f a

ct
iv

iti
es

 a
nd

 s
pe

ci
al

is
t f

ac
ili

tie
s 

ar
e 

cu
rr

en
tly

 in
 p

la
ce

 a
t a

ll 
si

te
s 

to
 e

na
bl

e 
di

sa
bl

ed
 

pe
op

le
 to

 u
se

 th
e 

fa
ci

lit
ie

s.
 T

he
 c

on
tr

ac
t w

ill
 

ne
ed

 to
 e

ns
ur

e 
th

at
 th

e 
ne

w
 p

ro
vi

de
r 

co
nt

in
ue

s 
to

 c
on

si
de

r 
th

e 
ne

ed
s 

of
 d

is
ab

le
d 

pe
op

le
.  

S
om

e 
re

lig
io

ns
 a

nd
 c

ul
tu

re
s 

pr
ef

er
 th

at
 th

er
e 

ar
e 

ex
cl

us
iv

el
y 

w
om

en
 o

nl
y 

se
ss

io
ns

. T
he

 c
on

tr
ac

t 
w

ill
 n

ee
d 

to
 e

ns
ur

e 
th

at
 th

e 
ne

w
 p

ro
vi

de
r 

co
nt

in
ue

s 
to

 c
on

si
de

r 
th

e 
ne

ed
s 

of
 d

iff
er

en
t 

cu
ltu

re
s.

P
ro

gr
am

m
in

g 
pr

ov
is

io
n 

m
ad

e 
sp

ec
ifi

ca
lly

 fo
r 

ol
de

r 
pe

op
le

. T
hi

s 
m

ay
 b

e 
re

qu
ire

d 
in

 th
e 

ne
w

 
le

is
ur

e 
co

nt
ra

ct
, h

ow
ev

er
 e

vi
de

nc
e 

fo
r 

de
m

an
d 

fo
r 

ex
cl

us
iv

ity
 is

 li
m

ite
d.

 

P
ro

gr
am

m
in

g 
pr

ov
is

io
n 

m
ad

e 
sp

ec
ifi

ca
lly

 fo
r 

yo
un

ge
r 

pe
op

le
 (

sc
ho

ol
s)

.

U
nc

om
fo

rt
ab

le
 a

bo
ut

 u
si

ng
 s

in
gl

e 
se

xe
d 

ch
an

gi
ng

 fa
ci

lit
ie

s.
 C

on
tr

ac
t w

ill
 n

ee
d 

to
 b

e 
fle

xi
bl

e 
to

 r
et

ai
n 

vi
lla

ge
 a

nd
 m

ix
ed

 c
ha

ng
in

g 
ar

ea
s.

Lo
w

 u
pt

ak
e 

of
 F

re
e 

le
is

ur
e 

C
ar

d 
A

’s
 to

 ta
rg

et
ed

 C
ity

 
re

si
de

nt
 g

ro
up

s.
W

or
k 

un
de

rt
ak

en
 w

ith
 th

e 
Ju

dg
e 

B
us

in
es

s 
S

ch
oo

l 

La
ck

 o
f a

va
ila

bl
e 

po
ol

 ti
m

e 
an

d 
co

m
pl

ai
nt

s 
fr

om
 p

ub
lic

 a
bo

ut
 

ex
cl

us
iv

e 
us

e 
of

 p
oo

l s
pa

ce
s 

fo
r 

3-
4 

pe
op

le
 d

ur
in

g 
bu

sy
 

ho
lid

ay
 p

er
io

ds
. 

A
va

ila
bi

lit
y 

of
 s

ui
ta

bl
e 

lo
ca

tio
ns

 
an

d 
po

ol
 ti

m
e.

 S
cr

ee
ni

ng
 o

f 
P

oo
l h

al
l a

ct
iv

iti
es

 a
t P

ar
ks

id
e 

du
e 

to
 e

xp
an

se
 o

f g
la

ss
 

fr
on

ta
ge

.

La
ck

 o
f a

va
ila

bl
e 

po
ol

 ti
m

e 
an

d 
co

m
pl

ai
nt

s 
fr

om
 p

ub
lic

 a
bo

ut
 

ex
cl

us
iv

e 
us

e 
of

 p
oo

l s
pa

ce
s 

fo
r 

3-
4 

pe
op

le
 d

ur
in

g 
bu

sy
 

ho
lid

ay
 p

er
io

ds
 

T
im

et
ab

le
 d

ed
ic

at
io

n 
to

 o
ff 

pe
ak

 h
ou

rs
 tr

ad
iti

on
al

ly
 n

ot
 

al
w

ay
s 

su
ita

bl
e 

fo
r 

th
e 

ag
e 

gr
ou

ps
 to

 a
tte

nd
. 

P
ar

ks
id

e 
P

oo
ls

 c
ha

ng
in

g 
ro

om
 

co
ns

ul
ta

tio
ns

. M
ai

n 
po

ol
s 

of
fe

r 
“v

ill
ag

e”
 c

ha
ng

in
g.

 

Page 51



8

11
.  

A
re

 o
r 

w
ill

 p
eo

pl
e 

fr
om

 e
qu

al
iti

es
 

gr
ou

ps
 ta

ke
 u

p 
se

rv
ic

es
 a

ss
oc

ia
te

d 
w

ith
 th

e 
st

ra
te

gy
, p

ol
ic

y,
 p

la
n,

 
pr

oj
ec

t, 
se

rv
ic

e,
 c

on
tr

ac
t, 

m
aj

or
 

ch
an

ge
 in

 s
er

vi
ce

 o
r 

de
ci

si
on

 a
t t

he
 

sa
m

e 
ra

te
 a

s 
th

e 
po

pu
la

tio
n 

or
 th

e 
w

or
kf

or
ce

 a
s 

a 
w

ho
le

? 

(P
le

as
e 

tic
k)

 

  Y
es

  N
o

  I
ns

uf
fic

ie
nt

 e
vi

de
nc

e 

If
n

o
, p

le
as

e 
pr

ov
id

e 
de

ta
ils

…
. 

Lo
ca

l r
ep

re
se

nt
at

io
n 

fo
rm

 d
is

ab
le

d 
pa

rt
ic

ip
at

io
n 

an
d 

th
at

 o
f o

ld
er

 a
ge

 g
ro

up
s 

is
 v

er
y 

go
od

 a
nd

 r
ef

le
ct

s 
th

e 
lo

ca
l p

op
ul

at
io

n 
de

m
og

ra
ph

ic
. 

Y
ou

ng
er

 p
eo

pl
e 

an
d 

th
os

e 
on

 lo
w

 in
co

m
es

 
pa

rt
ic

ip
at

io
n 

is
 lo

w
er

 th
an

 e
xp

ec
te

d.
 

U
se

 o
f t

he
 fa

ci
lit

ie
s 

by
 e

th
ni

c 
gr

ou
ps

 is
 im

pr
ov

in
g 

an
d 

de
di

ca
te

d 
se

ss
io

ns
 a

t c
er

ta
in

 s
ite

s 
ar

e 
po

pu
la

r 
bu

t n
ee

d 
to

 b
e 

em
be

dd
ed

 in
to

 c
or

e 
pr

og
ra

m
m

in
g 

ra
th

er
 th

an
 ju

st
 s

ho
rt

 te
rm

 ta
st

er
 s

es
si

on
s.

 

12
.  

Is
 y

ou
r 

st
ra

te
gy

, p
ol

ic
y,

 p
la

n,
 p

ro
je

ct
, 

se
rv

ic
e,

 c
on

tr
ac

t, 
m

aj
or

 c
ha

ng
e 

in
 

se
rv

ic
e 

or
 d

ec
is

io
n 

lik
el

y 
to

 e
xc

lu
de

 
or

 d
is

ad
va

nt
ag

e 
eq

ua
lit

ie
s 

gr
ou

ps
 in

 
th

e 
lo

ng
er

 te
rm

? 

(P
le

as
e 

tic
k)

 

  Y
es

  N
o

  I
ns

uf
fic

ie
nt

 e
vi

de
nc

e 

If
ye

s,
 p

le
as

e 
in

di
ca

te
 w

hi
ch

 g
ro

up
s 

w
ill

 b
e 

af
fe

ct
ed

 
an

d 
w

ha
t t

he
 im

pa
ct

 w
ill

 b
e…

 

T
he

 p
ur

po
se

 o
f c

on
su

lti
ng

 p
eo

pl
e 

is
 to

 id
en

tif
y 

w
ha

t 
th

e 
co

m
m

un
ity

 n
ee

ds
 a

nd
 k

ey
 a

re
as

 fo
r 

im
pr

ov
em

en
t t

ha
t c

an
 b

e 
bu

ilt
 in

to
 th

e 
ne

w
 c

on
tr

ac
t 

to
 p

re
ve

nt
 d

is
ad

va
nt

ag
e 

in
 th

e 
lo

ng
er

 te
rm

.  

Page 52



9

C
h

ec
ki

n
g

 D
el

iv
er

y 
A

rr
an

g
em

en
ts

 Y
es

 
N

o 
In

su
ffi

ci
en

t 
 e

vi
de

nc
e 

R
ea

so
n

13
.  

P
le

as
e 

ch
ec

k 
th

e 
de

liv
er

y 
ar

ra
ng

em
en

ts
 fo

r 
th

e 
st

ra
te

gy
, 

po
lic

y,
 p

la
n,

 p
ro

je
ct

, s
er

vi
ce

, 
co

nt
ra

ct
, m

aj
or

 c
ha

ng
e 

in
 s

er
vi

ce
 o

r 
de

ci
si

on
 a

ga
in

st
 th

es
e 

cr
ite

ria
: 

If 
yo

u 
an

sw
er

ed
 n

o
 to

 a
ny

 o
f t

he
 

cr
ite

ria
, p

le
as

e 
ex

pl
ai

n 
w

hy
, g

iv
in

g 
de

ta
ils

 o
f a

ny
 le

ga
l j

us
tif

ic
at

io
n 

if 
th

er
e 

is
 o

ne
…

.. 

A
re

 a
ny

 p
re

m
is

es
 in

vo
lv

ed
 a

cc
es

si
bl

e 
to

 
al

l?

Is
 a

ny
 IC

T
 s

of
tw

ar
e 

an
d 

eq
ui

pm
en

t 
ac

ce
ss

ib
le

 to
 a

ll?
 

Is
 c

on
su

lta
tio

n 
an

d 
pa

rt
ic

ip
at

io
n 

in
cl

us
iv

e 
of

 
al

l?

A
re

 p
ub

lic
 e

ve
nt

s 
an

d 
m

ee
tin

gs
 a

cc
es

si
bl

e 
to

 a
ll?

 

D
o 

pu
bl

ic
 m

ee
tin

gs
 a

nd
 e

ve
nt

s 
av

oi
d 

co
nf

lic
t w

ith
 r

el
ig

io
us

 e
ve

nt
s?

 

Is
 e

le
ct

ro
ni

c,
 w

eb
 b

as
ed

 a
nd

 p
ap

er
 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

ac
ce

ss
ib

le
 fo

r 
al

l?
 

A
re

 im
ag

es
 a

nd
 te

xt
 in

 d
oc

um
en

ts
 a

nd
 

pu
bl

ic
ity

 c
am

pa
ig

ns
 r

ep
re

se
nt

at
iv

e 
of

 a
ll?

 

Y
es

 a
ll 

si
te

s 
ar

e 
ac

ce
ss

ib
le

.

IC
T

 –
 N

/a
 

E
qu

ip
m

en
t f

ul
l r

an
ge

 
di

sa
bl

ed
 p

ro
vi

si
on

s 
at

 
m

ai
n 

si
te

s.
 

C
o

n
cl

u
si

o
n

s 
an

d
 N

ex
t 

S
te

p
s

a)
 

T
he

 e
vi

de
nc

e 
ha

s 
no

t i
de

nt
ifi

ed
 

an
y 

di
sa

dv
an

ta
ge

s 
or

 n
eg

at
iv

e 
im

pa
ct

s.

N
o 

fu
rt

he
r 

ac
tio

n 
re

qu
ire

d.
 S

ig
n 

of
f t

hi
s 

fo
rm

 a
nd

 s
en

d 
to

 A
nd

re
w

 L
im

b,
 H

ea
d 

of
 C

or
po

ra
te

 
S

tr
at

eg
y,

A
nd

re
w

.li
m

b@
ca

m
br

id
ge

/g
ov

.u
k 

w
ho

 w
ill

 a
rr

an
ge

 fo
r 

it 
to

 b
e 

pu
bl

is
he

d 
on

 th
e 

In
te

rn
et

 
an

d 
In

tr
an

et
. 

14
.

b)
 

T
he

 e
vi

de
nc

e 
in

di
ca

te
s 

th
at

 th
er

e 
ar

e 
no

 d
is

ad
va

nt
ag

es
 o

r 
ne

ga
tiv

e 
im

pa
ct

s 
th

at
 c

an
no

t b
e 

ea
si

ly
 

ad
dr

es
se

d.
 

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
 t

h
e 

A
ct

io
n

 P
la

n
 

Page 53



1
0

c)
 

It 
ha

s 
no

t b
ee

n 
po

ss
ib

le
 to

 s
ay

 
w

he
th

er
 o

r 
no

t t
he

re
 is

 a
 

di
sa

dv
an

ta
ge

 o
r 

ne
ga

tiv
e 

im
pa

ct
 

e.
g.

 th
er

e 
is

 in
su

ffi
ci

en
t e

vi
de

nc
e.

G
o 

to
 Q

ue
st

io
n 

15
 

d)
 

T
he

 e
vi

de
nc

e 
in

di
ca

te
s 

po
te

nt
ia

l 
di

sa
dv

an
ta

ge
s 

or
 n

eg
at

iv
e 

im
pa

ct
s 

th
at

 c
an

no
t b

e 
ea

si
ly

 
ad

dr
es

se
d.

 

C
om

pl
et

e 
A

ct
io

n 
P

la
n 

G
at

h
er

in
g

 a
d

d
it

io
n

al
 in

fo
rm

at
io

n
 

15
. 

W
ha

t a
dd

iti
on

al
 e

vi
de

nc
e 

ar
e 

yo
u 

go
in

g 
to

 g
at

he
r?

 (
P

le
as

e 
tic

k 
an

y 
th

at
 a

pp
ly

)

  A
dv

ic
e 

fr
om

 e
xp

er
ts

 

  D
em

og
ra

ph
ic

 p
ro

fil
e 

e.
g.

 C
en

su
s 

  E
xi

st
in

g 
co

ns
ul

ta
tio

n 
re

su
lts

  

  E
xi

st
in

g 
us

er
 d

at
a 

  E
xt

er
na

l v
er

ifi
ca

tio
n 

e.
g.

 e
xp

er
t v

ie
w

s 
of

 p
eo

pl
e/

or
ga

ni
sa

tio
ns

 r
ep

re
se

nt
in

g 
eq

ua
lit

y 
gr

ou
p(

s)
 

  L
oc

al
 n

ee
ds

 a
na

ly
si

s 
e.

g.
 J

oi
nt

 
S

tr
at

eg
ic

 N
ee

ds
 A

ss
es

sm
en

ts
 

  N
at

io
na

l b
es

t p
ra

ct
ic

e 
in

fo
rm

at
io

n 
e.

g.
A

ud
it 

C
om

m
is

si
on

 r
ep

or
ts

 

  N
ew

 c
on

su
lta

tio
n 

w
ith

 a
 s

pe
ci

fic
 

eq
ua

lit
y 

gr
ou

p(
s)

 

  R
es

ea
rc

h 
re

po
rt

s

  R
el

ev
an

t s
ta

ff 
gr

ou
p 

ex
pe

rt
is

e 

O
th

er
(p

le
as

e 
st

at
e)

:

C
ur

re
nt

ly
 o

ng
oi

ng
 

S
up

pl
ie

d 
by

 S
LM

 a
nd

 P
er

fo
rm

an
ce

 M
an

ag
em

en
t 

re
po

rt
s.

F
ro

m
 c

lu
b 

an
d 

gr
ou

p 
co

ns
ul

ta
tio

n 
ex

er
ci

se
s 

C
ur

re
nt

ly
 b

ei
ng

 u
nd

er
ta

ke
n 

Ju
dg

e 
B

us
in

es
s 

S
ch

oo
l o

n 
lo

w
 u

pt
ak

e 
of

 L
C

A
 

In
te

rn
al

 w
or

ki
ng

 g
ro

up
s 

Page 54



1
1

16
. 

If 
yo

u 
ha

ve
 a

ny
 a

dd
iti

on
al

 c
om

m
en

ts
 

pl
ea

se
 a

dd
 th

em
 h

er
e.

 

C
o

m
p

le
ti

o
n

N
am

e 
an

d 
jo

b 
tit

le
 o

f a
ss

es
sm

en
t 

le
ad

 o
ffi

ce
r:

 
Ia

n 
R

os
s,

 S
po

rt
s 

an
d 

R
ec

re
at

io
n 

M
an

ag
er

 

D
at

e 
of

 c
om

pl
et

io
n:

 
D

ec
em

be
r 

20
11

 –
 u

pd
at

ed
 M

ay
 2

01
2 

N
am

es
 o

f o
th

er
 a

ss
es

sm
en

t t
ea

m
 

m
em

be
rs

 a
nd

 p
eo

pl
e 

co
ns

ul
te

d:
 

M
ac

 M
cD

on
al

d,
 T

ec
hn

ic
al

 O
ffi

ce
r

D
as

hl
in

a 
S

ou
le

ey
o,

 S
en

io
r 

C
om

m
un

ity
 W

or
ke

r 
 

Ju
lie

 D
ur

ra
nt

 –
 P

ro
je

ct
 S

up
po

rt
 O

ffi
ce

r 

17
.

D
at

e 
of

 n
ex

t r
ev

ie
w

 o
f t

he
 E

qI
A

 
T

hi
s 

sh
ou

ld
 b

e 
w

ith
in

 th
re

e 
ye

ar
s 

of
 

th
e 

da
te

 o
f c

om
pl

et
io

n 
of

 th
e 

or
ig

in
al

 
E

qI
A

.

T
he

 a
ss

es
sm

en
t w

ill
 b

e 
re

fin
ed

 fo
llo

w
in

g 
fu

rt
he

r 
co

ns
ul

ta
tio

n,
 in

cl
ud

in
g 

w
ith

 e
qu

al
iti

es
 g

ro
up

s.
  

N
ot

e:
 w

he
n 

co
m

pl
et

ed
 a

 c
op

y 
of

 th
is

 fo
rm

 s
ho

ul
d 

be
 s

av
ed

 w
ith

 th
e 

re
le

va
nt

 s
tr

at
eg

y,
 p

la
n,

 p
ol

ic
y,

 p
ro

je
ct

, c
on

tr
ac

t, 
m

aj
or

 c
ha

ng
e 

in
 

se
rv

ic
e 

or
 d

ec
is

io
n 

an
d 

an
 e

le
ct

ro
ni

c 
co

py
 s

en
t t

o 
A

nd
re

w
 L

im
b,

 H
ea

d 
of

 C
or

po
ra

te
 S

tr
at

eg
y,

 A
nd

re
w

.li
m

b@
ca

m
br

id
ge

/g
ov

.u
k

w
ho

 w
ill

 
ar

ra
ng

e 
fo

r 
pu

bl
ic

at
io

n 
on

 th
e 

C
ou

nc
il’

s 
w

eb
 p

ag
es

 a
nd

 th
e 

In
tr

an
et

.

Page 55



1
2

A
C

T
IO

N
 P

L
A

N
 

E
qu

al
ity

 Im
pa

ct
 A

ss
es

sm
en

t T
itl

e:
 L

ei
su

re
 M

an
ag

em
en

t C
on

tr
ac

t R
e-

te
nd

er
   

   
 D

at
e:

 1
 J

un
e 

20
12

 

E
q

u
al

it
y 

G
ro

u
p

 
D

et
ai

ls
 o

f 
p

o
ss

ib
le

 
d

is
ad

va
n

ta
g

e 
o

r 
n

eg
at

iv
e 

im
p

ac
t

A
ct

io
n

 t
o

 b
e 

ta
ke

n
 t

o
 a

d
d

re
ss

 t
h

e 
d

is
ad

va
n

ta
g

e 
o

r 
n

eg
at

iv
e 

im
p

ac
t 

O
ff

ic
er

 
re

sp
o

n
si

b
le

 f
o

r 
p

ro
g

re
ss

in
g

 t
h

e 
ac

ti
o

n

D
at

e 
ac

ti
o

n
 

to
 b

e 
co

m
p

le
te

d
b

y 
A

ll
Id

en
tif

ic
at

io
n 

of
 fu

rt
he

r 
re

qu
ire

m
en

ts
U

nd
er

ta
ke

 fu
rt

he
r 

co
ns

ul
ta

tio
n 

to
 id

en
tif

y 
eq

ua
lit

ie
s 

is
su

es
.

S
po

rt
 a

nd
 

R
ec

re
at

io
n

M
an

ag
er

O
ct

ob
er

20
12

A
g

e
Lo

ss
 o

f e
xc

lu
si

ve
 a

ge
 r

el
at

ed
 

cl
as

se
s 

op
en

ed
 u

p 
to

 a
bi

lit
y 

le
ve

ls

U
nd

er
ta

ke
 fu

rt
he

r 
co

ns
ul

ta
tio

n 
to

 id
en

tif
y 

eq
ua

lit
ie

s 
is

su
es

. 
S

po
rt

 a
nd

 
R

ec
re

at
io

n
M

an
ag

er

O
ct

ob
er

20
12

D
is

ab
ili

ty
 

Lo
ss

 o
f e

xc
lu

si
ve

 p
oo

l t
im

es
 

E
ns

ur
e 

pr
og

ra
m

m
in

g 
en

ab
le

s 
ex

cl
us

iv
e 

us
e 

w
hi

ls
t b

al
an

ci
ng

 p
ub

lic
 d

em
an

d 
of

 
sh

al
lo

w
 p

oo
l w

at
er

 s
pa

ce
 in

 k
ey

 h
ol

id
ay

 
pe

rio
ds

.

S
po

rt
 a

nd
 

R
ec

re
at

io
n

M
an

ag
er

O
ct

ob
er

20
12

G
en

d
er

/T
ra

n
sg

en
d

er
 

In
c 

ge
nd

er
 r

ea
ss

ig
nm

en
t 

P
re

gn
an

cy
 a

nd
 M

at
er

ni
ty

N
on

e 
- 

Id
en

tif
ie

d 
M

ai
n 

po
ol

s 
ha

ve
 c

ha
ng

in
g 

ro
om

s 
un

is
ex

/ 
m

ix
ed

 v
ill

ag
e 

ch
an

gi
ng

 s
pa

ce
s.

 
N

/A
 

M
ar

ri
ag

e 
an

d
 C

iv
il 

P
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

N
on

e 
- 

Id
en

tif
ie

d 
N

on
e.

  
 

N
/A

  

R
ac

e/
et

h
n

ic
it

y 
Lo

ss
 o

f e
xc

lu
si

ve
 p

oo
l t

im
es

 
E

ns
ur

e 
pr

og
ra

m
m

in
g 

en
ab

le
s 

ex
cl

us
iv

e 
us

e 
w

hi
ls

t b
al

an
ci

ng
 p

ub
lic

 d
em

an
d.

 
S

po
rt

 a
nd

 
R

ec
re

at
io

n
M

an
ag

er

O
ct

ob
er

20
12

R
el

ig
io

n
 o

r 
b

el
ie

f 
Lo

ss
 o

f e
xc

lu
si

ve
 p

oo
l t

im
es

 
E

ns
ur

e 
pr

og
ra

m
m

in
g 

en
ab

le
s 

ex
cl

us
iv

e 
us

e 
w

hi
ls

t b
al

an
ci

ng
 p

ub
lic

 d
em

an
d.

 
S

po
rt

 a
nd

 
R

ec
re

at
io

n
M

an
ag

er

O
ct

ob
er

20
12

S
ex

u
al

 o
ri

en
ta

ti
o

n
 

N
on

e 
- 

Id
en

tif
ie

d 
N

on
e 

 
N

/A
  

In
co

m
e

Le
is

ur
e 

se
rv

ic
es

 a
re

 
un

af
fo

rd
ab

le
E

ns
ur

e 
co

nc
es

si
on

 p
ric

in
g 

is
 a

 fi
rm

 
re

qu
ire

m
en

t i
n 

th
e 

te
nd

er
 w

ith
 a

pp
ro

pr
ia

te
 

im
po

rt
an

ce
.

S
po

rt
 a

nd
 

R
ec

re
at

io
n

M
an

ag
er

O
ct

ob
er

20
12

N
am

e 
an

d 
Jo

b 
T

itl
e 

of
 O

ffi
ce

r 
co

m
pl

et
in

g 
th

e 
A

ct
io

n 
P

la
n:

 Ia
n 

R
os

s,
 S

po
rt

 a
nd

 R
ec

re
at

io
n 

M
an

ag
er

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t/S

er
vi

ce
: C

us
to

m
er

 &
 C

om
m

un
ity

 S
er

vi
ce

s,
 A

rt
s 

an
d 

R
ec

re
at

io
n 

S
er

vi
ce

 
 

T
hi

s 
pl

an
 w

ill
 n

ex
t b

e 
up

da
te

d 
(P

le
as

e 
gi

ve
 d

at
e)

: A
pr

il 
20

13

Page 56



1

CAMBRIDGE CITY COUNCIL 

To:  Equalities Panel Meeting           

Date:  18th June 2012 

Report by:  Head of HR 

Equality in Employment – End of year Update Workforce Report,  
April 2011 - March 2012

Agenda Item 8

Page 57



2

Contents

Section Page

One Purpose 3

Two Workforce Profile – Employee numbers and targets 3

Three Recruitment Profile 6

Four Training 7

Five Disciplinary, Capability, Grievance and Redundancy 8

Six Starters 10

Seven Leavers 10

Eight Pay Bands 11

Nine Summary 11 

Page 58



3

1.  Purpose 

1.1 The purpose of this report is to update the Equalities Panel on the workforce profile as 
at March 2012.

2. Workforce Profile – Employee numbers and targets  

2.1 The Equality Act 2010 was implemented on 1st October 2010 and covers nine 
protected characteristics on the grounds upon which discrimination is unlawful. These 
are race, disability, gender, gender reassignment, sexual orientation, age, religion or 
belief, marriage and civil partnership, pregnancy and maternity.

2.2 The following information sets out the Council’s workforce profile as at 31st March 
2012 in relation to ethnicity, disability, gender, age, religion or belief and sexual 
orientation. All the data shown is in headcount – not full time equivalents 

2.3 Our workforce data was updated by staff completing data validation forms at the end 
of 2011 and this report reflects those updates. 

2.4 Cambridge City Council’s Single Equality Scheme was approved by Strategy & 
Resources Committee in March 2012. This contains an Action Plan over 2012/2015 
with two key objectives in relation to employment issues: 

o To ensure that the City Council’s employment policies and practices are non-
discriminatory and compliant with equalities legislation as a minimum standard. 

o To work towards a more representative workforce within the City Council. 

o The Council’s targets for BAME and disabled representation will be reviewed when 
the 2011 Census data is available (likely mid 2012) 

2.5 Ethnicity
In March 2012, 7.20% of all staff declared themselves to be BAME (Black, Asian and 
Minority Ethnic), which is up slightly from 6.85% in March 2011. This equates to 71 
BAME members of staff in March 2012 in comparison with 73 BAME members of staff 
in March 2011. Our target for 2011/12 is 8.5%.

o Please see appendices 1 and 2 for the Council’s workforce profile. 

o The highest representation of minority ethnic staff is shared between Asian or 
Asian British: Indian (1.12%) and Black or Black British: African (1.12%) followed 
by Asian or Asian British:Other (1.01%) and Black or Black British:Caribbean 
(1.01%). Mixed:White & Asian (0.81%) are then followed by Asian or Asian 
British:Bangladeshi (0.51%).

o There is a low number of BAME staff from the Chinese community with 0.20% of 
our staff being Chinese. This figure remains low in comparison with the Chinese 
community which is the highest single ethnic minority in Cambridge City with 3% of 
the total population being Chinese (CCC Best Value Residence Survey Sept/Nov 
2006).

Page 59



4

o The overall staff numbers have reduced by 69 from 1079 in April 2011 to 1010 in 
March 2012. 

o According to the census in 2001 around 10% of Cambridge population are from 
the BAME community (Black, Asian and Minority Ethnic). BAME refers to those in 
Mixed, Asian or Asian British, Black or Black British, Chinese and Other ethnic 
groups.

2.6 Disability
Currently, 5.05% of the Council’s workforce declares themselves as disabled, which 
equates to 51 staff. This is higher than the March 2011 figure of 43 (3.99%). The main 
reason for the increase in this percentage has been changes in self-declaration 
through the data validation exercise. Our target for the total number of disabled 
employees was 4.5% for 2011/12.

o Please see appendix 3 for the Council’s workforce profile.

o We continue our work with the Papworth Trust  to improve the representation of 
the City’s workforce by increasing the number of disabled people applying for jobs 
with the Council. The Council has a ‘Work Choice’ agreement with the Papworth 
Trust (formerly known as Workstep), which offers help and support to disabled 
employees.

2.7 Gender 
Of our staff, 47.23% are female and 52.77% are male. In March 2011 45.69% of the 
workforce were female and 54.31% were male.

o Please see appendix 4 for the Council’s workforce profile. 

o Part time female employees make up 20.20% (204 members of staff) of all staff 
and part time male employees make up 8.22% (83 members of staff) as detailed 
below:

Gender Full Time Part Time Total % Full Time % Part Time 
Male 450 83 533 44.55 8.22 
Female 273 204 477 27.03 20.20 
Total 723 287 1010 71.58 28.42 

2.8 Age 
The highest percentage of Council staff are now in the 45-54 age group (31.98%). 
This is followed by the 35-44 age group (26.14%), then the 25-34 age group 
(20.99%). The age profile has remained very similar since March 2011. 

o Please see appendix 5 for the Council’s workforce profile. 

o We have 26 staff aged 24 or under and 7 staff aged 65 or over. 

o There are 2 apprentices employed in Waste and Fleet.  Streets and Open 
Spaces have worked in partnership with Nordic Pioneer and 8 young people 
undertook NVQ 2 training in 2011. One of these young people was successful 
in being appointed to a job with Cambridge City through recruitment. It is 
anticipated that we will continue this scheme with another 12 placements being 

Page 60



5

offered in 2012. Community Development – CHYPPS, are in the process of 
recruiting 2 full time apprentice project workers to start in September 2012. 

o 18.3% of the Council’s workforce is 55 or over. 

o Appendix 6 shows that 405 staff (40.10%) have been working for the Council 
10 years or more. 94 staff (9.31%) have been working for the Council less than 
a year, this figure has increased from 49 last year.

2.9 Religion or Belief 
The Council’s current workforce profile in relation to religion or belief is shown in the 
table below. 

o 41.98% of the Council’s staff declare themselves as Christians. 27.23% state 
that they have no religion or belief.

March 2012 March 2011 Count of Employees 
Religion/Belief Total % Total % 
Buddhist 3 0.30 3 0.28 
Christian 424 41.98 444 41.15 
Hindu 5 0.50 5 0.46 
Jewish 1 0.10 1 0.09 
Muslim 14 1.39 13 1.20 
Sikh 2 0.20 2 0.19 
None 275 27.23 279 25.86 
Other 32 3.17 33 3.06 
Refuse/Not Specified 254 25.15 299 27.71 
Grand Total 1010 100.00 1079 100.00 

2.10 Sexual Orientation
The Council’s current workforce profile in relation to sexual orientation is shown 
below:

March 2012 March 2011 Count of Employees 
Sexual Orientation Total % Total % 
Bisexual 13 1.29 10 0.93 
Gay 10 0.99 6 0.56 
Heterosexual 622 61.58 654 60.61 
Lesbian 3 0.30 5 0.46 
Other 3 0.30 5 0.46 
Questioning 5 0.50 4 0.37 
Refuse/Not Specified 354 35.05 395 36.61 
Grand Total 1010 100.00 1079 100.00 

o 61.58% of the Council’s staff declare themselves as heterosexual.  

o 2.58% declare their sexual orientation as being lesbian, gay or bisexual, which 
has increased slightly from 1.95% in March 2011 and 35.05% prefer not to say 
(36.61% in March 2011).

Page 61



6

3. Recruitment Profile

3.1 Ethnicity 
Appendices 7 and 8 show ethnicity in relation to recruitment April 2011 - March 2012 
compared to April 2010 - March 2011. The figures below are a summary and reflect 
numbers of applicants who were successful at interviews. 

April 2011 – March 2012 April 2010 – March 2011 
Applications All

applicants
BAME All applicants BAME 

Received 1704 247 (14.05%) 1223 185 (15.13%) 
Shortlisted 473 (27.7%) 52 (10.99%) 342 (27.96%) 39 (11.40%) 
Appointed 145 (8.51%) 15 (10.34%) 108 (8.8%) 12 (11.11%) 

o The percentage of BAME applications has been lower in 2011/12 at 14.05% 
compared to 15.13% in 2010/11. 

o The number of BAME candidates shortlisted in 2011/12 was 10.99% compared 
to 11.40% in 2010/11 and 10.34% were appointed compared to 11.11% in 
2010/11.

o Our profile of BAME staff is 7.2% and our target is 8.5%, the figures shown 
above exceed our profile and target.

3.2 Disability
Appendices 7 and 8 show disability in relation to recruitment April 2011 – March 2012 
compared to April 2010 - March 2011. The figures below are a summary and reflect 
numbers of applicants who were successful at interviews. 

 April 2011 – March 2012 April 2010 – March 2011 
Applications All

applicants
Disabled All applicants Disabled 

Received 1704 72 (4.23%) 1223 48 (3.92%) 
Shortlisted 473 (27.7%) 22 (4.65%) 342 (27.96%) 12 (3.51%) 
Appointed 145 (8.51%) 6 (4.14%) 108 (8.8%) 2 (1.85%) 

o The percentage of applications received from disabled applicants has 
increased slightly from 3.92% between April 2010-March 2011 to 4.23% 
between April 2011-March 2012. 

o The percentage of shortlisted disabled applicants is higher in the time frame 
from April 2011 – March 2012 (4.65%) in comparison to April 2010 – March 
2011 (3.51%). 

o 6 disabled applicants were appointed during April 2011 – March 2012 (4.14%), 
which is an increase from April 2010 – March 2011 when there were 2 
appointed (1.85%).

Page 62



7

o Having and displaying the “Two Ticks” symbol remains a Council commitment. 
The symbol is a recognition, which Jobcentre Plus gives to employers who 
have agreed to make certain positive commitments regarding the employment, 
retention, training and career development of disabled people. 

o The Council will continue our work with the Papworth Trust to increase the 
number of disabled applicants applying to us.

o Our profile of disabled staff is 5.05% and our target is 4.5%, the figures shown 
above are below our current profile of staff.

3.3 Age
Appendices 7 and 8 show age in relation to recruitment April 2011 – March 2012 
compared to April 2010 - March 2011. 

o Average applications per job have decreased slightly from 11.32 in April 2010 – 
March 2011 to 10.85 in April 2011 to March 2012.

o At application stage and appointment stage the 25 – 34 year age group is 
predominant

3.4 Vacancies by pay band 
Appendix 9 shows the vacancies by pay band for 2011/12, together with total 
applications, and of that, the number of BAME applicants. 

4. Training  

The Council monitors attendance at Corporate Learning and Development staff 
training courses in terms of diversity. A total of 150 courses were held from April 
2011 – March 2012 compared to 136 courses (excluding corporate induction 
courses) from April 2010 - March 2011 (see information below): 

April 2011 – March 2012 

Non
BAME 

BAME Not 
given 

Female Male Not 
given 

54 and 
under  

55 and 
over  

Not
given 

Disabled Non 
disabled 

Not
given 

827 68 14 491 418 0 760 149 0 52 857 0 
909 909 909 909 

90.9% 7.5% 1.5% 54% 46% 0% 83.6% 16.4% 0% 5.7% 94.3% 0% 

April 2010 – March 2011

Non
BAME 

BAME Not 
given 

Female Male Not 
given 

54 and 
under  

55 and 
over  

Not
given 

Disabled Non 
disabled 

Not
given 

652 47 0 302 397 0 555 144 0 34 665 0 
699 699 699 699 

93.3% 6.7% 0% 43.2% 56.8% 0% 79.4% 20.6% 0% 4.9% 95.1% 0% 

o 7.5% of staff attending training in April 2011 to March 2012 declared themselves 
as BAME, which is in line with the percentage of BAME people in the workforce 
7.2% (some staff have attended more than one course). From April 2010 – March 
2011, 6.72% of BAME staff attending training and 6.85% of the total workforce 
declared themselves as BAME. 

o The percentage split of the council’s workforce is 47.23% females and 52.77% 
males. 54% of staff attending training are female and 46% are male. More women 

Page 63



8

than men attended training over this period compared with the previous year when 
more men attended training (56.8%). 

o 83.6% of staff were 54 and under and 16.4% of staff were 55 and over. This profile 
is similar to the 2009/10 and the 2010/11 profile for age 

o 52 staff on training declare themselves as disabled and 857 as non disabled. 
These figures show that the percentage of disabled staff attending training (5.7%) 
is higher than the total percentage of disabled staff employed by the council 
(5.05%). From April 2010 – March 2011 4.9% of staff attending training declared 
themselves as disabled. 

o      As part of the HR induction training a ½ day training session is delivered for all 
new staff on equalities. There is also a shorter 30 minutes diversity slot delivered 
as part of the full day’s staff induction.

o The Corporate Learning and Development Programme includes a diversity course 
(staff and managers). All equalities training sessions have been updated to reflect 
changes to legislation following the implementation of the Equality Act 2010. 

5. Disciplinary, Capability, Grievance and Redundancy 

Disciplinary, Capability, Grievance and Redundancy cases are monitored in terms of 
diversity as outlined below. 

5.1 Disciplinary
During the period from April 2011 – March 2012, 10 people (0.99%) have been 
involved in disciplinary cases, compared to 20 people from April 2010 – March 2011, 
which is broken down as follows: 

 Non 
BAME 

BAME Not 
given 

Female Male Not 
given

Under 
55

55
or
over

Not
given

Disabled Non 
disabled

Not
given

April
2011
-
March
2012

9 1 0 2 8 0 8 2 0 0 10 0 

April
2010
–
March
2011

20 0 0 5 15 0 15 5 0 0 20 0 

o 8 male and 2 female workers were involved in disciplinary cases. 

o 1 BAME staff  and no disabled staff have had a disciplinary case in this period.

o  2 members of staff who were 55 years of age or over were involved in a case.

Page 64



9

5.2 Capability
There were 2 capability processes in the period April 2011  – March 2012. None of 
which were from the protected groups. 

 Non 
BAME 

BAME Not 
given 

Female Male Not 
given

Under 
55

55
or
over

Not
given

Disabled Non 
disabled

Not
given

April
2011
–
March
2012

2 0 0 0 2 0 2 0 0 0 2 0 

April
2010
–
March
2011

2 2 0 0 4 0 4 0 0 1 3 0 

5.3 Grievance
11 people (1.09%) raised individual grievances and there was one collective 
grievance during April - March 2012. Compared to 7 people during April 2010 - March 
2011. Six were female, none were disabled, none were BAME and one was 55 or 
over.

5.4 Redundancy
In the same time period the Council made 16 people (1.58%) redundant, compared to 
19 people from April 2010 – March 2011, which can be broken down as follows: 

 Non 
BAME 

BAME Not 
given 

Female Male Not 
given

Under 
55

55
or
over

Not
given

Disabled Non 
disabled

Not
given

April
2011
to
March
2012

10 0 1 6 5 0 9 1 1 0 10 1 

April
2010
to
March
2011

5 2 0 3 4 0 6 1 0 1 6 0 

 Non 
BAME 

BAME Not 
given 

Female Male Not 
given

Under 
55

55
or
over

Not
given

Disabled Non 
disabled

Not
given

April
2011
to
March
2012

15 1 0 6 10 0 9 7 0 1 15 0 

April
2010
to
March
2011

18 1 0 11 8 0 8 11 0 1 18 0 

Page 65



10

 FT PT 
Female 4 2 
Male 7 3 

o 7 people aged 55 or over were made redundant.

o 1 BAME staff member was made redundant.

o 1 disabled member of staff was made redundant. 

5.5 Bullying and Harassment 
There has been one new bullying and harassment case from April 2011 – March 
2012.

6. Starters 

All new appointments made are monitored in terms of race, gender and disability 
(please see Appendices 10 and 11) and cover internal as well as external recruitment. 

o The Council has made 145 new appointments from April 2011 – March 2012 
whereas 108 appointments were made between April 2010 - March 2011. 

o 94 (65%) were external appointments and 51 (35%) were internal appointments, 
compared to 66 (61%) external and 42 (39%) internal appointments between April 
2010 – March 2011. Of the 51 internal appointments between April 2011 and 
March 2012, 18 were promotions (increased pay band) and of the 18, 13 were 
female, 5 male, none were disabled, 2 were BAME and 1 was under 55.

o Of the 145 appointments made 5 were disabled, 84 were women and 15 were 
from the BAME community. Between April 2010 – March 2011, of the 108 new 
appointments 2 were disabled, 60 were women and 12 were BAME. 

7. Leavers 

The purpose of monitoring leavers in terms of diversity (see Appendices 12 and13) is 
to highlight whether a disproportionate number of women, disabled or BAME people 
are leaving the council in comparison to our overall staff turnover.

From April 2011 to March 2012 150 staff left the Council and figures show that out of 
these 6 were disabled, 67 were women and 12 were BAME. Reasons for leaving are 
shown in the table below: 

Reason for leaving 
53 Voluntary 
4 Dismissal 

10 End of contract 
2 Death in service 
4 Career break 

16 Redundancy 
23 Retirement 
38 TUPE 

150

Page 66



11

Turnover during the period 2011-2012 is 5.1% based on voluntary leavers as a 
percentage of the average number of employees. 

Appendices 12 and 13 show changes from the April 2010 – March 2011 figures as 
displayed below.

o From April 2011 – March 2012 4.05% of all leavers were disabled against 4.39% 
from April 2010 – March 2011. 

o From April 2011 – March 2012 8.11% of all leavers were BAME against 10.53% 
from April 2010 – March 2011. 

o From April 2011 – March 2012 44.62% of all leavers were women against 53.04% 
from April 2010 – March 2011. 

Appendix 14 shows the number of leavers by pay band in 2011/12 and 2010/11. The 
highest percentage of leavers was in Band 5 in 2011/12 and Band 3 in 2010/11. 

Appendix 15 shows the analysis of completed exit questionnaires. These are 
completed voluntarily and can be completed anonymously. For 2011/12 these were 
completed by 42 people. 

8. Pay Bands 

8.1 Ethnicity 
We are performing well against our set target of 8.5% for 2011/12 of BAME 
representation within the lower pay bands 1 and 2.

o Please see appendices 1 and 2 for the Council’s workforce profile. 

o However, we are below target for the higher pay bands particularly band 9 where 
we do not have any BAME staff represented.

o Representation of BAME staff in pay bands 2, 4, 6 and 8 has increased since 
March 2011. 

8.2 Disability 
Our current target for disabled employees 2011/12 is 4.5% (see appendix 3), the 
council wide figure is 5.05% and we are exceeding our target in bands 1, 3, 4, 7, 9, 
and Senior Management. 

8.3 Gender
Of our 1010 members of staff, 47% are female and 53% are male (see appendix 4).  

o Women outnumber men in pay bands 4, 6 and 9. In pay band 9 (£38,042 –
£46,370), there is now a higher representation of women (58.82%) than men 
(41.18%).

Page 67



12

8.4 Age 
All younger employees (18 or under and 19-24) are in the low to mid pay bands 1-5 
(see appendix 6). For our remaining age bands there is representation across all 
grades.

9. Summary 
We have set ourselves targets for both BAME (8.5%) and disabled (4.5%) staff as a 
percentage of the workforce. The percentage of staff who declare themselves as 
BAME has increased slightly from 6.85% at the end of March 2011 to 7.20% in March 
2012.

The Council’s targets for BAME and disabled representation will be reviewed when 
the 2011 Census data is available (likely mid 2012). 

The percentage of staff who declare themselves as disabled has increased slightly 
from 3.99% at the end of March 2011 to 5.05% in March 2012. 

Our representation of male (53%) and female (47%) members is similar to the figures 
reported at the end of March 2011.

Women are now more represented than men in pay band 9, although men are still 
more represented at Senior Management level.

The highest percentage of Council staff (31.98%) are now in the 45-54 age group. 

The number of BAME candidates who were successful in being appointed (10.34%) is 
proportionate to the number of shortlisted BAME applicants (10.99%).

The percentage of shortlisted disabled applicants (4.65%) is higher in this period in 
comparison to April 2010 – March 2011, which was 3.51%.

The average applications per job have decreased from 11.32 in April 2010 – March 
2011 to 10.85 in April 2011 to March 2012.

Page 68



1
3

B
A

M
E

/P
ay

 B
an

d 
P

ro
fi

le
 

 
In

fo
rm

at
io

n
 D

at
e:

 3
1

/0
3

/2
0

1
2

E
th

ni
c 

O
rig

in
 

B
A

N
D

 1
B

A
N

D
 2

B
A

N
D

 3
B

A
N

D
 4

B
A

N
D

 5
B

A
N

D
 6

 B
A

N
D

 7
B

A
N

D
 8

B
A

N
D

 9
S

E
N

M
G

T
O

T
H

E
R

G
ra

nd
 T

ot
al

 
%

E
th

ni
ci

ty
A

si
an

 o
r 

A
si

an
 B

rit
is

h:
B

an
gl

ad
es

hi
 

  
  

2 
2 

  
1 

  
  

  
  

  
5 

0.
51

%
 

A
si

an
 o

r 
A

si
an

 B
rit

is
h:

In
di

an
 

2 
1 

  
1 

3 
1 

2 
  

  
1 

  
11

 
1.

12
%

 
A

si
an

 o
r 

A
si

an
 B

rit
is

h:
O

th
er

 
1 

6 
1 

1 
1 

  
  

  
  

  
  

10
 

1.
01

%
 

A
si

an
 o

r 
A

si
an

 B
rit

is
h:

P
ak

is
ta

ni
 

  
1 

  
1 

  
1 

  
  

  
  

  
3 

0.
30

%
 

B
la

ck
 o

r 
B

la
ck

 B
rit

is
h:

A
fr

ic
an

 
  

3 
2 

2 
2 

2 
  

  
  

  
  

11
 

1.
12

%
 

B
la

ck
 o

r 
B

la
ck

 B
rit

is
h:

C
ar

ib
be

an
 

  
1 

4 
3 

1 
  

  
1 

  
  

  
10

 
1.

01
%

 
B

la
ck

 o
r 

B
la

ck
 B

rit
is

h:
O

th
er

 
  

1 
1 

1 
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

3 
0.

30
%

 
C

hi
ne

se
 o

r 
ot

he
r 

E
th

ni
c:

C
hi

ne
se

 
  

  
1 

  
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

1 
0.

10
%

 
C

hi
ne

se
 o

r 
ot

he
r 

E
th

ni
c:

O
th

er
 

  
  

  
  

  
1 

  
  

  
  

  
1 

0.
10

%
 

M
ix

ed
:O

th
er

  
  

1 
1 

2 
  

  
  

  
  

  
4 

0.
41

%
 

M
ix

ed
:W

hi
te

&
A

si
an

  
4 

1 
  

1 
2 

  
  

  
  

  
8 

0.
81

%
 

M
ix

ed
:W

hi
te

&
B

la
ck

 A
fr

ic
an

 
  

1 
  

1 
  

  
  

  
  

  
  

2 
0.

20
%

 
M

ix
ed

:W
hi

te
&

B
la

ck
 C

ar
ib

be
an

 
  

1 
  

  
  

1 
  

  
  

  
  

2 
0.

20
%

 
T

ra
ve

lle
r:

 F
ro

m
 a

 T
ra

ve
lli

ng
 C

om
m

un
ity

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
0 

0%
 

W
hi

te
:B

rit
is

h
11

 
93

 
20

4 
14

5 
13

7 
12

9 
68

 
28

 
17

 
19

 
  

85
1 

86
.3

1%
 

W
hi

te
:Ir

is
h

  
2 

2 
2 

3 
2 

  
1 

  
1 

  
13

 
1.

32
%

 
W

hi
te

:O
th

er
2 

13
 

15
 

10
 

4 
4 

2 
  

  
1 

  
51

 
5.

17
%

 
T

o
ta

l B
A

M
E

 E
m

p
lo

ye
es

 
3 

19
 

13
 

13
 

10
 

9 
2 

1 
0 

1 
0 

71

T
o

ta
l i

n
 P

ay
b

an
d

 (
B

A
M

E
 D

at
a 

S
u

p
p

ie
d

)
16

 
12

7 
23

4 
17

0 
15

4 
14

4 
72

 
30

 
17

 
22

 
0 

98
6

B
A

M
E

 %
 

18
.7

5%
14

.9
6%

5.
56

%
7.

65
%

6.
49

%
6.

25
%

2.
78

%
3.

33
%

0.
00

%
4.

55
%

0.
00

%

7.
20

%
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
P

re
fe

r 
no

t t
o 

sa
y 

  
2 

3 
4 

3 
5 

  
  

  
  

7 
24

 
2.

38
%

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

T
ot

al
 W

or
kf

or
ce

 w
ith

in
 p

ay
ba

nd
 

16
 

12
9 

23
7 

17
4 

15
7 

14
9 

72
 

30
 

17
 

22
 

7 
10

10
 

 
P

er
ce

nt
 

1.
58

%
 

12
.7

7%
23

.4
7%

17
.2

3%
15

.5
4%

14
.7

5%
 

7.
13

%
 

2.
97

%
 

1.
68

%
 

2.
18

%
0.

69
%

10
0.

00
%

 
 

A
pp

en
di

x 
1

Page 69



1
4

B
A

M
E

/P
ay

 B
an

d 
P

ro
fi

le
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
In

fo
rm

at
io

n
 D

at
e:

 3
1

/0
3

/1
1

 
A

pp
en

di
x 

2

E
th

ni
c 

O
rig

in
B

A
N

D
 1

B
A

N
D

 2
B

A
N

D
 3

B
A

N
D

 4
B

A
N

D
 5

B
A

N
D

 6
B

A
N

D
 7

B
A

N
D

 8
B

A
N

D
 9

S
E

N
 

M
G

T
O

T
H

E
R

G
ra

nd
 

T
ot

al
%

 E
th

ni
ci

ty
A

si
an

 o
r 

A
si

an
 B

rit
is

h:
B

an
gl

ad
es

hi
2

1
1

4
0.

37
%

A
si

an
 o

r 
A

si
an

 B
rit

is
h:

In
di

an
2

1
1

3
1

2
1

11
1.

02
%

A
si

an
 o

r 
A

si
an

 B
rit

is
h:

O
th

er
1

7
1

1
1

11
1.

02
%

A
si

an
 o

r 
A

si
an

 B
rit

is
h:

P
ak

is
ta

ni
1

1
2

0.
19

%
B

la
ck

 o
r 

B
la

ck
 B

rit
is

h:
A

fr
ic

an
1

2
2

4
1

10
0.

93
%

B
la

ck
 o

r 
B

la
ck

 B
rit

is
h:

C
ar

ib
be

an
3

5
3

1
1

13
1.

20
%

B
la

ck
 o

r 
B

la
ck

 B
rit

is
h:

O
th

er
1

1
2

4
0.

37
%

C
hi

ne
se

 o
r 

ot
he

r 
E

th
ni

c:
C

hi
ne

se
1

1
0.

09
%

C
hi

ne
se

 o
r 

ot
he

r 
E

th
ni

c:
O

th
er

1
1

0.
09

%
M

ix
ed

:O
th

er
1

1
2

3
7

0.
65

%
M

ix
ed

:W
hi

te
&

A
si

an
2

1
1

1
5

0.
46

%
M

ix
ed

:W
hi

te
&

B
la

ck
 A

fr
ic

an
1

1
2

0.
19

%
M

ix
ed

:W
hi

te
&

B
la

ck
 C

ar
ib

be
an

1
1

2
0.

19
%

T
ra

ve
lle

r:
 F

ro
m

 a
 T

ra
ve

lli
ng

 C
om

m
un

ity
0

0.
00

%
W

hi
te

:B
rit

is
h

11
10

0
20

1
15

9
16

8
13

8
68

38
15

18
1

91
7

84
.9

9%
W

hi
te

:Ir
is

h
3

3
1

4
1

1
2

15
1.

39
%

W
hi

te
:O

th
er

2
13

18
13

6
6

2
1

61
5.

65
%

T
o

ta
l B

A
M

E
 E

m
p

lo
ye

es
3

17
15

14
13

7
3

0
0

1
0

73
T

o
ta

l i
n

 P
ay

b
an

d
 (

B
A

M
E

 D
at

a 
su

p
p

lie
d

)
16

13
3

23
7

18
7

19
1

15
2

73
39

15
22

1
10

66
B

A
M

E
 %

18
.7

5%
12

.7
8%

6.
33

%
7.

49
%

6.
81

%
4.

61
%

4.
11

%
0.

00
%

0.
00

%
4.

55
%

0.
00

%

P
re

fe
r 

no
t t

o 
sa

y
1

3
3

3
3

13
1.

20
%

T
ot

al
 W

or
kf

or
ce

 w
ith

in
 P

ay
ba

nd
16

13
4

24
0

19
0

19
4

15
5

73
39

15
22

1
10

79

6.
85

%

Page 70



1
5

D
is

ab
ili

ty
 P

ro
fi

le
In

fo
rm

at
io

n
 D

at
e 

3
1

/0
3

/2
0

1
2

D
is

ab
ili

ty
 P

ro
fi

le
 b

y 
B

an
d

 -
 M

ar
ch

 2
01

2

93
.7

5%
96

.1
2%

94
.9

4%
93

.6
8%

95
.5

4%
96

.6
4%

94
.4

4%
96

.6
7%

82
.3

5%
90

.9
1%

10
0.

00
%

4.
46

%
6.

32
%

5.
06

%
3.

88
%

6.
25

%
3.

36
%

5.
56

%
3.

33
%

17
.6

5%
9.

09
%

0.
00

%
0.

00
%

20
.0

0%

40
.0

0%

60
.0

0%

80
.0

0%

10
0.

00
%

B
A

N
D

 1
B

A
N

D
 2

B
A

N
D

 3
B

A
N

D
 4

B
A

N
D

 5
B

A
N

D
 6

B
A

N
D

 7
B

A
N

D
 8

B
A

N
D

 9
S

EN
 M

G
T

O
TH

ER

P
ay

 B
an

d

No of Employees

N
O

Y
ES

D
is

ab
le

d
B

A
N

D
 1

 
B

A
N

D
 2

 
B

A
N

D
 3

 
B

A
N

D
 4

 
B

A
N

D
 5

 
B

A
N

D
 6

 
B

A
N

D
 7

 
B

A
N

D
 8

B
A

N
D

 9
 

S
E

N
 M

G
T

 
O

T
H

E
R

T
O

T
A

L
 

%
 

N
O

 
15

 
12

4 
22

5 
16

3 
15

0 
14

4 
68

 
29

 
14

 
20

 
7 

95
9 

94
.9

5%
 

Y
E

S
 

1 
5 

12
 

11
 

7 
5 

4 
1 

3 
2 

  
51

 
5.

05
%

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
10

10

D
is

ab
ili

ty
 P

ro
fi

le
In

fo
rm

at
io

n
 D

at
e 

3
1

/0
3

/2
0

1
1

D
is

ba
ili

ty
 P

ro
fil

e 
by

 B
an

d 
- M

ar
ch

 2
01

1

93
.7

5%
97

.7
6%

94
.1

7%
95

.2
6%

96
.9

1%
98

.0
6%

97
.2

6%
94

.8
7%

86
.6

7%
95

.4
5%

10
0.

00
%

2.
74

%
1.

94
%

3.
09

%
4.

74
%

5.
83

%
2.

24
%

6.
25

%
5.

13
%

13
.3

3%
4.

55
%

0.
00

%
0.

00
%

20
.0

0%

40
.0

0%

60
.0

0%

80
.0

0%

10
0.

00
%

12
0.

00
%

B
A

N
D

 1
B

A
N

D
 2

B
A

N
D

 3
B

A
N

D
 4

B
A

N
D

 5
B

A
N

D
 6

B
A

N
D

 7
B

A
N

D
 8

B
A

N
D

 9
S

EN
 M

G
T

O
TH

ER

P
ay

 B
an

d

No of Employees

N
O

Y
ES

D
is

ab
le

d
B

A
N

D
 1

 
B

A
N

D
 2

 
B

A
N

D
 3

 
B

A
N

D
 4

 
B

A
N

D
 5

 
B

A
N

D
 6

 
B

A
N

D
 7

B
A

N
D

 8
B

A
N

D
 9

S
E

N
 M

G
T

O
T

H
E

R
 

T
O

T
A

L
%

N
o 

15
 

13
1 

22
6 

18
1 

18
8 

15
2 

71
 

37
 

13
 

21
 

1 
10

36
 

96
.0

1%
 

Y
es

 
1 

3 
14

 
9 

6 
3 

2 
2 

2 
1 

0 
43

 
3.

99
%

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
10

79

A
pp

en
di

x 
3

Page 71



1
6

G
en

de
r 

P
ro

fi
le

In
fo

rm
at

io
n

 D
at

e 
3

1
/0

3
/2

0
1

2

G
e

n
d

e
r 

P
ro

fi
le

 b
y 

B
a

n
d

 -
 M

a
rc

h
 2

01
2

05010
0

15
0

B
A

N
D

 1
B

A
N

D
 2

B
A

N
D

 3
B

A
N

D
 4

B
A

N
D

 5
B

A
N

D
 6

B
A

N
D

 7
B

A
N

D
 8

B
A

N
D

 9
S

EN
 M

G
T

O
TH

ER

P
ay

 B
an

d

No of Employees

Fe
m

al
e

M
al

e

G
en

de
r 

B
A

N
D

 1
 

B
A

N
D

 2
 

B
A

N
D

 3
B

A
N

D
 4

 
B

A
N

D
 5

 
B

A
N

D
 6

 
B

A
N

D
 7

 
B

A
N

D
 8

 
B

A
N

D
 9

 
S

E
N

 M
G

T
 

O
T

H
E

R
G

ra
n

d
 T

o
ta

l 
%

F
em

al
e 

6 
55

 
95

 
10

0 
70

 
79

 
35

 
13

 
10

 
9 

5 
47

7 
47

.2
3%

 
M

al
e 

10
 

74
 

14
2 

74
 

87
 

70
 

37
 

17
 

7 
13

 
2 

53
3 

52
.7

7%
 

G
ra

n
d

 T
o

ta
l

16
 

12
9 

23
7 

17
4 

15
7 

14
9 

72
 

30
 

17
 

22
 

7 
10

10
 

G
en

de
r 

P
ro

fi
le

In
fo

rm
at

io
n

 D
at

e 
3

1
/0

3
/2

0
1

1

G
e

n
d

e
r 

P
ro

fi
le

 b
y 

B
a

n
d

 M
a

rc
h

 2
01

1

05010
0

15
0

20
0

B
AN

D
 1

B
AN

D
 2

B
AN

D
 3

B
AN

D
 4

B
AN

D
 5

B
AN

D
 6

B
AN

D
 7

B
AN

D
 8

B
AN

D
 9

S
E

N
 M

G
T

O
TH

E
R

P
ay

 B
an

d

No of Empolyees

Fe
m

al
e

M
al

e

G
en

de
r 

B
A

N
D

 1
B

A
N

D
 2

 
B

A
N

D
 3

 
B

A
N

D
 4

 
B

A
N

D
 5

 
B

A
N

D
 6

 
B

A
N

D
 7

 
B

A
N

D
 8

 
B

A
N

D
 9

S
E

N
 M

G
T

O
T

H
E

R
G

ra
n

d
 T

o
ta

l
%

 
F

em
al

e 
6 

58
 

95
 

10
8 

82
 

70
 

40
 

18
 

8 
8 

0 
49

3 
45

.6
9%

 
M

al
e 

10
 

76
 

14
5 

82
 

11
2 

85
 

33
 

21
 

7 
14

 
1 

58
6 

54
.3

1%
 

G
ra

n
d

 T
o

ta
l

16
 

13
4 

24
0 

19
0 

19
4 

15
5 

73
 

39
 

15
 

22
 

1 
10

79
 

  

A
pp

en
di

x 
4

Page 72



1
7

A
ge

 P
ro

fi
le

In
fo

rm
at

io
n

 D
at

e 
3

1
/0

3
/2

0
1

2

B
A

N
D

 1
 

B
A

N
D

 2
 

B
A

N
D

 3
B

A
N

D
 4

B
A

N
D

 5
B

A
N

D
 6

B
A

N
D

 7
 

B
A

N
D

 8
B

A
N

D
 9

S
E

N
M

G
T

O
T

H
E

R
T

o
ta

l i
n

 
A

g
e 

B
an

d
P

er
ce

n
t

18
 o

r 
u

n
d

er
 

0 
0 

0 
0 

0 
0 

0 
0 

0 
0 

0 
0 

0.
00

%
 

19
-2

4
  

5 
14

 
5 

2 
  

  
  

  
  

  
26

 
2.

57
%

 
25

-3
4

2 
32

 
40

 
56

 
34

 
38

 
6 

  
3 

  
1 

21
2 

20
.9

9%
 

35
-4

4
4 

41
 

49
 

38
 

49
 

42
 

24
 

11
 

3 
2 

1 
26

4 
26

.1
4%

 
45

-5
4

5 
24

 
83

 
50

 
46

 
47

 
30

 
14

 
9 

14
 

1 
32

3 
31

.9
8%

 
55

-6
4

4 
27

 
49

 
24

 
26

 
21

 
11

 
5 

2 
6 

3 
17

8 
17

.6
2%

 
65

 a
n

d
 o

ve
r 

1 
  

2 
1 

  
1 

1 
  

  
  

1 
7 

0.
69

%
 

T
o

ta
l i

n
 P

ay
 B

an
d

16
 

12
9 

23
7 

17
4 

15
7 

14
9 

72
 

30
 

17
 

22
 

7 
10

10
 

P
er

ce
n

t
1.

58
%

 
12

.7
7%

 
23

.4
7%

17
.2

3%
15

.5
4%

14
.7

5%
7.

13
%

 
2.

97
%

 
1.

68
%

 
2.

18
%

 
0.

69
%

 
  

  

A
ge

 P
ro

fi
le

In
fo

rm
at

io
n

 D
at

e 
3

1
/0

3
/2

0
1

1
 

B
A

N
D

 1
 

B
A

N
D

 2
 

B
A

N
D

 3
B

A
N

D
 4

B
A

N
D

 5
B

A
N

D
 6

B
A

N
D

 7
 

B
A

N
D

 8
B

A
N

D
 9

S
E

N
M

G
T

O
T

H
E

R
T

o
ta

l i
n

 
A

g
e 

B
an

d
P

er
ce

n
t

18
 o

r 
U

n
d

er
 

 0
 

 0
 

0 
0 

 
0 

 
0 

 
0 

 
0 

 
0 

 
0 

 
0 

 
0 

0.
00

%
 

19
 -

 2
4 

2 
6 

8 
4 

3 
1 

  
  

  
  

1 
25

 
2.

32
%

 
25

 -
 3

4 
  

39
 

44
 

67
 

40
 

35
 

6 
2 

  
  

  
23

3 
21

.5
9%

 
35

 -
 4

4 
4 

33
 

47
 

39
 

62
 

44
 

28
 

16
 

5 
2 

  
28

0 
25

.9
5%

 
45

 -
 5

4 
5 

27
 

86
 

53
 

59
 

49
 

24
 

12
 

7 
12

 
  

33
4 

30
.9

5%
 

55
 -

 6
4 

5 
27

 
55

 
26

 
30

 
25

 
14

 
9 

3 
7 

  
20

1 
18

.6
3%

 
65

 a
n

d
 O

ve
r 

  
2 

  
1 

  
1 

1 
  

  
1 

  
6 

0.
56

%
 

G
ra

n
d

 T
o

ta
l 

16
 

13
4 

24
0 

19
0 

19
4 

15
5 

73
 

39
 

15
 

22
 

1 
10

79
 

  
P

er
ce

n
t

1.
48

%
 

12
.4

2%
 

22
.2

4%
17

.6
1%

17
.9

8%
14

.3
7%

6.
77

%
 

3.
61

%
 

1.
39

%
 

2.
04

%
 

0.
09

%
 

  
  A

pp
en

di
x 

5

Page 73



1
8

L
en

gt
h 

of
 S

er
vi

ce
 P

ro
fi

le

In
fo

rm
at

io
n

 D
at

e 
3

1
/0

3
/2

0
1

2
 

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t 

U
p 

to
 6

 m
on

th
s 

6 
m

on
th

s 
to

 1
 y

r 
1 

yr
 to

 2
 y

rs
 

2 
yr

s 
to

 5
 y

rs
 

5 
yr

s 
to

 1
0 

yr
s 

10
 y

rs
 to

 2
0 

yr
s

20
 y

ea
rs

 +
 

T
o

ta
l

C
hi

ef
E

xe
cu

tiv
es

 
2 

3 
3 

7 
8 

6 
1 

30

C
us

to
m

er
 &

 
C

om
m

un
ity

 S
er

vi
ce

s 
36

 
21

 
12

 
62

 
11

4 
85

 
46

 
37

6
E

nv
iro

nm
en

t 
22

 
5 

19
 

78
 

12
3 

11
5 

64
 

42
6

R
es

ou
rc

es
 

1 
4 

3 
20

 
62

 
47

 
41

 
17

8
G

ra
n

d
T

o
ta

l 
61

 
33

 
37

 
16

7 
30

7 
25

3 
15

2 
10

10
 

P
er

ce
n

ta
g

e 
6.

04
%

 
3.

27
%

 
3.

66
%

 
16

.5
3%

 
30

.4
0%

 
25

.0
5%

 
15

.0
5%

 

In
fo

rm
at

io
n

 D
at

e 
3

1
/0

3
/2

0
1

1

A
pp

en
di

x 
6

T
o

ta
l

D
ep

ar
tm

en
t

C
hi

ef
 E

xe
cu

tiv
es

28

C
us

to
m

er
 &

 
C

om
m

un
ity

 S
er

vi
ce

s
37

7
E

nv
iro

nm
en

t
45

0
R

es
ou

rc
es

22
4

G
ra

n
d

 T
o

ta
l

10
79

P
er

ce
n

ta
g

e

49 22
9

21
.2

2%

53 73 51 17
9

16
.5

9%

29 22
3

20
.6

7%

12
5

13
6

91 35
8

33
.1

8%6
7

2

10
3

85
75 98

22

3.
80

%
41214

2.
22

%

1 11 12 1 25
2.

32
%

6 14 1 24

10
 y

rs
 to

 2
0 

yr
s

2 
yr

s 
to

 5
 y

rs
20

 y
ea

rs
 +

3
3

6

5 
yr

s 
to

 1
0 

yr
s

6 
m

on
th

s 
to

 1
 y

r
U

p 
to

 6
 m

on
th

s
1 

yr
 to

 2
 y

rs

Page 74



1
9

E
th

ni
c 

O
rig

in
 

A
pp

lic
at

io
ns

 R
ec

ei
ve

d 
A

pp
lic

an
ts

 S
ho

rt
lis

te
d 

A
pp

lic
an

ts
 S

uc
ce

ss
fu

l 

M
al

e 
F

em
al

e 
N

ot
G

iv
en

D
is

ab
le

d
A

ge
 P

ro
fil

e 
M

al
e

F
em

al
e

N
ot

G
iv

en
D

is
ab

le
d

A
ge

 P
ro

fil
e 

M
al

e
F

em
al

e
N

ot
 G

iv
en

D
is

ab
le

d 
A

ge
 P

ro
fil

e 

A
si

an
 o

r 
A

si
an

 
B

rit
is

h:
B

an
gl

ad
es

hi
21

 
15

 
0 

0 
U

n
d

er
 1

8
14

 
7 

3 
0 

0 
U

n
d

er
 1

8
0 

2 
1 

0 
0 

U
n

d
er

 1
8 

0
A

si
an

 o
r 

A
si

an
 B

rit
is

h:
In

di
an

 
12

 
21

 
0 

1 
19

 -
24

 
31

1
2 

3 
0 

1 
19

 -
24

 
60

0 
0 

0 
0 

19
 -

24
 

17
A

si
an

 o
r 

A
si

an
 B

rit
is

h:
O

th
er

 
15

 
10

 
0 

0 
25

-3
4

60
0

2 
4 

0 
0 

25
-3

4
16

1
0 

3 
0 

0 
25

-3
4

56
A

si
an

 o
r 

A
si

an
 B

rit
is

h:
P

ak
is

ta
ni

9 
10

 
0 

1 
35

-4
4

30
3

  
2 

0 
0 

35
-4

4
93

0 
1 

0 
0 

35
-4

4
40

B
la

ck
 o

r 
B

la
ck

 B
rit

is
h:

A
fr

ic
an

 
21

 
13

 
0 

0 
45

-5
4

30
8

7 
4 

0 
0 

45
-5

4
11

0
1 

0 
0 

0 
45

-5
4

22
B

la
ck

 o
r 

B
la

ck
 B

rit
is

h:
C

ar
ib

be
an

8 
6 

0 
0 

55
-6

4
12

2
1 

1 
0 

0 
55

-6
4

40
0 

0 
0 

0 
55

-6
4

9
B

la
ck

 o
r 

B
la

ck
 B

rit
is

h:
O

th
er

 
1 

0 
0 

0 
65

+
5 

0 
0 

0 
0 

65
+

1 
0 

0 
0 

0 
65

+
0

C
hi

ne
se

 o
r 

ot
he

r 
E

th
ni

c:
C

hi
ne

se
2 

9 
0 

0 
N

ot
 G

iv
en

41
 

0 
2 

0 
0 

N
ot

 G
iv

en
8 

0 
0 

0 
0 

N
o

t 
G

iv
en

 
1

C
hi

ne
se

 o
r 

ot
he

r 
E

th
ni

c:
O

th
er

 
0 

2 
0 

0 
0 

0 
0 

0 
0 

0 
0 

0 
M

ix
ed

:O
th

er
 

6 
10

0
1

3 
0 

0 
1 

1 
0 

0 
0 

M
ix

ed
:W

hi
te

&
A

si
an

 
6 

17
 

0 
0 

2 
3 

0 
0 

2 
3 

0 
0 

M
ix

ed
:W

hi
te

&
B

la
ck

 A
fr

ic
an

 
6 

8 
0 

0 
1 

2 
0 

0 
1 

0 
0 

0 
M

ix
ed

:W
hi

te
&

B
la

ck
 C

ar
ib

be
an

 
12

 
7 

0 
0 

1 
2 

0 
0 

0 
0 

0 
0 

T
ra

ve
lle

r:
 F

ro
m

 a
 T

ra
ve

lli
ng

 
C

om
m

un
ity

0 
0 

0 
0 

0 
0 

0 
0 

0 
0 

0 
0 

W
hi

te
:B

rit
is

h 
58

1 
62

6
1

58
17

1
18

7 
1 

18
 

44
 

68
 

1 
5 

W
hi

te
:Ir

is
h 

8 
10

0
1

1 
4 

0 
0 

1 
0 

0 
0 

W
hi

te
:O

th
er

 
72

 
10

2
0

5
20

 
24

 
0 

0 
8 

6 
0 

0 
N

ot
 G

iv
en

 
14

 
10

 
2 

0 
2 

  
1 

0 
0 

0 
0 

0 
P

re
fe

r 
no

t t
o 

sa
y 

13
 

18
 

0 
5 

4 
6 

0 
2 

0 
2 

0 
1 

80
7 

89
4 

3 
72

 
T

o
ta

l 
17

04
22

4
24

7 
2 

22
 

T
o

ta
l 

47
3

60
 

84
 

1 
6 

T
o

ta
l 

14
5 

R
ec

ru
it

m
en

t E
qu

al
 O

pp
or

tu
ni

ti
es

 P
ro

fi
le

 A
pr

il 
20

11
- M

ar
ch

 2
01

2 
 

 
 

 
 

 
   

 A
pp

en
di

x 
7 

Page 75



2
0

E
th

ni
c 

O
rig

in
M

al
e

F
em

al
e

N
ot

 G
iv

en
D

is
ab

le
d

M
al

e
F

em
al

e
D

is
ab

le
d

M
al

e
F

em
al

e
D

is
ab

le
d

A
si

an
 o

r 
A

si
an

 B
rit

is
h:

B
an

gl
ad

es
hi

5
6

0
0

U
n

d
er

 1
8

20
0

0
0

U
n

d
er

 1
8

2
0

0
0

U
n

d
er

 1
8

0
A

si
an

 o
r 

A
si

an
 B

rit
is

h:
In

di
an

16
22

0
1

19
 -

24
16

3
5

3
1

19
 -

24
31

1
2

0
19

 -
24

13
A

si
an

 o
r 

A
si

an
 B

rit
is

h:
O

th
er

8
16

0
0

25
-3

4
40

3
1

6
0

25
-3

4
97

1
3

0
25

-3
4

38
A

si
an

 o
r 

A
si

an
 B

rit
is

h:
P

ak
is

ta
ni

11
4

0
2

35
-4

4
24

5
4

0
1

35
-4

4
70

0
0

0
35

-4
4

15
B

la
ck

 o
r 

B
la

ck
 B

rit
is

h:
A

fr
ic

an
24

12
0

0
45

-5
4

24
2

2
5

0
45

-5
4

99
1

1
0

45
-5

4
35

B
la

ck
 o

r 
B

la
ck

 B
rit

is
h:

C
ar

ib
be

an
5

5
0

1
55

-6
4

86
1

1
0

55
-6

4
23

0
0

0
55

-6
4

7
B

la
ck

 o
r 

B
la

ck
 B

rit
is

h:
O

th
er

5
0

0
0

65
+

3
1

0
0

65
+

0
0

0
0

65
+

0
C

hi
ne

se
 o

r 
ot

he
r 

E
th

ni
c:

C
hi

ne
se

0
12

0
0

N
ot

 G
iv

en
61

0
1

0
N

ot
 G

iv
en

20
0

0
0

N
o

t 
G

iv
en

0
C

hi
ne

se
 o

r 
ot

he
r 

E
th

ni
c:

O
th

er
2

2
0

0
0

1
0

0
0

0
M

ix
ed

:O
th

er
7

5
0

1
2

2
0

1
1

0
M

ix
ed

:W
hi

te
&

A
si

an
2

3
0

0
2

0
0

0
0

0
M

ix
ed

:W
hi

te
&

B
la

ck
 A

fr
ic

an
5

5
0

4
1

0
1

0
0

0
M

ix
ed

:W
hi

te
&

B
la

ck
 C

ar
ib

be
an

2
1

0
0

1
0

0
1

0
0

T
ra

ve
lle

r:
 F

ro
m

 a
 T

ra
ve

lli
ng

 
C

om
m

un
ity

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

0
0

W
hi

te
:B

rit
is

h
47

4
38

2
0

33
14

4
12

0
7

39
41

2
W

hi
te

:Ir
is

h
8

3
0

0
3

0
0

0
1

0
W

hi
te

:O
th

er
58

74
0

5
12

16
1

3
10

0
P

re
fe

r 
no

t t
o 

sa
y

21
17

1
1

3
5

1
1

1
0

A
pp

lic
at

io
ns

 R
ec

ei
ve

d
A

pp
lic

an
ts

 S
ho

rt
lis

te
d

A
pp

lic
an

ts
 S

uc
ce

ss
fu

l
A

ge
 P

ro
fil

e
A

ge
 P

ro
fil

e
A

ge
 P

ro
fil

e

R
ec

ru
it

m
en

t E
qu

al
 O

pp
or

tu
ni

ti
es

 P
ro

fi
le

 A
pr

il 
20

10
- M

ar
ch

 2
01

1 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

  A
pp

en
di

x 
8 

Page 76



2
1

R
ec

ru
it

m
en

t –
 V

ac
an

ci
es

 b
y 

P
ay

 B
an

d:
 A

pr
il 

20
11

 –
 M

ar
ch

 2
01

2 

V
ac

an
ci

e
s 

&
 A

p
p

lic
an

ts
 b

y 
P

ay
 B

an
d

2
31

48
33

16
16

9
0

1
1

41

36
5

43
9

37
0

18
3

18
3

62

0

56

5
7

50
69

47
37

23
7

0
6

1
05010
0

15
0

20
0

25
0

30
0

35
0

40
0

45
0

50
0

B
an

d 
1

B
an

d 
2

B
an

d 
3

B
an

d 
4

B
an

d 
5

B
an

d 
6

B
an

d 
7

B
an

d 
8

B
an

d 
9

S
en

 M
gt

P
ay

 B
an

d

No of Vacancies/Applicants

N
o 

of
 V

ac
an

ci
es

A
pp

lic
an

ts

B
A

M
E

 A
pp

lic
an

ts

B
A

N
D

 1
 

B
A

N
D

 2
 

B
A

N
D

 3
B

A
N

D
 4

B
A

N
D

 5
B

A
N

D
 6

B
A

N
D

 7
 

B
A

N
D

 8
 

B
A

N
D

 9
S

E
N

 M
G

T
T

O
T

A
L

N
o 

V
ac

an
ci

es
 

2 
31

 
48

 
33

 
16

 
16

 
9 

0 
1 

1 
15

7
N

o 
A

pp
lic

an
ts

 
41

 
36

5 
43

9 
37

0 
18

3 
18

3 
62

 
0 

56
 

5 
17

04
%

 B
A

M
E

 A
pp

lic
an

ts
17

.0
7%

 
13

.7
0%

 
15

.7
2%

 
12

.7
0%

20
.2

2%
12

.5
7%

 
11

.2
9%

 
0.

00
%

 
10

.7
1%

20
.0

0%
 

14
.5

0%
 

A
pp

en
di

x 
9

Page 77



2
2

N
ew

 S
ta

rt
er

s 
P

ro
fi

le
 

N
ew

 S
ta

rt
er

s 
P

ro
fi

le
  

A
pr

il 
20

11
 –

 M
ar

ch
 2

01
2 

F
em

al
e 

M
al

e 

N
on

-D
is

ab
le

d
D

is
ab

le
d

N
on

-D
is

ab
le

d
D

is
ab

le
d 

T
ot

al
S

ta
rt

er
s 

%
 to

ta
l 

B
A

M
E

S
ta

rt
er

s 
A

si
an

 o
r 

A
si

an
 B

rit
is

h:
B

an
gl

ad
es

hi
 

1 
0 

2 
0 

3 
2.

10
%

 
A

si
an

 o
r 

A
si

an
 B

rit
is

h:
 In

di
an

 
0 

0 
0 

0 
0 

0.
00

%
 

A
si

an
 o

r 
A

si
an

 B
rit

is
h:

O
th

er
 

3 
0 

0 
0 

3 
2.

10
%

 
A

si
an

 o
r 

A
is

ia
n 

B
rit

is
h:

 P
ak

is
ta

ni
 

1 
0 

0 
0 

1 
0.

70
%

 
B

la
ck

 o
r 

B
la

ck
 B

rit
is

h:
A

fr
ic

an
 

0 
0 

1 
0 

1 
0.

70
%

 
B

la
ck

 o
r 

B
la

ck
 B

rit
is

h:
C

ar
ib

be
an

 
0 

0 
0 

0 
0 

0.
00

%
 

B
la

ck
 o

r 
B

la
ck

 B
rit

is
h:

O
th

er
 

0 
0 

0 
0 

0 
0.

00
%

 
C

hi
ne

se
 o

r 
ot

he
r 

E
th

ni
c:

 O
th

er
 

0 
0 

0 
0 

0 
0.

00
%

 
C

hi
ne

se
 o

r 
ot

he
r 

E
th

ni
c:

 C
hi

ne
se

 
0 

0 
0 

0 
0 

0.
00

%
 

M
ix

ed
 W

hi
te

 &
 A

si
an

 
3 

0 
2 

0 
5 

3.
50

%
 

M
ix

ed
 W

hi
te

 &
 B

la
ck

 A
fr

ic
an

 
0 

0 
1 

0 
1 

0.
70

%
 

M
ix

ed
 W

hi
te

 &
 B

la
ck

 C
ar

ib
be

an
 

0 
0 

0 
0 

0 
0.

00
%

 
M

ix
ed

:O
th

er
 

0 
0

1
0

1
0.

70
%

T
ra

ve
lle

r:
 F

ro
m

 a
 T

ra
ve

lli
ng

 C
om

m
un

ity
 

0 
0 

0 
0 

0 
0.

00
%

 
W

hi
te

:B
rit

is
h 

65
 

3
43

2
11

3
79

.0
2%

W
hi

te
:Ir

is
h 

0 
0

1
0

1
0.

70
%

W
hi

te
:O

th
er

 
6 

0
8

0
14

9.
79

%
T

ot
al

 D
is

ab
le

d 
F

em
al

e 
/ M

al
e 

79
 

3 
59

 
2 

14
3 

10
0.

00
%

T
ot

al
 D

is
ab

le
d 

P
er

ce
nt

ag
e 

F
em

al
e 

/ M
al

e
3.

66
%

 
3.

28
%

 
  

3.
50

%
 

T
ot

al
 B

A
M

E
 F

em
al

e/
M

al
e 

8 
0 

7 
0 

15
 

T
ot

al
 B

A
M

E
 P

er
ce

nt
ag

e 
F

em
al

e/
M

al
e 

5.
59

%
 

4.
90

%
 

10
.4

9%
 

P
re

fe
r 

no
t t

o 
sa

y 
1 

1 
0 

0 
2 

1.
38

%
 

T
ot

al
 F

em
al

e/
M

al
e 

80
 

4 
59

 
2 

14
5

T
ot

al
 %

 
55

.1
7%

 
2.

76
%

 
40

.6
9%

 
1.

38
%

 
10

0.
00

%

A
pp

en
di

x 
10

Page 78



2
3

N
ew

 S
ta

rt
er

s 
P

ro
fi

le
 

A
pr

il 
20

10
 –

 M
ar

ch
 2

01
1

N
on

-D
is

ab
le

d
D

is
ab

le
d

N
on

-D
is

ab
le

d
D

is
ab

le
d

A
si

an
 o

r 
A

si
an

 B
rit

is
h:

B
an

gl
ad

es
hi

0
0.

00
%

A
si

an
 o

r 
A

si
an

 B
rit

is
h:

 In
di

an
2

1
3

2.
83

%
A

si
an

 o
r 

A
si

an
 B

rit
is

h:
O

th
er

3
1

4
3.

77
%

A
si

an
 o

r 
A

is
ia

n 
B

rit
is

h:
 P

ak
is

ta
ni

0
0.

00
%

B
la

ck
 o

r 
B

la
ck

 B
rit

is
h:

A
fr

ic
an

1
1

2
1.

89
%

B
la

ck
 o

r 
B

la
ck

 B
rit

is
h:

C
ar

ib
be

an
0

0.
00

%
B

la
ck

 o
r 

B
la

ck
 B

rit
is

h:
O

th
er

0
0.

00
%

C
hi

ne
se

 o
r 

ot
he

r 
E

th
ni

c:
 O

th
er

0
0.

00
%

C
hi

ne
se

 o
r 

ot
he

r 
E

th
ni

c:
 C

hi
ne

se
0

0.
00

%
M

ix
ed

 W
hi

te
 &

 A
si

an
0

0.
00

%
M

ix
ed

 W
hi

te
 &

 B
la

ck
 A

fr
ic

an
0

0.
00

%
M

ix
ed

 W
hi

te
 &

 B
la

ck
 C

ar
ib

be
an

1
1

0.
94

%
M

ix
ed

:O
th

er
1

1
2

1.
89

%
T

ra
ve

lle
r:

 F
ro

m
 a

 T
ra

ve
lli

ng
 C

om
m

un
ity

0
0.

00
%

W
hi

te
:B

rit
is

h
40

1
38

1
80

75
.4

7%
W

hi
te

:Ir
is

h
1

1
0.

94
%

W
hi

te
:O

th
er

10
3

13
12

.2
6%

T
ot

al
 D

is
ab

le
d 

F
em

al
e 

/ M
al

e
58

1
46

1
10

6
10

0.
00

%
T

ot
al

 B
A

M
E

 F
em

al
e/

M
al

e
7

0
5

0
12

T
ot

al
 B

A
M

E
 P

er
ce

nt
ag

e 
F

em
al

e/
M

al
e

11
.3

2%

P
re

fe
r 

no
t t

o 
sa

y
1

1
2

1.
85

%

T
ot

al
 F

em
al

e/
M

al
e

59
1

47
1

10
8

T
ot

al
 

S
ta

rt
er

s

%
 to

ta
l 

B
A

M
E

S
ta

rt
er

s

6.
60

%
4.

72
%

F
em

al
e

M
al

e

A
pp

en
di

x 
11

Page 79



2
4

L
ea

ve
rs

 P
ro

fi
le

 

L
ea

ve
rs

 P
ro

fi
le

 
A

p
ri

l 2
01

1 
- 

M
ar

ch
 2

01
2 

F
em

al
e 

M
al

e 
N

on
 D

is
ab

le
d

D
is

ab
le

d
N

on
 D

is
ab

le
d

D
is

ab
le

d 
T

ot
al

Le
av

er
s

%
 T

ot
al

 
B

A
M

E
Le

av
er

s
A

si
an

 o
r 

A
si

an
 B

rit
is

h:
B

an
gl

ad
es

hi
 

1 
  

  
  

1 
0.

68
%

 
A

si
an

 o
r 

A
si

an
 B

rit
is

h:
In

di
an

 
  

  
  

  
0 

0.
00

%
 

A
si

an
 o

r 
A

si
an

 B
rit

is
h:

O
th

er
 

1 
  

1 
  

2 
1.

35
%

 
A

si
an

 o
r 

A
si

an
 B

rit
is

h:
P

ak
is

ta
ni

 
  

  
  

  
0 

0.
00

%
 

B
la

ck
 o

r 
B

la
ck

 B
rit

is
h:

A
fr

ic
an

 
  

  
  

  
0 

0.
00

%
 

B
la

ck
 o

r 
B

la
ck

 B
rit

is
h:

C
ar

ib
be

an
 

2 
  

1 
  

3 
2.

03
%

 
B

la
ck

 o
r 

B
la

ck
 B

rit
is

h:
O

th
er

 
  

  
  

  
0 

0.
00

%
 

C
hi

ne
se

 o
r 

ot
he

r 
E

th
ni

c:
C

hi
ne

se
 

  
  

  
  

0 
0.

00
%

 
C

hi
ne

se
 o

r 
ot

he
r 

E
th

ni
c:

O
th

er
 

  
  

1 
  

1 
0.

68
%

 
M

ix
ed

:O
th

er
2 

  
1 

  
3 

2.
03

%
 

M
ix

ed
:W

hi
te

&
A

si
an

  
  

  
  

0 
0.

00
%

 
M

ix
ed

:W
hi

te
&

B
la

ck
 A

fr
ic

an
 

  
  

1 
  

1 
0.

68
%

 
M

ix
ed

:W
hi

te
&

B
la

ck
 C

ar
ib

be
an

 
  

  
1 

  
1 

0.
68

%
 

T
ra

ve
lle

r:
 F

ro
m

 a
 T

ra
ve

lli
ng

 C
om

m
un

ity
 

0 
0 

0 
0 

0 
0.

00
%

 
W

hi
te

:B
rit

is
h

46
 

1 
68

 
3 

11
8 

79
.7

3%
 

W
hi

te
:Ir

is
h

1 
  

1 
  

2 
1.

35
%

 
W

hi
te

:O
th

er
 

11
 

3
2

16
10

.8
1%

T
o

ta
l D

is
ab

le
d

 F
em

al
e/

M
al

e 
64

 
1 

78
 

5 
14

8 
10

0.
00

%
T

o
ta

l D
is

ab
le

d
 P

er
ce

n
ta

g
e 

F
em

al
e/

M
al

e 
1.

54
%

 
6.

02
%

 
4.

05
%

 
T

o
ta

l B
A

M
E

 F
em

al
e/

M
al

e 
6 

0 
6 

0 
12

 
T

o
ta

l B
A

M
E

 P
er

ce
n

ta
g

e 
F

em
al

e 
/M

al
e 

4.
05

%
 

4.
05

%
 

8.
11

%
 

  
  

  
  

  
  

P
re

fe
r 

no
t t

o 
sa

y 
2 

0 
0 

0 
2 

1.
33

%
 

  
  

  
  

  
  

T
ot

al
 F

em
al

e/
M

al
e 

66
 

1 
78

 
5 

15
0

T
ot

al
 %

 
44

.0
0%

 
0.

67
%

 
52

.0
0%

 
3.

33
%

 
10

0.
00

%
 

A
pp

en
di

x 
12

Page 80



2
5

L
ea

ve
rs

 P
ro

fi
le

  
A

pr
il 

20
10

 -
 M

ar
ch

 2
01

1 
F

em
al

e 
M

al
e 

N
on

-D
is

ab
le

d
D

is
ab

le
d

N
on

-D
is

ab
le

d
D

is
ab

le
d 

T
ot

al
Le

av
er

s

%
 to

ta
l 

B
A

M
E

Le
av

er
s

A
si

an
 o

r 
A

si
an

 B
rit

is
h:

B
an

gl
ad

es
hi

 
  

  
2 

  
2 

1.
75

%
 

A
si

an
 o

r 
A

si
an

 B
rit

is
h:

In
di

an
 

  
  

  
  

0 
0.

00
%

 
A

si
an

 o
r 

A
si

an
 B

rit
is

h:
O

th
er

 
  

  
  

  
0 

0.
00

%
 

A
si

an
 o

r 
A

si
an

 B
rit

is
h:

P
ak

is
ta

ni
 

  
  

  
  

0 
0.

00
%

 
B

la
ck

 o
r 

B
la

ck
 B

rit
is

h:
A

fr
ic

an
 

2 
  

3 
  

5 
4.

39
%

 
B

la
ck

 o
r 

B
la

ck
 B

rit
is

h:
C

ar
ib

be
an

 
2 

  
  

  
2 

1.
75

%
 

B
la

ck
 o

r 
B

la
ck

 B
rit

is
h:

O
th

er
 

  
  

  
  

0 
0.

00
%

 
C

hi
ne

se
 o

r 
ot

he
r 

E
th

ni
c:

O
th

er
 

  
  

  
  

0 
0.

00
%

 
C

hi
ne

se
 o

r 
ot

he
r 

E
th

ni
c:

C
hi

ne
se

 
  

  
  

  
0 

0.
00

%
 

M
ix

ed
 W

hi
te

 &
 B

la
ck

 A
si

an
 

  
  

  
  

0 
0.

00
%

 
M

ix
ed

 W
hi

te
 &

 B
la

ck
 C

ar
ib

be
an

 
  

  
1 

  
1 

0.
88

%
 

M
ix

ed
:W

hi
te

&
B

la
ck

 A
fr

ic
an

 
  

  
  

1 
1 

0.
88

%
 

M
ix

ed
:O

th
er

1 
  

  
  

1 
0.

88
%

 
T

ra
ve

lle
r:

 F
ro

m
 a

 T
ra

ve
lli

ng
 C

om
m

un
ity

 
 

0 
0.

00
%

 
W

hi
te

:B
rit

is
h 

47
 

3
43

1
94

82
.4

6%
W

hi
te

:Ir
is

h
2 

  
  

  
2 

1.
75

%
 

W
hi

te
:O

th
er

4 
  

2 
  

6 
5.

26
%

 
T

o
ta

l D
is

ab
le

d
 F

em
al

e 
/ M

al
e 

58
 

3 
51

 
2 

11
4 

10
0.

00
%

T
o

ta
l D

is
ab

le
d

 P
er

ce
n

ta
g

e 
F

em
al

e 
/ M

al
e 

4.
92

%
 

3.
77

%
 

4.
39

%
 

T
o

ta
l B

A
M

E
 F

em
al

e/
M

al
e 

5 
0 

6 
1 

12
 

T
o

ta
l B

A
M

E
 P

er
ce

n
ta

g
e 

F
em

al
e/

M
al

e 
8.

33
%

 
12

.7
7%

 
10

.5
3%

 
  

  
  

  
  

  
P

re
fe

r 
no

t t
o 

sa
y 

0 
0 

1 
0 

0 
0.

00
%

 
  

  
  

  
  

T
ot

al
 F

em
al

e/
M

al
e 

58
 

3 
52

 
2 

11
5

T
ot

al
 %

 
50

.4
3%

 
2.

61
%

 
45

.2
2%

 
1.

74
%

 
10

0.
00

%

A
pp

en
di

x 
13

Page 81



2
6

L
ea

ve
rs

 b
y 

P
ay

 B
an

d
 

A
pr

il 
20

11
 –

 M
ar

ch
 2

01
2

P
ay

 B
an

d
 

H
ea

d
co

u
n

t 
%

 
L

ea
ve

rs
 

%
 

B
an

d
 1

: 
 £

12
48

9 
- 

£1
57

25
 

16
 

1.
58

%
 

2 
1.

33
%

 
B

an
d

 2
: 

 £
15

03
9 

- 
£1

91
26

 
12

9 
12

.7
7%

 
29

 
19

.3
3%

B
an

d
 3

: 
 £

16
83

0 
- 

£2
22

21
 

23
7 

23
.4

7%
 

30
 

20
.0

0%
B

an
d

 4
: 

 £
19

62
1 

- 
£2

62
76

 
17

4 
17

.2
3%

 
24

 
16

.0
0%

B
an

d
 5

: 
 £

22
22

1 
- 

£3
08

51
 

15
7 

15
.5

4%
 

34
 

22
.6

7%
B

an
d

 6
: 

 £
25

47
2 

- 
£3

45
49

 
14

9 
14

.7
5%

 
19

 
12

.6
7%

B
an

d
 7

: 
 £

29
23

6 
- 

£3
98

55
 

72
 

7.
13

%
 

7 
4.

67
%

 
B

an
d

 8
: 

 £
33

66
1 

- 
£4

25
00

 
30

 
2.

97
%

 
3 

2.
00

%
 

B
an

d
 9

: 
 £

38
04

2 
- 

£4
63

70
 

17
 

1.
68

%
 

2 
1.

33
%

 
S

en
io

r 
M

an
ag

em
en

t 
G

ra
d

es
 

22
 

2.
18

%
 

0 
0.

00
%

 
O

th
er

7 
0.

69
%

 
0 

0.
00

%
 

T
o

ta
l 

10
10

 
15

0

A
pr

il 
20

10
 –

 M
ar

ch
 2

01
1

P
ay

 B
an

d
 

H
ea

d
co

u
n

t 
%

 
L

ea
ve

rs
 

%
 

B
an

d
 1

: 
 £

12
48

9 
- 

£1
57

25
 

16
 

1.
48

%
 

3 
2.

61
%

 
B

an
d

 2
: 

 £
15

03
9 

- 
£1

91
26

 
13

4 
12

.4
2%

 
18

 
15

.6
5%

B
an

d
 3

: 
 £

16
83

0 
- 

£2
22

21
 

24
0 

22
.2

4%
 

30
 

26
.0

9%
B

an
d

 4
: 

 £
19

62
1 

- 
£2

62
76

 
19

0 
17

.6
1%

 
20

 
17

.3
9%

B
an

d
 5

: 
 £

22
22

1 
- 

£3
08

51
 

19
4 

17
.9

8%
 

12
 

10
.4

3%
B

an
d

 6
: 

 £
25

47
2 

- 
£3

45
49

 
15

5 
14

.3
7%

 
15

 
13

.0
4%

B
an

d
 7

: 
 £

29
23

6 
- 

£3
98

55
 

73
 

6.
77

%
 

8 
6.

96
%

 
B

an
d

 8
: 

 £
33

66
1 

- 
£4

25
00

 
39

 
3.

61
%

 
1 

0.
87

%
 

B
an

d
 9

: 
 £

38
04

2 
- 

£4
63

70
 

15
 

1.
39

%
 

2 
1.

74
%

 
S

en
io

r 
M

an
ag

em
en

t 
G

ra
d

es
 

22
 

2.
04

%
 

6 
5.

22
%

 
O

th
er

1 
0.

09
%

 
0 

0.
00

%
 

T
o

ta
l 

10
79

 
11

5

A
pp

en
di

x 
14

Page 82



2
7

A
n

al
ys

is
 o

f 
E

xi
t 

Q
u

es
ti

o
n

n
ai

re
s 

A
p

ri
l 2

01
1 

 –
 M

ar
ch

 2
01

2 

C
o

m
p

le
te

d
 o

n
 a

 v
o

lu
n

ta
ry

 b
as

is
 

R
ea

so
n

 f
o

r 
L

ea
vi

n
g

 
T

o
ta

l
%

P
ro

m
ot

io
n 

- 
ne

w
 jo

b 
7 

26
%

 
P

er
so

na
l r

ea
so

ns
 

5 
19

%
 

C
ar

ee
r 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t o

pp
or

tu
ni

ty
 

4 
15

%
 

C
on

ce
rn

s 
ov

er
 fu

tu
re

 o
f c

ur
re

nt
 jo

b 
4 

15
%

 
C

ar
ee

r 
br

ea
k 

3 
11

%
 

W
or

kl
oa

d 
pr

es
su

re
s 

3 
11

%
 

D
is

sa
tis

fa
ct

io
n 

w
ith

 c
ur

re
nt

 jo
b 

3 
11

%
 

B
et

te
r 

P
ay

/B
en

ef
its

 
2 

7%
 

R
el

oc
at

io
n 

2 
7%

R
et

ire
m

en
t 

2 
7%

C
ha

ng
ed

 w
or

k/
lif

e 
ba

la
nc

e 
2 

7%
 

R
el

at
io

ns
hi

p 
w

ith
 m

an
ag

er
s/

co
lle

ag
ue

s 
2 

7%
 

E
du

ca
tio

n 
or

 s
tu

dy
 

1 
4%

 
T

o 
tr

av
el

 
1 

4%
 

E
nd

 o
f F

ix
ed

 T
er

m
 C

on
tr

ac
t 

1 
4%

 

T
o

p
 3

 E
m

p
lo

ye
e 

D
es

ti
n

at
io

n
s 

T
o

ta
l

%
P

riv
at

e 
S

ec
to

r 
5 

19
%

 
O

th
er

 
4 

15
%

O
th

er
 L

oc
al

 A
ut

ho
rit

y 
2 

7%
 

O
th

er
 P

ub
lic

 S
ec

to
r 

2 
7%

 
V

ol
un

ta
ry

 S
ec

to
r 

2 
7%

 

A
pp

en
di

x 
15

Page 83



Page 84

This page is intentionally left blank


	Agenda
	3 Minutes of Previous Meeting and Matters Arising
	4 Review of Terms of Reference
	5 Customer Access Strategy
	7 Equality Impact Assessments: Olympic Torch Relay and Leisure Management Contract
	LM Contract EqIA 120601-IR

	8 Equality in Employment Œ End of year Update Workforce Report, April 2011 - March 2012

